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Hengdeli Holdings Limited (the “Company” or
and its subsidiaries (collectively as the

“Hengdeli”)
“Group”) are
prestigious retailers of internationally renowned watch
brands and manufacturers of watch accessories. lIts
shareholders primarily include the Zhang family, SWATCH
Group,
international repute and LVMH Group,

the watch manufacturer and distributor with
the internationally
recognized luxury goods conglomerate.

As of 31 December 2018, the Group owned a retail network
comprising: Elegant (high-end internationally renowned
watch brands), Hengdeli/Watchshoppe (mid-end and mid-to-
high-end internationally renowned watch brands) and single-
brand boutiques. The Group had 67 retail outlets, selling
watches from more than 50 internationally renowned brands
in Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and Malaysia. Meanwhile, the
Group provides integrated after-sales warranty maintenance
for internationally renowned brand watches.

The Group owns a number of watch accessories
manufacturing enterprises, of which the business covers
manufacturing of furniture and items used for watch sales
and watch packaging products, commercial space design,
production and decoration, serving customers throughout
the Greater China Region, Asia Pacific and other countries
and regions including Switzerland and the United States etc.

The Group maintains sound and in-depth collaboration with
many world-renowned premier brand suppliers including
SWATCH Group, LVMH Group, RICHEMONT Group and
KERING Group.

The Company has been listed on the Main Board of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange since 2005 with stock code
3389. The stock name is Hengdeli in short.
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Maintain stable and healthy while seeking sustainable development,

creating greater value for shareholders and the society.
FRER  HEZERE SRR SEEESNERE -

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am
pleased to present the annual report of Hengdeli Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”),
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (the “year” or the
“year under review”), for your review.

In 2018, the global political and economic situations remain
turbulent. In the first half of the year, the Chinese economy
continued the steady and rising trend since 2017. Driven
by various favourable economic factors, the retail market in
Hong Kong also showed overall prosperity. In the second
half of the year, due to the ever-changing international
situation, market uncertainty rose significantly and downward
pressure increased. The overall environment seemed to
be stable and sound throughout the year. However, the
international political situation remained turbulent and the
uncertainty of financial market also increased, which made
numerous risks and challenges lingering on corporate
operations, especially in the second half of the year. The
Group has adhered to its established strategy of steady and
healthy growth, proactively sought breakthroughs by making
the best use of opportunities, achieved better business
results so as to safeguarded shareholders’ interests.

As of 31 December 2018, the Group recorded revenue
of RMB2,687,248,000 (2017: RMB2,439,022,000),
representing a year-on-year increase of 10.2%; among
which retail sales amounted to RMB2,093,852,000 (2017:
RMB1,943,307,000), representing a year-on-year increase
of 7.7%; the industrial group and others recorded revenue
of RMB593,396,000 (2017: RMB495,715,000), representing
a year-on-year increase of 19.7%; the Group recorded
profit for the year of RMB79,249,000 (2017: loss of
RMB165,080,000), representing a year-on-year increase of
148.0%; profit attributable to equity shareholders amounted
to RMB68,746,000 (2017: loss of RMB236,382,000),
representing a year-on-year increase of 129.1%.
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In 2018, leveraging on high level refined and scientific
management, the operation of renowned watches of the
Group maintained healthy and stable growth, with desirable
increase in both sales and profits. During the year, the
Group successfully acquired the renowned watch business
of “Watchshoppe”, a well-known local watch retailer in
Malaysia, thereby expanding its operations to Southeast
Asia. The Group operated a total of 67 retail outlets, selling
watches from more than 50 internationally renowned brands
in areas such as Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and Malaysia
as of 31 December 2018.

During the year under review, the Group took proactive
strategies towards its industry value chain for watch
accessories. The Group’s customer resources have been
enriched continuously and its cooperation with brands has
become even closer and deeper through timely updates
to product design, further perfection of service standards,
optimization of product techniques as well as constant
improvement in automation and informatization. Therefore,
both manufacture and sales aspects of each business have
kept blooming. The total turnover of the industrial group
represented a year-on-year increase of 17.2% and principal
business profits also increased rapidly. During the year, the
industrial group also proactively sought new development
opportunities, expanded its production bases in order to lay
a solid foundation for long-term development.

The Group’s core value of “respect, commitment, cooperation
and innovation” has enabled us to build a solid foundation for
corporate governance and fulfilment of social responsibilities.
Believing that business exists as a part of the society and
prospers along with it, the Group, apart from its efforts in
achieving business results and creating brand value, has been
improving its social values by protecting the environment,
managing environmental quality, conserving resources and
developing talents. The Group also actively participated in
public welfare activities with an aim of growing together and
sharing with the community.
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At present, the global political and economic situations are
complicated, the real economy is still subject to certain
growth risks. However, the sound and stable fundamentals
in China’'s economic development remain unchanged, while
the overall steady and rising momentum in the long term
continues as well. The Group believes that with consumption
upgrading, the development trend of the Chinese economy
at a medium and high speed will continue. The construction
of Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area will
also enable the Group to maintain stability and progress of
the operating environment and revenue. By continuously
leveraging its core competitiveness, the Group will continue
to respond to the market and identify new opportunities so
as to achieve breakthroughs and expand its businesses in
an environment where opportunities and challenges co-exist.

In 2019, the Group will continuously adhere to the principle
of “maintaining stable and healthy growth and seeking
sustainable development”. With a pragmatic attitude, we
will strive for progress while maintaining stability, and put
our heads together to explore and to engage in more in-
depth cooperation with brand suppliers and international
peers through various ways, and expand the scope and
models of operation for newer and broader development,
so as to create greater value for both our shareholders and
community at large.

On behalf of the Group, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to our shareholders, suppliers, customers and
other business partners for their ongoing trust and support,
as well as to all our staff members for their dedication and
wholehearted contributions over the past year.

By order of the Board
Zhang Yuping

Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2019
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS
H R E

The directors of the Company are pleased to present to you
this report and the audited accounts of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the Group’s business was
primarily focused on the sale of internationally renowned
branded watches, comprehensive related customer
services and maintenance in Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan
and Malaysia, watch accessories manufacturing and
e-commerce, etc.

Retail Network

The Group’s retail network is mainly located in Hong Kong,
Macau, Taiwan and Malaysia where retail stores mainly
included “Elegant”, “Hengdeli”/*Watchshoppe”, and certain
single-brand boutiques. “Elegant” stores are mainly located
in Hong Kong, selling high-end internationally renowned
branded watches, while “Hengdeli’/*Watchshoppe” stores
are mainly located in Taiwan and Malaysia, selling mid-end
and mid-to-high-end internationally renowned branded
watches. Following the adjustments and optimization,
the Group operated a total of 67 retail outlets in
above-mentioned regions as at 31 December 2018, details
of which are set out below:
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[Watchshoppe| F Z2F R A E KB RAEE
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As of 31 December 2018
BE-Z—\F+=-A=+—HL

Hong Kong Taiwan/
and Macau Malaysia Total
BIR BRA et
Elegant —ERk 5 1 6
Hengdeli/Watchshoppe =18%| / Watchshoppe 1 85 36
Brand boutiques mEERE 8 17 25
Total et 14 5 67
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The Group has maintained sound business relationships with
many world-renowned brand watch suppliers over the years,
including SWATCH Group, LVMH Group, RICHEMONT
Group and KERING Group, etc. As of 31 December
2018, the Group was engaged in the distribution of over
50 international brands from the above four major brand
suppliers and other independent watchmakers, including
Breguet, Blancpain, Bulgari, Cartier, Girard-Perregaux, Harry
Winston, IWC, Jaeger-LeCoultre, Longines, Mido, Omega,
Parmigiani, Vacheron-Constantin, Tissot, Zenith, and Hublot,
etc. During the year under review, the Group continued
to step up its efforts in adjusting the brands to optimize
its brand portfolio, paving the way for long-term business
development and stabilizing overall sales performance.

In 2018, the global political and economic situation
remained turbulent. In the first half of the year, the Chinese
economy continued the steady and rising trend during 2017.
In the second half of the year, due to the ever-changing
international political and economic situation, market
uncertainty rose significantly and downward pressure
increased. The overall environment seemed to be stable
and sound throughout the year. However, the international
political situation remained turbulent and the uncertainty of
financial market also increased, which made numerous risks
and challenges lingering on corporate operations, especially
in the second half of the year. The Group has adhered
to its established strategy of steady and healthy growth,
proactively sought breakthroughs by making the best use
of opportunities, and achieved better business results with
a year-on-year increase of 7.7% in overall retail sales, while
the profit increased as well.

Hong Kong and Macau

The Group’s retail business in Hong Kong mainly focuses
on high-end brands, including Blancpain, Breguet,
Bulgari, Cartier, Chopard, Richard Mille, Franck Muller,
Girard-Perregaux, Harry Winston, IWC, Jaeger-LeCoultre,
Omega, Panerai, Piaget, Parmigiani, Vacheron Constantin,
Zenith, Glashutte Original, Ulysse Nardin, Jaquet Droz,
Breitling, etc. To adapt to diverse consumer preference
and changes in the structure and consumption patterns of
visitors to Hong Kong in recent years, the Group also started
to deploy multi-layer brand positioning in Hong Kong,
introducing certain mid-to-high-end brands and marketing
some well-known brands from independent international
watchmakers such as Urwerk, HYT, Christophe Claret,
Greubel Foresy and MB&F, in order to expand its market
share and maintain its leading position in Hong Kong.
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As of 31 December 2018, the Group operated a total of 13
retail outlets in Hong Kong, of which 5 were multi-brand
“Elegant” shops and 8 were single-brand boutiques or image
stores, mainly located in prime commercial districts such
as Tsim Sha Tsui, Central and Causeway Bay. During the
year under review, to satisfy market demand, the Group had
made appropriate supplemental adjustments to the brands
it sells. MB&F boutique (M.A.D. Gallery), a high-end creative
brand, was newly opened in Harbour City, Tsim Sha Tsui,
while two brand boutiques of Bulgari and Panerai were newly
opened in Times Square, Causeway Bay. Tsim Sha Tsui and
Causeway Bay have all long been commercially prosperous
districts in Hong Kong. The opening of these new stores
not only enriches the retail brands, but contributes to the
increase of the Group’s sales in Hong Kong.

During the first half of the year under review, Hong Kong’s
retail market was driven to overall prosperity with the
continuously improved political and economic atmosphere
in Hong Kong, enthusiastic visitors to Hong Kong and
positive consumer sentiment in the local market. However,
in the second half of the year, due to the ever-changing
international political and economic situation, market
uncertainty rose significantly and downward pressure
increased, resulting in a slash in sales. Therefore, in view of
the whole year, the sales in Hong Kong remained stable as a
whole, representing a year-on-year increase of 6.8%. Driven
by the continuingly enhanced operation and management
level as well as the decreased expense ratio, the sales profit
was greatly improved.

During the year, the Group focused on refined operation
management by strengthening its staff training at different
levels and enhancing the knowledge in watches and the
service standards of the frontline staff. Efforts were also
made to upgrade the management model and to build
up a talent pool to foster a world-class professional sales
force. On the other hand, the Group proactively sorted and
selected quality brands for expanding its market share.
Meanwhile, the Group continued to strengthen its marketing
campaigns and enhanced collaboration with large shopping
malls. Resources were committed to collaborating more
closely with a broadened portfolio of international brands
in advertisements, VIP events and other promotional
activities. Social networking platforms such as FACEBOOK,
Weibo and WeChat were used to establish and maintain
sound interaction with consumers, aiming to enhance their
awareness of and loyalty for Elegant, and hence to uplift the
international reputation of the “Elegant” brand.

Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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At present, the international political and economic situation
remains unstable. According to the relevant statistics
released by the Census and Statistics Department of Hong
Kong, high-end retail business in Hong Kong is relatively
more affected. However, with consumption upgrading, the
development trend of the Chinese economy at a medium
and high speed will continue and the construction of
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area will also
enable Hong Kong and Macau to maintain their stability
and economic growth of the operating environment. In an
environment where challenges and opportunities co-exist,
the Group will leverage on its advantage, seeking business
opportunities and striving for greater development.

During the year under review, the Group opened a
“Hengdeli” watch store at a well-known hotel in Macau. The
shop is in the process of nurturing, and its sales for the
year remained stable. The Group will respond to the market
and proactively seek new cooperation with other partners
including brand suppliers to boost the sales in Macau along
with Hong Kong.

Taiwan and Malaysia

During the year under review, the Group’s retail business in
Taiwan was in the process of network building and nurturing.
The Group operated a total of 48 retail outlets in Taiwan
as of 31 December 2018, mainly located in prime districts
including Taipei, Taichung, Kaohsiung, Hsinchu and Chiayi.
Except for one “Elegant” shop which sells top-end watches,
all other retail outlets are brand boutiques and “Hengdeli”
shops which sell mid-end and mid-to-high-end watch
brands. Brands of watches sold are mostly mid-end and
mid-end to high-end, which mainly include Omega, IWC,
Certina, Hamilton, Longines, Rado, TAG Heuer, Tissot and
Gucci, etc.
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During the year, sales in Taiwan remained stable and did
not have much change compared to that of last year. The
sales target is still mainly local customers. In view of the
current situation, it is anticipated that there will still be no
material changes in sales in Taiwan in 2019. The Group will
strive for development in a steady state, further improve the
network building of retail outlets, promote the improvement
of management level and lay a solid foundation for the sales
peak.

During the year under review, the Group established
a company in Malaysia mainly operating retail and
maintenance business of internationally renowned watches.
In the first half of the year, the company acquired the
“Watchshoppe” business from the local world-renowned
watch dealers, primarily including five retail outlets, three of
which are located in Kuala Lumpur and two in Penang, all
located in the central business district of the city. Following
the acquisition, the five outlets were in good operating
condition, with desirable improvement in sales and gross
profit margin as compared with that before the acquisition.
The Group believes that such acquisitions will not only
bring new revenue to the Group, but also make Malaysia an
important base for the Group to expand the market in places
with large Chinese population such as Southeast Asia.

Customer Service and Maintenance

The Group fully realizes that customer relationship is
the core competitiveness of the Group, so “cutting-edge
technology, efficient management, and considerate
services” are the solemn commitments made by the Group
to consumers, providing customers with assurance and
confidence. The continuing training provided by brand
suppliers to the Group’s technical personnel and the
human resources policy of recruiting talents worldwide
have ensured the Group to have its own elite technicians
and maintain the word-class cutting edge of maintenance
expertise.
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The watch repairs and maintenance centers covering Hong
Kong and Taiwan ensure the timely delivery of widespread
all-round after-sale services to customers. During the year
under review, the newly renovated repair and maintenance
center in Hong Kong officially opened with its top
international watch technicians and high-end maintenance
equipments to provide international first-rate watch repair
and maintenance services to customers so as to strive for
perfection in customer services. The Group has maintained
good cooperation relationship with brand suppliers. As of 31
December 2018, the Group has become the maintenance
agent for 77 international brands, of which the Group is the
exclusive maintenance agent for 10 brands.

Industrial Group

The Group has a relatively mature industry value chain for
watch accessories, mainly spanning from the manufacturing
of watch accessories and packaging products to
commercial space design, production and decoration.
The Companies are mainly located in Shanghai, Suzhou,
Guangzhou and Dongguan. Our branches and subsidiaries
have earned a solid reputation in their respective fields,
forming tight relationships, mutual trust and interest sharing
with brand suppliers. A wide customer base covering China,
Switzerland, the United States and other nations in the Asia
Pacific region etc. has been established.

During the year under review, the industrial group
implemented the aggressive strategy through timely
updates to product design, further perfection in customer
services, optimization of product techniques as well as
constant improvement in automation and informatization.
The continuous deepening of informatization has effectively
improved the ability of enterprises in cost management
and benefit analysis, providing a solid foundation for
enterprise data analysis and strategic decision-making. With
the continuous investment and application of automation,
the technological process of each company has further
improved, greatly improving the product quality and
production efficiency, thus making its leading position in the
market continue to be enhanced. The management concept
of “one-stop commercial space” has been accepted by
more and more brand owners in the industry, which has
increasingly enriched the Group’s customer resources and
the collaboration with brands has become more in-depth.
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Sound operating environment, progressive strategy and
scientific management have enabled various businesses
of the industrial group to continuously maintain promising
growth momentum in productivity and sale during the
year under review. The turnover has increased by 17.2%
compared with the same period of last year, achieving
further improvement in profits from principal business, as
well as constant enhancement of overall strength.

Under the background of the strong industrial strategy of
the Chinese government, the Group will seek opportunities
to conduct industry integration of the upstream and
downstream products, as well as strive for improving
leadership in the industry through fully seizing the
development opportunities, further strengthening the
industrial management together with technical R&D and
innovation, taking quality as the priority and driving growth
by innovation. Meanwhile, the Group will also further explore
the limited diversification of business to expand the business
model and enhance its product pipeline. The Group firmly
believes that, under the guidance of proactive strategies,
the industrial group will achieve a further rapid development.

MAJOR RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s operations, financial condition, business
directions and prospects may be affected by various risk
factors and uncertainties. The major risks and uncertainties
for the Group are identified below. Except as stated below,
there may exist other risks and uncertainties which are
unknown to the Group or are not material at present but
could become material in the future.

Strategy Risk

The business environment in the market keeps changing
over time. Setbacks in economic activities pose particularly
adverse effect on the sale of high-end products. If our
strategies are unable to avert the impact in a timely manner
and be revised according to the situation, the Group may
suffer from uncertainty risk. In this regard, the Group
will closely monitor the market and revise our strategic
approaches from time to time in order to put us on track for
healthy growth.
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Commodity Risk

Currently, the Group’s business and operating results to
some extent rely on brand suppliers. If brand suppliers no
longer appoint the Group as their dealer, or maintenance
agent, or there arise quality issues regarding their products,
there will be a risk that the Group’s operating results may
fluctuate vigorously. The Group has maintained good
cooperative relationships with many international brand
suppliers, so that the risk of reliance on any single brand
can be reduced, which attributes to the continuous health of
the Group’s business.

Operation Risk

Operation risk refers to the risk that losses will be incurred
because of the shortage or failure of an internal business
process, staffing or system, or attributable to an external
event. Managing the operating risk is the duty of each
functional department. The Group is of the opinion that
operating risk cannot be eliminated entirely and will have an
impact on our operating results and profits.

The Group has issued guidance about internal standard
operating procedures, authorities and reporting hierarchy.
Internal audit department will identify and assess major
operating risks and report any such risk to senior
management for appropriate responsive measures.
Take inventory control as an example, besides scientific
management and stringent controls on its operating process,
the Group will also make provisions so as to control risk to
the greatest extent.

Financial Risk

The Group’s financial risks mainly include market risk
and liquidity risk. Monetary condition, interest rates and
interest rate cycles may pose a risk to the financial position,
operating results and business of the Group.

Market risk refers to the risk that Group’s earnings and
capital or the ability to achieve the desired business goals
may be adversely affected by changes in exchange rates
and interest rates, etc. The Group timely monitors the
relative foreign exchange positions of assets and liabilities
and makes appropriate adjustments to minimize foreign
exchange risk. Interest rate risk is regularly managed and
monitored by the Group’s senior management.
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Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Group is unable to
obtain sufficient funds or realize assets, leading to failure
in due performance of contractual obligation. In managing
liquidity risk, the Group monitors cash flow and maintains
adequate capital and credit facilities to ensure the supply of
funds for the Group’s operations and reduce the impact of
fluctuations in cash flow.

Talent Pool Risk

Getting the right people is an essential factor for the
development of an enterprise. Competition is intense in
the industry and regions in which the Group operates its
business. The shortage or loss of personnel with appropriate
skills or experience could pose a potential risk impacting
the Group’s ability to achieve its goals. The Group provides
competitive salaries and benefits as well as various
incentives to attract the right talent so as to satisfy the needs
of corporate development.

OUTLOOK

At present, the global political and economic situations are
complicated, the real economy is still subject to certain
growth risks. However, the sound and stable fundamentals
in China’s economic development remain unchanged, while
the overall steady and rising momentum in the long term
continues as well. The Group believes that with consumption
upgrading, the development trend of the Chinese economy
at a medium and high speed will continue. The construction
of Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area will
also enable the Group to maintain stability and progress of
the operating environment and revenue. By continuously
leveraging its core competitiveness, the Group will continue
to respond to the market and identify new opportunities so
as to achieve breakthroughs and expand its businesses in
an environment where opportunities and challenges co-exist.

In 2019, the Group will continuously adhere to the principle
of “maintaining stable and healthy growth and seeking
sustainable development”. With a pragmatic attitude, we
will strive for progress while maintaining stability, and put
our heads together to explore and to engage in more in-
depth cooperation with brand suppliers and international
peers through various ways, and expand the scope and
models of operation for newer and broader development,
SO as to create greater value for both our shareholders and
community at large.
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COMPLIANCE OF LAWS AND REGULATIONS

To the knowledge of the Company, there was no major
change to the relevant laws and regulations applicable to
the business and operation of the Group for the year. Also,
the Group has complied with such laws and regulations
in all major respects covering sale of products, protection
offered by online platforms to brand suppliers, labor codes,
environment protection and anti-corruption and bribery
prevention policies.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group maintained a sound and stable financial position.

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded
revenue of RMB2,687,248,000 (2017: RMB2,439,022,000),
representing a year-on-year increase of 10.2%, among
which retail sales amounted to RMB2,093,852,000 (2017:
RMB1,943,307,000), representing a year-on-year increase
of 7.7%; the revenue from the industrial group and others
amounted to RMB593,396,000 (2017: RMB495,715,000),
representing a year-on-year increase of 19.7%.

In 2018, the global political and economic situation remains
turbulent. In the first half of the year, the Chinese economy
continued the steady and rising trend during 2017. In
the second half of the year, due to the ever-changing
international situation, market uncertainty rose significantly
and downward pressure increased, but the economy
maintained a sound and steady growth in general. The
Group has adhered to its established strategy of steady and
healthy growth, proactively sought breakthroughs by making
the best use of opportunities, and achieved better sales
revenue.
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Breakdown of revenue: (for the year ended 31 December
2018)

WA (BE_ZT—-N\F+_A=+—RH1It
FE)

2018 2017
—E-N\EFE —ET—+tF
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %

AR® (Fr) Bokk AR (FiT) Bk

Retail Business TEEKX
Hong Kong B 1,898,353 70.6 1,777,065 72.9
Taiwan/Malaysia A& BRAED 195,499 7.3 166,242 6.8
Industrial Group and others T £ES 593,396 22.1 495,715 20.3
Total Bzt 2,687,248 100 2,439,022 100

2018

4

Industrial group and others
TI¥&EEE
22.1%

Gross profit and gross profit margin

As of 31 December 2018, the Group’s gross profit showed
a 19.4% year-on-year increase and reached approximately
RMB461,546,000 (2017: RMB386,451,000). Gross
profit margin was approximately 17.2% (2017: 15.8%),
representing a year-on-year increase of 140bps. The
increase in gross profit and gross profit margin was mainly
due to the further improvement of management level such as
the control of discounts.
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Profit for the year

During the year under review, the Group recorded a
net profit amounting to RMB79,249.000 (2017: loss of
RMB165,080,000), representing a year-on-year increase of
148.0%. Profit attributable to equity shareholders amounted
to RMB68,746,000 (2017: loss of RMB236,382,000),
representing a year-on-year increase of 129.1%. Increase
in the profit was mainly due to the increase in revenue and
gross profit margin, and decrease in non-recurring financial
costs.

Financial status and net debt to equity ratio

The Group maintained a sound and stable financial
position. As at 31 December 2018, the Group had total
equity of RMB4,447,689,000 (2017: RMB4,433,698,000)
and net current assets of RMB3,516,775,000 (2017:
RMB3,324,446,000), with cash and cash equivalents
and deposits with banks of RMB2,189,214,000 (2017:
RMB1,632,892,000) and total bank loans of RMB143,752,000
(2017: RMB109,120,000). As at 31 December 2018, the bank
loan amounted to RMB35,000,000 (2017: RMB21,151,000)
bore interests at a fixed rate of 5.22% (2017: 1.66% to
2.24%), and the remaining bank loans bore interests at
floating rates of 1.70% and 1.89% (2017: 1.75% to 2.11%).
As at 31 December 2018, approximately 24% (2017: 0%),
0% (2017: 0%), 0% (2017: 0%) and 76% (2017: 100%) of
bank loans were denominated in RMB, HKD, USD and NTD,
respectively. The maturity profile of bank loans is set out in
note 21 to the accompanying financial statements. During
the year under review, there was no sign of significant
changes in the Group’s demand for loans in a particular
quarter.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s total debt amounted
to RMB143,752,000 (2017: RMB109,120,000). The net debt
to equity ratio of the Group was approximately zero (2017:
zero) (Net debt is defined as total debt (which includes
total interest-bearing borrowings) less cash and cash
equivalents), which established a solid foundation for the
further business expansion of the Group.
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The Group adopts prudent treasury policies in financial and
cash management, manages bank credit availability and
monitors risks of credit cost centrally in various ways. The
Group maintains a good partnership with a number of banks
which provide financing facilities, and reviews their funding
liquidity and financing requirements regularly.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s transactions are mainly denominated in
HKD, RMB and NTD. During the year under review,
the foreign exchange movements of such currencies
were managed properly. Accordingly, the Group was
not exposed to significant risks associated with foreign
exchange fluctuations. The Group has not entered into
foreign exchange hedging arrangements to manage foreign
exchange risk but has been actively monitoring its foreign

exchange risk.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had land and buildings
equivalent to RMB159,374,000 (2017: RMB116,200,000)
pledged as securities for mortgage.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2018,
contingent liabilities (2017: nil).

the Group had no material

Current assets

As at 31 December 2018, the current assets of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB3,904,184,000 (2017:
RMB3,608,601,000), comprising inventories of approximately
RMB1,403,251,000 (2017: RMB1,381,603,000), trade and
other receivables of approximately RMB311,719,000 (2017:
RMB594,106,000), cash and cash equivalents and deposits
with banks of approximately RMB2,189,214,000 (2017:
RMB1,632,892,000).

As at 31 December 2018, cash and cash equivalents of
approximately 7% (2017: 5%), 90% (2017: 94%) and 3%
(2017: 1%) were denominated in RMB, HKD and other
currencies, respectively.
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Current liabilities

As at 31 December 2018, the current liabilities of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB387,409,000 (2017:
RMB284,155,000), comprising bank loans of approximately
RMB60,429,000 (2017: RMB24,838,000), trade and other
payables of approximately RMB309,666,000 (2017:
RMB258,764,000), and current taxation of approximately
RMB17,314,000 (2017: RMB553,000).

Capital structure

The Company’s capital structure is composed of issued
share capital, reserves and accumulated profits. As at 31
December 2018, the issued share capital of the Company
was 4,662,666,959 shares (2017: 4,684,526,959 shares),
with reserves and accumulated profits of RMB4,347,114,000
(2017: RMB4,354,075,000) in total.

Significant investment, material acquisition and disposal

The Company has no material acquisitions or disposals
of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the
year under review, except as disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Except as disclosed in the notes to the financial statements,
the Company did not hold other significant investments
during the year under review.

THE COMPANY

The Group is engaged in the distribution of mid-to-high-end
consumer goods including internationally renowned branded
watch, related customer services and manufacturing of
related accessory products.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries of the Company
which materially affect the results, assets and liabilities of
the Group are set out in note 14 to the enclosed financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABILITY OF RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the aggregate amount
of distributable reserves of the Company was
RMB1,341,317,000 (2017: RMB1,339,062,000), which is
set out in note 25 to the financial statements in this annual
report.
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DIVIDEND POLICY AND FINAL DIVIDEND

The Company’s ability to pay dividends depends on, among
other things, the Group’s current and future operations,
liquidity position and capital requirements. The payment of
dividends by the Company is also subject to compliance
with any restrictions under the Laws of the Cayman Islands,
the memorandum and articles of association of the Company
and any applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Board
will review the dividend policy from time to time and may
exercise at its absolute and sole discretion to update,
amend, and/or modify the policy at any time as it deems fit
and necessary. There is no assurance that dividends will be
paid in any particular amount for any specific period.

The Company recommends the payment of a final dividend
of RMB1.2 cents per share for the financial year ended
31 December 2018 (2017: nil) in return for shareholders’
support, subject to approval by shareholders at the annual
general meeting to be held on Friday, 10 May 2019. The
proposed cash dividend will be distributed on or before
Friday, 31 May 2019 to shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on Tuesday, 21
May 2019.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing shareholders.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The summary of the Group’s results and assets and
liabilities in the last five financial years (for the year ended
31 December) are set out on page 80 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REPURCHASE OF
SECURITIES

During the year under review, the Company repurchased a
total of 21,860,000 (2017: 95,284,000) shares listed on the
Stock Exchange by way of acquisition from the market. The
total consideration paid was approximately HKD7,992,000,
including related expenses. The details are as follows:
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Approximate

aggregate

consideration

(HKD)

Number Highest price Lowest price (excluding

of shares per share per share related

repurchased paid (HKD) paid (HKD) expenses)

BOBKE

[EARE=7)) eENER (BH)

B R BER REER (~EHE

Date of repurchase of shares H&[E %3 B HA A (B (B HHEAER)
26 April 2018 20184 H26H 500,000 0.365 0365 182,500
27 April 2018 2018F4H27H 376,000 0.36 0.36 135,360
30 April 2018 201844 H30H 1,000,000 0.37 0.365 369,940
7 May 2018 2018%5H7H 364,000 0.36 0.36 131,040
8 May 2018 20185H8H 7,000,000 0.37 0.36 2,559,820
25 May 2018 201845H25H 1,324,000 0.38 0.38 503,120
12 June 2018 20186 H12H 812,000 0.38 0.38 308,560
15 June 2018 201856 15H 1,012,000 0.38 0.38 384,560
19 June 2018 20186 H19H 1,072,000 0.38 0.375 407,180
3 July 2018 201847 H3H 2,148,000 0.36 0.35 766,860
5 July 2018 201857 A5H 2,340,000 0.36 0.355 837,880
12 July 2018 20184 7H12H 1,308,000 0.35 0.35 457,800
18 July 2018 20184 7H18H 744,000 0.35 0.35 260,400
20 July 2018 201857 H20H 1,860,000 0.35 0.3% 651,000

All the above repurchased shares had been cancelled on
24 May 2018, 27 June 2018 and 26 July 2018, respectively.
The repurchases are in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole with a view to enhancing the net
assets value per share of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2018.

As of 31 December 2018, the issued share capital of the
Company was 4,662,666,959 shares (2017: 4,684,526,959
shares).
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
Share Award Scheme

On 25 March 2015, a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) was adopted by the Company to recognize
the contributions of certain participants to the Company
and to attract suitable personnel for the growth and further
development of the Company.

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by
the Board, the share award scheme shall be valid for a term
of ten (10) years commencing on the adoption date. The
Board may select any participants, other than any excluded
participant,
and determine the award amount for the purchase of the

for participation in the share award scheme

awarded shares to be awarded to the selected participants.
The Board is entitled to impose any conditions (including a
period of continued service within the Group), as it deems
appropriate in its absolute discretion with respect to the
entitlement of the selected participants to the awarded
shares. No consideration for the awarded shares is needed
to be paid by the selected participants to the Company. The
Board shall not make any further award of awarded shares
which will result in the nominal value of the shares awarded
by the Board under the share award scheme exceeding
10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
adoption date. The maximum number of shares which may
be awarded to a selected participant under the share award
scheme in a 12-month period shall not exceed 0.5% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the adoption date
or such number of shares as determined by the Board from
time to time.

The share award scheme shall terminate on the earlier of the
10th anniversary date of the adoption date or such date of
early termination (whichever is earlier) as determined by the
Board.

During the year under review, the Company granted
1,064,000 awarded shares to the employees of the Group (2
of them being the executive directors of the Company) on 16
April 2018. The closing price of the awarded shares of the
Company on the reference date was HKDO0.37. The vesting
date of the awarded shares was 20 April 2018. Details of the
grant of awarded shares are as follows:
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Number of
awarded shares

(share)

RENAR 1D

#E (R)

Independent third parties BIAE=H 500,000
Connected persons BREAL

— Mr. Huang Yonghua — EOKESLA 264,000

— Mr. Lee Shu Chung, Stan — R RELE 300,000

Total HE 1,064,000

Details of the share award scheme are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 25 March 2015 and
16 April 2018.

Share Option Scheme

At the annual general meeting held on 15 May 2015,
the share option scheme of the Company was adopted
conditionally. The share option scheme of the Company (the
“Share Option Scheme”) was adopted to grant options to
selected participants including but not limited to directors
and employees of the Group as incentives or rewards
for their contributions to the Group. Subject to any early
termination as may be determined by the Board, the Share
Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of ten
years commencing on the adoption date.

Under the Share Option Scheme, subject to the discretion
of the directors, there is no minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised. Each option
has a maximum valid period of 10 years after which the
option shall lapse. The total number of shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the options (including share
options exercised and outstanding) granted to the eligible
participants in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of
the shares in issue. The exercise price shall not be less than
the higher of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
on the date of offer; (ii) the average of the closing prices
per shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the
shares.
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Under the Share Option Scheme, the grantee shall accept
the option within ten days from the date of the offer to grant
the share option and pay HKD1.00 to the Company as
consideration for the grant upon acceptance of the option.

As of 31 December 2018, the issued share capital of the
Company was 4,662,666,959 shares, and there was no
option outstanding (as at 31 December 2017: nil).

DIRECTORS

The names of Directors during year 2018 are as follows:

Zhang Yuping, Huang Yonghua, Lee Shu Chung, Stan,
Cai Jianmin, Wong Kam Fai, William, Liu Xueling, Shi
Zhongyang, Chen Jun (resigned on 9 April 2018).

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the year
under review and as at the date of this report, none of the
Directors were considered to have any interests in any
business which competed or may compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group required to be
disclosed under the Listing Rules.

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Company has entered into service contracts with each
of the executive Directors, non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors for a term of three
years.

The Company did not enter into service contracts that
cannot be terminated without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation) within one year.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no Director has
entered into any service agreement with any member of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE

A directors’ and officers’ liability insurance is in place to
protect the Directors and officers of the Group against any
potential liability arising from the Group’s activities which
such Directors and officers may be held liable.

Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

RIZFBERAEFTE  ARATRARBAREBER
RELONBHEF T BRER  RNERBRE
B ARABEEE1.00T TARFERE
ABRENR T 2RE -

HE_ZT—N\F+-_A=+—H81 ' xRFE
LT AN 54,662,666,9590% » HE [ ARITERE
e (—E—+F+_-_A=+—8: &)

EE
—T\FEADTNEEREMT

R\ mAKEHE EER S2RE-
2B2E - LG RE(ZZE-N\FEHANAE
)

EERNBRFRB 2 ERS

BRAFHEEIN BEFEAMBEARARSH
Hib BIEEERIASNEMERIERER
SEZEBERBFRAIRERBAHF 2 B H
BARE EMRVATRE 2 #x -

BEEZRBEN
ARFREHNTES  FRTEERBYIEH
TEEIITERBAL - RE=F -

ARBRPRBRILAAR—FARNTRE (FREE
BR1ESN) MR LEMRBEL -

BRAFREEIN EEHEELAKEEMXE
N BRI MAEFRIBRFS B E

EEzEERE
ARFAERREFRERMEECRE - U
FAEBEFRERMETRBEARETRS

SEEBMES < BHEEEMRRSRERE -



DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS AND THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER’S MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

During the year, save as disclosed under the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” in this annual report
and related party transactions disclosed in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements, there was no transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
during the year under review.

Save as described in this annual report, during the year
under review, there was no contract of significance
between the Company or its subsidiaries and the controlling
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID DIRECTORS/
EMPLOYEES

Details of remuneration of the Directors made in accordance
with specific basis during the year under review are set out
in note 7 to the financial statements.

Details of remuneration of the five highest paid individuals
during the year under review are set out in note 8 to the
financial statements.

Details of remuneration of the senior management during the
year under review are set out in note 28(a) to the financial
statements.

The remuneration policies of the Group are as follows:

- The amount of remuneration for the Directors or the
employees is determined according to their relevant
experience, responsibilities, workload and years of
service in the Group;

- The non-monetary benefits are determined by the
Board and are provided in the remuneration package
of the Directors or the employees;

- The Directors and the eligible employees shall
be granted with options or awarded shares of the
Company as determined by the Board to be part of
their remuneration package.
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EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Details of the Group’s employee retirement benefit scheme
are set out in note 22 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY OF
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2018, the interests or short positions of
each of the Directors and chief executives in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”)) which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO; or were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the “SFO” (including interests or short
positions which they are deemed or taken to have under
such provisions of the SFO); and were required pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers of the Listing Rules to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

EERKERGE
AEBRIKEF 8 2 F 153 R B 2 B 753k
=KMsx22 o
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Approximate

Percentage

Name of Director Nature of Interest Number of shares (Note 2)
HEH

EEHSE ERME RoEE (Hez2)
Mr. Zhang Yuping Interest of Controlled Corporation and 1,685,556,501 (L) 34.01%

Beneficial Owner (Note 1)

oK 30 o A THEEER R EREA A (fE1) 1,585,556,501 (L) 34.01%
Mr. Huang Yonghua Beneficial Owner 52,172,800 (L) 1.12%
FOKEESE BEmEAA 52,172,800 (L) 1.12%
Mr. Lee Shu Chung, Stan Beneficial Owner 1,920,000 (L) 0.04%
A EmEEA 1,920,000 (L) 0.04%
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The letter “L” denotes the person’s long positions in the Shares.

Note 1: Mr. Zhang Yuping owned 100% of the issued share
capital of Best Growth International Limited (“Best
Growth”), which in turn held 1,505,832,901 shares of
the Company as at 31 December 2018. During the
year under review, Mr. Zhang Yuping held 79,723,600
shares of the Company under his name. Accordingly,
Mr. Zhang Yuping held 1,585,556,501 shares of the
Company in aggregate, representing 34.01% of the
issued share capital.

Note 2: Shareholding percentage is based on 4,662,666,959
issued shares of the Company as at 31 December
2018.

Save as disclosed above, as far as the Directors and chief
executives of the Company were aware, as at 31 December
2018, none of the Directors and chief executives had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO; or were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they are deemed or taken to have under such provisions of
the SFO); and were required pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers of the
Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY

As far as the directors were aware, as at 31 December 2018,
the interests or short positions of the persons in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Approximate
Percentage
(Note 5)
Name of Shareholders Number of shares HEDH
R # RMHEE (H1a£5)
Best Growth (Note 1) 1,505,832,901 (L) 32.30%
I (HraE1)
Mr. Zhang Yuping (Note 1) 1,5685,556,501 (L) 34.01%
SIS (ATaE)
Prestige Rich Holdings Limited (Note 2) (#/7%2) 451,968,000 (L) 9.69%
Always Profit Development Limited (Note 2) (#1i#2) 756,000 (L) 0.02%
Zhang Jinbing (Note 2) 452,968,000 (L) 9.71%
ke (AiF2)
The Swatch Group (Hong Kong) Limited (Note 3) (A7:£3) 437,800,000 (L) 9.39%
The Swatch Group Limited (Note 3) (7:#3) 437,800,000 (L) 9.39%
LVMH Watches & Jewelry Hong Kong Limited (Note 4) (/#i#4) 20,354,400 (L) 0.44%
TAG Heuer SA (Note 4) (H7:£4) 20,354,400 (L) 0.44%
TAG Heuer International SA (Note 4) (K1it4) 20,354,400 (L) 0.44%
LVMH Asia Pacific Limited (Note 4) (41i£4) 258,062,000 (L) 5.53%
Sofidiv SAS (Note 4) (f1it4) 278,416,400 (L) 5.97%
LVMH Moet Hennessy Louis Vuitton SE 278,416,400 (L) 5.97%

(formerly known as LVMH SA) (Note 4) (f15#4)

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long positions in the Shares. LI REXBEALRRNFEZHE -

Note 1: Mr. Zhang Yuping owned 100% of the issued share M/aF7 sk FEEHEAEEBEBRER QA ([1E

capital of Best Growth International Limited (“Best #1)100%8 B FHTRA - &z 2D AR
Growth”), which in turn held 1,505,832,901 shares of —_E—-N\FE+_A=+—HBHEEZXAA
the Company as at 31 December 2018. During the 1,505,832,901/k 7 : 3K % F 5 4 7 Bl BE R
period under review, Mr. Zhang Yuping held 79,723,600 NIAEARZEFFE AR A RKN79,723,600
shares of the Company under his name. Accordingly, et RBMFELEEERBFTELARAR
Mr. Zhang Yuping held 1,585,556,501 shares of the 1£1,585,556,5010% * 15 B % 17 K K &
Company in aggregate, representing 34.01% of the 34.01% °

issued share capital.
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Note 2: According to the relevant information, among these
452,968,000 shares, 451,968,000 shares were held
and registered in the name of Prestige Rich Holdings
Limited; 756,000 shares were held and registered in
the name of Always Profit Development Limited; and
244,000 shares were held and registered in the name
of Mr. Zhang Jinbing. Mr. Zhang Jinbing held 100%
interest in each of Prestige Rich Holdings Limited and
Always Profit Development Limited.

Note 3: These 437,800,000 shares were held in the name of
and registered in the capacity of The Swatch Group
(Hong Kong) Limited as a beneficial owner. The entire
issued share capital of The Swatch Group (Hong Kong)
Limited was beneficially owned by The Swatch Group
Limited. The Swatch Group Limited was taken to be
interested in all the shares held by The Swatch Group
(Hong Kong) Limited under the SFO.

Note 4: Among these 278,416,400 shares, 20,354,400 shares
were held and registered in the name of LVMH Watches
& Jewelry Hong Kong Limited and 258,062,000 shares
were held and registered in the name of LVMH Asia
Pacific Limited. The entire interest of LVMH Watches
& Jewelry Hong Kong Limited was owned by TAG
Heuer SA, and TAG Heuer International SA beneficially
owned 100% interest in TAG Heuer SA. Sofidiv SAS
beneficially owned 100% interest in each of TAG Heuer
International SA and LVMH Asia Pacific Limited. LVMH
Moet Hennessy Louis Vuitton SE (formerly known as
LVMH SA) owned 100% interest in Sofidiv SAS.

Note 5: Shareholding percentage is based on 4,662,666,959
issued shares of the Company as at 31 December
2018.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the
Company had not been notified by any persons, other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company, who had
any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which were required to be recorded
in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 336
of the SFO.
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ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Equity-Linked
Agreements” above, at no time during the 12 months ended
31 December 2018 was the Group, holding company of the
Company or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
which enabled the Directors (including their respective
spouses or children under 18 years of age) to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or subsisting during the year
under review.

SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS WITH
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS OR ITS
SUBSIDIARIES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there had been
no contract or service contract of significance between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and controlling
shareholders of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to ensuring high standards of
corporate governance practices. Corporate governance
report of the Company is set out on pages 48 to 59 of this
annual report.

ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The environment is the foundation for corporate presence
and development. For many years, the Company has
made environmental protection one of its top corporate
governance priorities. The Group implements a series
of mechanisms and measures relating to environmental
management and energy conservation in its daily operations
to strive to protect the environment and conserve energy,
with a view to promoting harmonious development in
terms of economic, social and ecological benefits, which
has achieved significant results. Environment, social and
governance report of the Company is set out on pages 60 to
79 of this annual report.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group has always been committed to advocating
the “people-oriented” core culture and strives to practice
an entrepreneurial spirit of “mutual respect, shouldering
responsibility, close collaboration and ongoing innovations”.
As our business moves forward, we will continue to utilise
this philosophy as the cornerstone of both our corporate
management and corporate social responsibility (CSR)
policies. As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total
of 1,846 (2017: 1,888) employees in Mainland China, Hong

Kong, Macau, Taiwan and Malaysia.

The Group has always been committed to developing and
adding value to human resources. The Group implements
a standard recruitment system and allocates resources
to various kinds of training for our managers, front-line
service staff and maintenance technicians, which covers,
among others, the art of management, sales skills, brand
knowledge and service awareness, with an aim of enhancing
knowledge, marketing skills and service capabilities of our
staff. The Group also works with our brand suppliers to
provide front-line service staff and maintenance technicians
with regular training in brand knowledge and maintenance
expertise.

The Group offers a competitive remuneration package and
various incentives to all employees, as well as regularly
reviews the structure of relevant mechanisms to cope with
corporate development needs. Options and awarded shares
are granted to the general management staff and associates
of the Company in recognition of their contributions to
the Group and as an incentive for their greater future
commitment.

Meanwhile, the Group also offers various

other benefits to its employees, including pension plans,
mandatory provident fund scheme,

housing and meal allowances.

insurance scheme,

Under a solid human resource assurance system, the
Group is enabled to create a high level of harmony among
employees of different nationalities and cultural backgrounds
under one shared vision. The Group has a number of senior
salespersons and repair technicians.

REPORT OF DIRECTORS
B HRE

BEES -  HAEEREF ZBE

AEE-BEE[UASK] B NMEE B
BITMEEBE - BRAE  BERIE - TH
BIET VB ERBE  WAMERCEEENE
THEEENREER - R_T—-/\F+A

=+—H ' AEEEFRBER BR . 5&
ERPEIn S HEEH1,846 B E L (Z B — 4 -

1,8884) °

AEB-BEERANERNFARMEE  KF
RELWBERER  AAFEMAEEASR
ATARARIE A B R e Rt A BB REBIIRA

BR RELBEEREENEN  HERD
R AR R R B RS MR E AMEKE
SHRELREEN  YERBEHRERSE

FARMEE A RIRBEA B REERMABETT
i FEE N o e M Al 2 5530 o

AEERTABHRF HDOFH MR SERBK
w3 R BAe AT AR B B 2R B8 - DAE N )R
EEREBERNFTE - AKEARARR—REE
EBRBBALZELRBER KBRS - UK
THUSEMENER  XHBESKRELHN
=B - AF ARETREEREEEZRER
M- BREERAESHNRTE RES - RRG
g FEEREREME -

ERRENANERRERR  AEEE TR
BENEERMGE  TRECEEZENETHE
F—FS TaRIE AKEEHEAZESRHE
EANB RGETED -

FRAERA RAT 28— )\E4EHR



REPORT OF DIRECTORS

B HRE

The Group has maintained good and well-coordinated
partnerships with brand suppliers and various retailers.
Backed by our partners’ unwavering support, our operations
have been able to achieve mutually beneficial, harmonious
and win-win development. During the year under review,
there was no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its suppliers and customers. For further details
of relationships between the Company and its employees,
suppliers and customers, please refer to the Company’s
environment, social and governance report set out on pages
60 to 79 of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and revenue for the year
under review, attributable to the Group’s major suppliers’
purchases and customers’ sales respectively, are as follows:

AEEBERRBEREREANLRZTER
ZHARFNEIERE SR TEIEZEKR
N MEREEERN - MEHRF - O
BFEEAR  AREEREAHERREF ZHBE
ERBRBRZMUG - ARBIEES - HER
REFPZBENE—TFHE  FE2EARAH
REAFBECOREZETIAEZRE  HERER
BE -

FEEFRMHAER
REBEER  KAXEBEEHEFERES
2B ESBIEMEERRATA LT

Purchase £RHE

— the largest supplier — A ER

— five largest suppliers combined — ARHERMEE
Sales HE

— the largest customer —mARP

— five largest customers combined —AREFAEE

30%
54%

12%
24%

The Swatch Group Limited, and LVMH Group through
their respective subsidiaries, constituted two of the five
largest suppliers. Save as disclosed above, none of the
Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to
the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the above major
suppliers or customers.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year under review, the Company renewed a
continuing connected transaction. On 5 March 2018, the
Company and Xinyu Group (a wholly-owned company of
Mr. Zhang Yuping, the chairman and an executive director
of the Company) entered into a renewal agreement of the
master services agreement. Pursuant to the master services
agreement, the Group provided the shop design and
decoration services to Xinyu Group and its subsidiaries since
1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018 with a cap of RMB17
million while the actual amount incurred was RMB16.96
million.
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The above continuing connected transaction is in consistent
with the Group’s past business and operation and the
Company (for itself and on behalf its subsidiaries) entered
into the master services agreement, which is in the interests
of the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

Such continuing connected transaction is subject to
announcement, annual review and annual reporting
requirements but exempts from the circular (including
independent financial advice) and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements and has been annually
reviewed by independent non-executive Directors. The
independent non-executive Directors confirm that the above
continuing connected transaction is: (a) entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (b)
entered into on normal commercial terms or more favorable
terms; and (c) entered into according to the agreement
of the relevant transaction with fair and reasonable terms,
which is in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole.

The Board has engaged the auditor of the Company to
carry out a review of the continuing connected transaction
of the Group in accordance with Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements other than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Pursuant to rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules, the auditor has confirmed that: (a) nothing has come
to its attention that causes it to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transaction has not been approved
by the Board; (b) for transaction involving the provision
of goods or services by the Group, nothing has come to
its attention that causes it to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transaction was not, in all material
respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Group; (c) nothing has come to its attention that causes
it to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transaction was not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transaction; and (d) with respect to the aggregate amount
of the continuing connected transaction, nothing has come
to its attention that causes it to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transaction has exceeded the annual
cap as set by the Company.
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DONATIONS

During the year, the charitable and other donations made by
the Group amounted to approximately RMB744,000 (2017:
approximately RMB641,000).

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and to the best of the Directors’ knowledge, as
at the date of this annual report, there was a sufficient
prescribed public float of the issued shares of the Company
under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The financial statements of the Company for the year under
review have been audited by KPMG who will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Since 9 July 2004, being the date of incorporation of the
Company, there have been no changes in our auditors.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members will be closed from Tuesday, 7 May
2019 to Friday, 10 May 2019 (both days inclusive) to confirm
the members on the register of members who are eligible to
attend and vote at the annual general meeting. In order to
establish entitlements to attending and voting at the annual
general meeting, all transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 6 May 2019.

The register of members will be closed from Friday, 17 May
2019 to Tuesday, 21 May 2019 (both days inclusive) to
confirm the members on the register of members who are
entitled to the proposed final dividend. In order to establish
entitlements to the proposed final dividend, all transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday,
16 May 2019.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Yuping (alias Cheung Yu ping) (5&%1F), aged 58,
is the chairman and an executive Director of the Company.
He is the founder of the Group and is in charge of the
Group’s strategic development and overall management.
He has over 30 years of management experience in mid-
to-high-end internationally renowned watches and other
consumer goods distribution industry. Mr. Zhang is also the
director of Best Growth International Limited, the substantial
shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Huang Yonghua (7K ZE), aged 48, is an executive Director.
He joined the Group in 2001 and is in charge of the Group’s
operational supervision and customer service. Mr. Huang
has over 20 years of experience in the watch distribution
industry and in management.

Mr. Lee Shu Chung, Stan (Z#8), aged 59, is an executive
Director. He joined the Group in 2007 and is responsible
for the Group’s business including retail and watch related
manufacturing segment. He obtained a Bachelor of Arts
degree and has pursued further studies in Business
Administration. He has nearly 30 years of experience in
watch manufacturing and distribution.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Shi Zhongyang ($£{#F%), aged 44, is a non-executive
Director. Mr. Shi graduated from Nanjing University in the
PRC and University of Goetting in Germany with a Master’'s
Degree in Law. Mr. Shi joined The Swatch Group Limited
in 2000 and joined the Group in 2006. He is currently a
legal counsel of the legal department of The Swatch Group
Limited.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cai Jianmin (332R), aged 75, is an independent non-
executive Director. He graduated from the industrial accounting
faculty (T2 25+ K) of Shanghai College of Finance and Economics
(BB 4 ET). Mr. Cai holds a Certificate for Professional
Accountants (Z&FTEEEKFESE) in the PRC. He was senior
financial management for various companies including
Shanghai Hualian (Group) (_E/&ZEHi(%E)). Mr. Cai joined
the Group in 2005.
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Mr. Wong Kam Fai, William (Z=i%#), aged 59, is an independent
non-executive Director. He graduated from University
of Edinburgh, Scotland with a Bachelor's Degree and a
Doctorate Degree in Electrical Engineering. Mr. Wong
is currently a professor in the Department of Systems
Engineering and Engineering Management in The Chinese
University of Hong Kong and a member of the 13th national
committee of CPPCC. He obtained the qualification as a
Chartered Engineer (CEng) in 1991, and is now a member
of the Institute of Electrical Engineers and a professional
member of the Association of Computing Machinery. Mr.
Wong joined the Group in 2005.

Mr. Liu Xueling (ZI225), aged 61, is an independent non-executive
Director. He graduated from East China Normal University in
Shanghai with a Doctorate Degree in History. At present, he
is a senior lawyer in Shanghai Tongyan Law Firm (_E/&mi@
WEEME5FT). He joined the Group in 2007. He is currently
an independent director of Shanghai Qiangsheng Holding
Co., Ltd. (listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock
code: 600662) and Shanghai Yimin Commercial Group Co.,
Ltd. (listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code:
600824).

Senior Management

Ms. Tan Li (f4B8), aged 54, is the vice president and secretary
to the Board and is in charge of the Board office and human
resources of the Group. Ms. Tan graduated from Nanjing
Normal University (F R RI#3RE2) with a Master of Arts degree.
She joined the Group in 2001. Before joining the Group, Ms.
Tan taught at the branch colleges of Peking University in
China.

Mr. Ng Man Wai ((232{&), aged 48, is the company secretary
and financial controller of the Company. Mr. Ng graduated
from the University of Toronto with a Bachelor’'s Degree
in Commerce. He joined the Group in 2004. Mr. Ng is a
fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
(ACCA) and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (HKICPA).
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DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ON THE
WEBSITES OF THE COMPANY AND THE
STOCK EXCHANGE

An annual report for the year ended 31 December 2018
containing all the information required by Appendix 16 to the
Listing Rules will be dispatched to the shareholders of the
Company and published on the website of the Company and
the website of the Stock Exchange in due course.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors would like to take this opportunity to
express our sincere thanks to all the shareholders for their
continuous support and to all our staff for their dedication
and contribution to the Group during the year under review.

GENERAL INFORMATION

As at the date of this report, the executive directors are Mr.
Zhang Yuping (Chairman), Mr. Huang Yonghua and Mr.
Lee Shu Chung, Stan; the non-executive director is Mr. Shi
Zhongyang, and the independent non-executive directors
are Mr. Cai Jianmin, Mr. Wong Kam Fai, William and Mr. Liu
Xueling.

By order of the Board
Zhang Yuping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2019
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

o Sk

INTRODUCTION

Since its establishment, the Company has been committed
to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance
practice to ensure transparency of the Group’s management,
so that the long term development of our shareholders,
customers, employees as well as the Group can be
safeguarded. The Group has established the Board, an audit
committee, a remuneration committee and a nomination
committee that are up to the requirements as being diligent,
accountable and professional. KPMG has been appointed

as the Group’s external auditors.

Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code

The Company has adopted the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The Directors are of the opinion that the
Company had complied with the Corporate Governance
Code except for a deviation from provision A.2.1 during the
year under review. Given the existing corporate structure,
the roles of the chairman and chief executive have not
been separated, and both are performed by Mr.
Yuping. Although the roles and duties of the chairman and

Zhang

chief executive officer have been performed by the same
individual,
consultation with the Board and, where applicable, by the
Board. There are three independent non-executive Directors
in the Board. All of them possess adequate independence
and therefore the Board considers that the Company
has achieved balance of power and provided sufficient

all major decisions would only be made after

assurance for scientific decision-making.

Composition of the Board

To maintain a high level of independence and objectivity in
decision making, and to exercise its power of supervising
the management of the Group in a comprehensive and
equitable manner, the Board of the Group comprises three
executive Directors (Messrs. Zhang Yuping (Chairman of
the Group), Huang Yonghua and Lee Shu Chung, Stan),
one non-executive Director (Mr. Shi Zhongyang) and three
independent non-executive Directors (Messrs. Cai Jianmin,
Wong Kam Fai, William and Liu Xueling).
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To ensure the Board operates in an independent and
accountable manner, the three executive Directors have
been assigned with different responsibilities within our
operation. Mr. Zhang Yuping, the Chairman, is in charge of
the Group’s overall management and strategic development,
while Mr. Lee Shu Chung, Stan is in charge of the overall
business operation of the Group, and Mr. Huang Yonghua is
responsible for coordination and supervision.

The three independent non-executive Directors have
professional expertise and extensive experience in the
areas of accounting, economics, law, computing control and
management, and business administration, respectively.
They can adequately act for the benefits of our shareholders.
Their terms of office are as follows:

Cai Jianmin: 26/9/2017-25/9/2020;
Wong Kam Fai, William: 26/9/2017-25/9/2020;
Liu Xueling: 01/6/2016-31/5/2019.

The one non-executive Director has professional expertise
and extensive experience in the areas of law and business
management. He can offer supervision to the Company’s
daily operation, and provide corresponding opinions and
recommendations in a timely manner, which is beneficial
to the standardised operation of the Company and the
safeguarding of the interests of our shareholders. His term
of office is as follows:

Shi Zhongyang: 15/2/2018-14/2/2021.

Duties of the Board

The Board of the Company is accountable to the general
meetings and performs the following major duties: report
duties to the general meetings; execute the resolutions
of the general meetings; determine investment solutions
and profit distribution solutions of the Company; formulate
solutions as to increase or decrease of the registered capital
of the Company; prepare plans in respect of the split-up,
consolidation, alteration and dissolution of the Company;
appoint, dismiss the general manager of the Company and
determine his or her remuneration.
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In respect of the corporate governance functions, during
the year under review, the Board performed corporate
governance duties in accordance with the terms of
reference. To be specific, the Board mainly performed the
following corporate governance duties during the year under

review:

° To review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

° To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

o To review and monitor the Company’s policies and

practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

° To review and monitor the code of conduct applicable
to Directors and employees; and

° To review the Company’s compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

Members of the Board are provided with appropriate
and sufficient information in a timely manner for their
understanding of the latest developments of the Group,
which in turn supports the discharge of their duties.

The management of the Company is accountable to the
Board and performs the following major duties: report duties
to the Board; execute the resolutions of the Board; and
complete all the tasks assigned by the Board.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Group has established effective risk management and
internal control systems to provide reasonable (though not
absolute) assurance against material misstatement or loss
and to manage (rather than eliminate) risks of failing to
achieve business objectives. The Board shall be responsible
for the risk management and internal control systems and
reviewing their effectiveness.
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In order to ensure the interests of our shareholders,
the Group established an enterprise risk management
framework to provide top-down and bottom-up approaches
to identify, assess, mitigate and monitor key risks in a
proactive and structured manner. The Group established
departments dedicated to the supervision and risk control of
finance and business operation including an internal audit
department. Such departments set up annual internal audit
plan and are responsible for performing daily and special
internal control procedures in aspects relating to business
operation, financial reporting and compliance control and in
accordance with the targets set by the senior management,
which includes conducting audits and examination of
all aspects and at all departments once or twice a year,
so as to enhance internal control and ensure the sound
development of the enterprise. Such departments will report
the audits and examinations results to the audit committee
and the Board for them to assess the internal control of the
Company and the effectiveness of risk management, any
significant failing or weaknesses in internal control, and to
take necessary actions promptly to remedy any significant
failings or weaknesses. If necessary, such departments
will follow up regularly on remedial actions in response to
significant internal control failings or weaknesses.

The Company has established disclosure mechanism
regarding the procedures of proper information disclosure
to ensure inside information remains confidential until the
disclosure of such information is appropriately approved,
and the dissemination of such information is efficiently and
consistently made.

The audit committee and the Board have reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Group
and completed the annual review on the risk management
and internal control systems (including their effectiveness).
Based on the reviews made by independent review
organisation and the Group’s self-assessment of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group,
the Group considers that, these systems are effective and
adequate, and will continue to review the effectiveness of
these systems as well as to further improve the internal
administration and control systems of the Company if
required.
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ATTENDANCE OF THE DIRECTORS AT THE
MEETINGS

EEMNERHLERER

In 2018, a total of five full Board meetings were held by the RZ-ZZE—/\F AR RHEBAAIEEESS
Company. Further, an annual general meeting was held. The & ' ZEART —ARFREFAE - SEFHFE
attendance of the Directors at the meetings was as follows: BT
Frequency of
Frequency of attendance
attendance at the annual
at the Board Rate of general Rate of
meetings  attendance  Remarks meeting  attendance  Remarks
RRBF
- A&
Name ®E HERE HEE R HEE A
Zhang Yuping GRS 4 80%  Abstained 1 100%
B
Huang Yonghua Tk 5 100% 1 100%
Lee Shu Chung, Stan ~ Zis 5 100% 1 100%
Cai Jianmin BER 5 100% 1 100%
Shi Zhongyang Bl 5 100% 0 0 By proxy
BT
Chen Jun = 2 100%  Resigned on 0 0 Resigned on
9 April 2018 9 April 2018
201854 A9BREHE 201854 A9BEHE
Wong Kam Fai, William 458 5 100% 1 100%
Liu Xueling e 5 100% 1 100%

Members of the Board are provided with appropriate
and sufficient information in a timely manner for their
understanding of the latest developments of the Group,
which in turn supports the discharge of their duties.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed Director will be given an introductory
session so as to ensure that he/she will gain appropriate
understanding of the Group’s business and of his/her duties
and responsibilities under the Listing Rules and the relevant
statutory and regulatory requirements. The Company
provides regular updates on the business development of
the Group. The Directors are continually updated on the
latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable statutory requirements to ensure compliance with
and upkeep of good corporate governance practices.
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The Directors are committed to complying with the
requirements under provision A.6.5 of the Corporate
Governance Code on Directors’ training so as to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. During the year under review, the Directors of the
Company attended relevant training in accordance with the
Listing Rules and provided the relevant records of training to
the Company. According to the records, details of directors’
attendance at the training sessions during the year under
review are as follows:

Updates on corporate
governance, laws and
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BIIZER  MERRERAEFSHELABR
HENER - EFER - AARESRERE
MARA ) BGET T HRBEY - XERAREE
HHEBEIIRCE - REBLE UTREEFER
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Accounting/financial/
management and other

regulations professional expertise
g5t 8% EER
BRER - EOERERN HihH ¥R
Seminar/ Seminar/
Material training Material training
reading attending reading attending
SHEEE SEEE
Name e ERBIE =3 ERBE =3
Zhang Yuping R 30 v v/ v/ 4
Huang Yonghua oK EE 4 v v v
Lee Shu Chung, Stan R v v 7 v/
Shi Zhongyang SR v v/ v v
Cai Jianmin ZER v v v/ v
Wong Kam Fai, William = iR e v v/ 4 4
Liu Xueling 2BE v/ v/ v/ v/
INDEPENDENCE OF THE BOARD EEgRUM

The Board has received confirmation from all independent
Directors regarding their independence made in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considers that
all current independent Directors have met the requirements
of the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
remained independent.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Board had adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the Company’s code for
securities transactions by its Directors. Following specific
enquiry made by the Company with all Directors, the
Company has confirmed that during the year under review,
all Directors had complied with the standard as required by
the above code.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial reports of the Group in accordance with the
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong Kong
Accounting Standards.

The statement of the auditors of the Company on their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out on pages 81 to 89 of this annual report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The audit fee to be received by the auditors of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2018 will be approximately
RMB1,625,000 (2017: approximately RMB2,179,000). During
the year under review, in addition to auditing services,
the Company’s auditors also provided the Group with
services such as taxation planning and due diligence. The
total non-auditing service fees were RMB529,000 (2017:
RMB119,917) in total.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee in
compliance with the Listing Rules. The audit committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Messrs. Cai Jianmin (Chairman), Wong Kam Fai,
William and Liu Xueling, with the primary duties of reviewing
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Company as well as material extraordinary items, internal
controls, financial reporting, risk management and control
matters, which included a review on the audited annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the
2018 interim report. According to the terms of reference
of the audit committee adopted and implemented by the
Company, the audit committee is responsible for reviewing
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Company as well as material extraordinary items, internal
controls and financial reporting matters, and the duties of
risk management and control.

During the year, the audit committee of the Company
held meetings on 20 March and 21 August 2018 to review
the annual and interim financial reports of the Group
respectively. All members of the committee namely, Messrs.
Cai Jianmin, Wong Kam Fai, William and Liu Xueling,
attended the meetings.

The audit opinions from the audit committee in respect of

the Group’s financial report, risk management and control
for the year are summarised as follows:
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The 2018 financial and accounting report of the Company
is objective in the material aspects, and gives a fair view of
the financial position of the Company as at 31 December
2018 as well as the operating results and cash flow in 2018.
Faced with the prevailing macroeconomic instability and
the continuous downturn pressures, the Company managed
to turn losses into profits and deliver satisfactory results,
which are attributable to the able leadership of the Board
and the joint efforts of all employees, particularly our senior
management. Major financial indicators such as gross profit
of sales and finance costs have been significantly improved
compared to 2017, laying the foundation for the results of
the Company. In 2018, the Company also steadily pushed
forward its internal control that has proved to be successful.
Hopefully, the management of the Company will monitor
inventories and goodwill as appropriate.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee
in compliance with the Listing Rules. During the year
under review, the remuneration committee comprises three
Directors including Messrs. Liu Xueling (Chairman) and
Cai Jianmin, both of whom are independent non-executive
Directors, and Mr. Zhang Yuping, the Chairman and an
executive Director of the Group. The primary duties of
the remuneration committee are to review and determine
the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and other
compensation payable to Directors and senior management.

The remuneration committee held a total of two meetings
during the year to review matters related to the remuneration
structure of the Directors and senior management of the
Company, and implementation of share award scheme,
respectively. All members, namely Messrs. Liu Xueling, Cai
Jianmin and Zhang Yuping, attended the meeting.

According to the terms of reference of the remuneration
committee adopted by the Company, the remuneration
committee acts as a consultant regarding the remuneration
matters of the Directors and senior management of the
Company, while the Board retains the ultimate power to
approve the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SR IR

A \FEVBEHREEEATAER
CAARBMTARIZE—N\E+_A=+—
BHBERR  UEZT—N\FEHNELEKR
MREREMRR - EERZBLBELT+518
E - TIBOKENAFEET  RrgghE_%
—NFE—LABEAR BB TRINEELE =B
EEZENIHEAET  28BEBI KRS
LREBEOXRZ N THEGEH - HEEF -
MR AEEEMBEER S —LFRKAIE
Eot - AARIMEERAETER - —T—N
FRABMANET RS HEETREKK - &
NRAIEREHFEHENBETEENEE

YN
B

FMEES
ARFCBELTRIKIFMEZES - @B
FEA FHNZEShBUINTERZEE
TE(XER) ERRAEMKEIFERITE
ERBVPELE=REETEAKR - FHEZEENT
ZRR DB R BT A S B B AR A 5K - TE
AREMENTEERSREEENMES

AEE - FHEEeAABRAMREHE " D5l
BEZNREZFRSMNEEABFHERE K AE
REBSTREESHERER - 28KE (F2E
A BERERAENKBTEL) HF -

REARFCHEMANTHEZESRESRE - #
WEEeRAREERSREEABTFHER
EEEMAG EFSRREAUEEZRLS
REBEANBHMOZRESD -

FRAERA RAT 28— )\E4EHR



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SR IR

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee in
compliance with the Listing Rules. During the year under
review, the nomination committee comprises three Directors
including Mr. Zhang Yuping (Chairman), an executive
Director and the Chairman of the Group, and independent
non-executive Directors Messrs. Cai Jianmin and Liu
Xueling. The Company has adopted and implemented
the terms of reference of the nomination committee. The
nomination committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of
Directors and succession planning for the Board.

The nomination committee held one meeting during the
year to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board of the Company as well as retirement by rotation and
re-election of Directors. All members, namely Messrs. Zhang
Yuping, Cai Jianmin and Liu Xueling, attended the meeting.

SUMMARY OF BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

To improve the performance quality of the Company, the
Board has adopted the board diversity policy. The Board
believes that board member diversity can be achieved by
considering various factors, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, race,
professional experience, expertise, knowledge, term of
services and other talents. All Board appointments are
made with reference to the Company’s business models
and specific needs from time to time, and candidates will be
considered with due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board by objective business conditions. The nomination
committee will be mainly responsible for identifying suitable
and competent candidates for board members, and
considering such candidates in light of objective conditions.
As a part of the annual performance review for the efficiency
of the Board, considerations made by the nomination
committee will balance the skills and experience as required
by business targets of the Company with diversity factors.
To achieve board diversity, the nomination committee will
discuss and develop measurable objectives from time to
time, and propose the above to the Board for adoption and
implementation. Generally speaking, selection of candidates
by the nomination committee shall be based on a range of
diversity perspectives including but not limited to gender,
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age, cultural and educational background, race, professional
experience, expertise, knowledge and term of services.
However, the final decision will depend on the strengths of
candidates and their prospective contributions to the Board.
The Board may improve one or more diversified perspectives
from time to time, and measure the progress on such basis.
The nomination committee will review the policy from time to
time, including conducting assessments on the effectiveness
of the policy. The nomination committee will also discuss any
amendment that may be necessary, and submit amendment
proposals to the Board for approval.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ng Man Wai was appointed as the company secretary
of the Company in 2004. His biographical details are set out
in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management”. For the financial year ended 31 December
2018, Mr. Ng attended relevant professional training for
not less than 15 hours in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration payment of the Group’s directors and
senior management for the year ended 31 December 2018
falls within the following bands:
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RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS

How the Shareholders Convene Extraordinary General
Meeting and Make Recommendations at General Meetings

According to the articles of association of the Company,
any one or more members holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

The letter demanding the calling of an extraordinary general
meeting mentioned above shall be sent to the principal
office of the Company stating the Board or the company
secretary of the Company as the addressee.

How to Make Enquiry to the Board

Shareholders may send letters to the principal office of the
Company for any enquires stating the Board or the company
secretary of the Company as the addressee.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES ON THE ARTICLES
OF ASSOCIATION

During the year under review, there is no significant change
to the articles of association of the Company.
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INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company firmly believes the importance of effective
communication with the investment community and the
shareholders in attaining a high level of transparency in the
Group. Since its listing, the Group has maintained close
communications with the shareholders, mass media, analysts
and fund managers through various communication channels
such as one-on-one meetings, roadshows, seminars, press
conferences, press releases, telephone communications
and emails. The Company endeavours to provide accurate
and timely information to the investors, so as to enhance
the understanding of our investors about the status of the
sales of luxury watch and the production of renowned watch
accessories, as well as the business development strategy
and direction of the Group.

During the year under review, the Group’s management
proactively held regular and ad hoc meetings with different
analysts and investors, including the marketing campaigns
on investor relations in major investment centres including
Hong Kong and Singapore. In addition, the Group also
held roadshows in Hong Kong and other regions, taking
investors to visit our outlets in Hong Kong and factories
in Guangzhou, Shanghai and Dongguan. Through various
forms of communication, we helped the investors from
various countries and regions to have a timely and in-depth
understanding of the Group.

In the future, the Group will continue to maintain a close
relationship with investors and boost international investors’
understanding of the Group so as to enhance investors’
confidence in the Group.
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GROUP PHILOSOPHY

Following Hengdeli’s motto a hundred years ago and
believing that businesses exist as a part of society and
prosper along with it, the Group has been shouldering
social responsibility in terms of environmental protection,
environment quality management, resources conservation,
and talent development, all of which are contributing to the
Group’s healthy development.

As a prestigious retailer of internationally renowned watch
brands and manufacturers of watch accessories, Hengdeli
has always regarded corporate social responsibility as
an essential part of the Group’s activities, and attached
great importance to the benefits and relationships that its
corporate social responsibility actions generate among its
customers, employees, local communities, shareholders,
business partners and supervisory authorities. We are fully
aware that strengthening social responsibility is not only
crucial for Hengdeli’'s future development, but is also a
compelling obligation as a part of Hengdeli’s participation in
civil society.

Over the years, the Group has been concerning ourselves
with environmental protection and committed ourselves
to achieving an ecological balance as part of our efforts
towards becoming a green enterprise. We have been
maintaining integrity in our operations in providing safe,
quality products to customers, which has earned us
social credibility and made us a reliable company. We
have been attaching great importance to the talent of our
employees, and aimed at creating an environment that
offers a win-win development outcome for both employees
and the enterprise. The care of our employees’ working
conditions and career development has driven us to
create a welcoming, harmonious and mutually beneficial
corporate culture for employees, in which we share with
them the success brought by the company’s growth and
thus integrate individual, corporate and social values.
We have also been expanding our involvement in public
welfare activities, actively participating in a range of social
undertakings such as education and social welfare activities,
serving the community with sincerity and bringing new hope
to those in need. Hengdeli has been striving to establish
itself as a responsible and reliable company that customers,
employees, shareholders and society can trust, and one that
is committed to sustainable development.
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In 2018, as usual, Hengdeli enhanced its social corporate
responsibility activities and further integrated the concept
of social corporate responsibility into its daily operations.
We continued to provide safe, high quality products and
services to its customers, while also ensured the mutual
benefits and common development of customers, employees
and the society.

ENVIRONMENT

The environment is the foundation for corporate presence
and development. As people have deeper awareness of the
environment, they increasingly treat it as a resource. As the
wealth of nature and the material basis for the development
of production, the environment is one of the elements
of productivity. After the industrial revolution, machines
replaced manpower, and large-scale factory production
replaced manual operations in individual workshops.
However, people only focused on economic development
while ignoring the environmental protection. Seeking
economic development at the expense of the environment
has cost human beings a lot.

With the improvement of people’s awareness of
environmental protection, more national and industry laws
and regulations were introduced to regulate and deal with
environmental problems in various countries. For many
years, Hengdeli has made environmental protection one
of its top corporate governance priorities. The Group
implements a series of mechanisms and measures relating
to environmental management and energy conservation in
its daily operations aimed at protecting the environment and
conserving energy, with a view to promoting harmonious
balance and sustainable development in terms of economic,
social and ecological benefits.
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Pollutant Emissions

The Group’s industrial segment branches and subsidiaries
are all in strict compliance with national and local
regulations regarding the emissions of pollutant gas,
sewage and greenhouse gas, and disposal of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste produced in the production
process. To facilitate the effective implementation of
ISO14001 environmental management system, the Group
entered into contracts with relevant nationally recognized
professional industrial waste treatment companies for the
recycling of industrial wastes. The Group launched the
internal self-development and testing of the “water-based
paint replacing oil-based paint” solution in respect of
industrial coatings with the aim of replacing oil-based
paint currently in use gradually by water-based paint so
as to effectively reduce the emission of formaldehyde in
industrial coatings. By adding industrial sodium carbonate
and other treatment agents, the Group filtered, purified and
recycled the industrial wastewater to reduce the overall
sewage discharge. By absorbent carbon adsorption, the
Group also effectively reduced the dust contamination in
the production rooms. The Group is inspected regularly
by the Environmental Protection Bureau, and this year
the monitored results of all polluting emissions (including
sewage and gas) for each of the relevant factories passed
the annual inspection and met national standards, with no
incident of non-compliance.

In 2018, the emission of pollutant gas of the Group was as
follows:

23587

SETXRRED  FTRAABERETERRE
WwERHEEBEPEENER BK BER
BOBIBARBERETEREYREENHEER
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£ RTEIAKMERE S BN AR MR
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2017 2018
Type of pollutant emissions BmEE 20174 20184
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) (g) REEP(NOX) (52) N/A 1,029,728
Sulfur oxides (SOx) (g) e b (SOx) (&) 1,394 1,495
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In 2018, the main sources of the Group’s greenhouse gas

B - AL a R GHl
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emissions were industrial segment production, electricity T ZEMRMEE @ FE - HAHK » ArERSE ¢
consumption, office paper use, and company vehicles:
2017 2018
ltem =t 20174 20184
Total volume (tonnes CO2-eq) we (Zabixs =nE) 8,614 9,428
Density (tonnes CO2-eq/ ZE (&8s 28,
RMB one million revenue) B-BEEARBKE) 3.53 3.51

Emission of hazardous and non-hazardous waste is mainly

BEERYNEERENIREIESETIREE

of relevance to the Group’s industrial segment. The total T ZHRE  —ZF— N\FEHEKRDOT -
volume of waste emissions in 2018 was as follows:
Density (waste produced
Volume (tonnes) per sales unit)
RE (BHEEN
Type of pollutant emissions HEmiEsE = (W) FrEEMREEY)
2017 2018 2017 2018
20174 20184 20174 20184
Hazardous industrial waste IXBEEEEY 1,662 1,761 0.68 0.66
Non-hazardous industrial waste T ¥EEREZEY) 382 481 0.16 0.18

In 2017,
university in the UK on a project to explore the feasibility

the Group collaborated with a well-known

of transforming the existing sawdust waste from wood into
usable materials by mixing these waste with other materials.
During the year under review, we made a partial success in
the trial, demonstrating that the blended material achieved
satisfactory performance in effectively reducing the Group’s
industrial waste emissions. Next, the Group will further

examine its best production conditions and other aspects.
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Use of Resources

The Group actively promotes the concept of environmental
protection and to this end, implements various policies to
optimise its working environment, which emphasizes green
operations and green initiatives in the workplace. The
Group has adopted an eco-friendly approach to the interior
design of its office and retail outlets. Our open-plan designs
maximise use of outdoor natural light and shared light. As
far as possible, original furniture is retained, remodelled or
reinstated during renovation to make rational use of existing
resources and to reduce waste. To keep the retail outlets
bright, significant energy is consumed in lighting. To reduce
remarkably the consumption of electrical energy, the Group
gradually replaced the traditional high-energy-consuming
incandescent light bulbs in its retail outlets with
energy-saving LED light bulbs that enjoy higher efficiency
and longer life cycle.

In addition, the Group encourages employees to use public
transport for business trips, and constantly reviews and
makes adjustments on the inventory transfer process, so as
to reduce vehicle fuel consumption. A Group-wide lights-off
campaign has been launched to integrate environmental
awareness into the everyday work life of employees. The
Group’s retail outlets have replaced traditional packaging
with reusable bags, and replaced paper cups with glasses.
Our Hong Kong office regularly sends the coffee capsules
used in the tea room to the brand for recycling, and
encourages employees to raise awareness of recycling and
reuse. The Group has also formulated internal operational
guidelines containing detailed requirements regarding water
and electricity consumption and the operating hours and
temperature setting of air-conditioners. In particular, the
Group recycled water by using water curtain booth during
production process, which effectively saved water resources
for industrial use.
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An overview of resource consumption:

B - AL a R GHl

BRBEFEBAME

Total volume Density
g BE

2017 2018 2017 2018
Item £ 20174 2018%F 20174 20184
Electricity consumption (kWh) #E (TEE) 8,882,056 9,767,953 3,641.65 3,635.26
Office paper used (kg) WORE (TR) 2,124 1,462 0.87 0.54
Vehicle fuel (L) BETRE (AF) 93,271 97448 38.24 36.27
Gas (kg) R () 26,119 27,874 10.71 10.37
Water consumption (m3) K (SLHXK) 167,996 177,189 68.88 65.94
Packaging materials for finished goods (tonnes) — &lak B sk E (#7) 666 636 0.27 0.24

Environment and Natural Resources

The Group actively promotes the concept of environmental
protection and to this end, implements various policies
to optimise its working environment, which emphasizes
green operations and green initiatives in the workplace.
The Group implements a range of measures designed to
reduce emissions and cut down its consumption of energy
and natural resources, for example, printing office paper on
both sides and reusing waste paper, used envelopes and
kraft envelopes. Waste paper recycling bins are placed in
office to regularly recycle used paper and old newspapers
and magazines, and employees are encouraged to read
and send files electronically to reduce printing. The Group
actively embraces the concept of a “paperless” office and
puts it into practice, in which most office documents go
digital to save space and reduce paper use. Search and
use of documents, after classification and archiving, is
more efficient, and human errors in the process are avoided
effectively. This not only protects the environment, but also
reduces the administrative burden and the daily operating
costs. The Group uses an online office automation system to
improve its administrative functions, such as the filing and
approval processes for applications for business trips and
expenses reimbursement. It also uses the online platform
to publish the Group’s notices, policies and regulations to
share information, which not only improves work efficiency
but also significantly conserves energy. Meanwhile, the
use of innovative “cloud” technology facilitates the sharing
of data and seamless collaboration among different
departments across the offices, which maintains the
business continuity of the Group and improves its resource
efficiency and competitiveness.
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The Group aims for sustainable development by constantly
monitoring the environmental impact of its operations and
implementing appropriate measures to minimise harm to the
environment, while at the same time integrating the concepts
of conserving natural resources and reducing waste into the
corporate culture.

SOCIETY

Employment and Labour Practices

The Group has always regarded its employees as critically
valuable assets of corporate operation and development.
Under its “people-oriented” core culture, the Group strictly
complies with all local labour standards and relevant
employment regulations, and implements a standardized
recruitment system. Its goal is to provide its employees with
a healthy, safe and welcoming working environment and to
build a fair, just and transparent working platform so as to
create a promising development prospect for its employees.

Employment

The Group places great emphasis on upholding the basic
rights of its employees. It respects diversity in its employees
and adheres to the principle of equal opportunities in
employment, recruiting and cultivating talents regardless
of race, religion, ethnicity, nationality, gender or age. The
Group also continually revises its mechanism and structure
in different aspects in order to adapt to the development
of the enterprise and, at the same time, to benefit the
employees’ development. During the year under review,
the Group held a number of professional seminars and job
fairs, in the hope of enhancing the Company’s image and
strengthening the public’s understanding of the history and
culture of watches and clocks, in order to recruit outstanding

talents to join the Group.

The Group has adopted a comprehensive work assessment
management system, under which it regularly reviews its
recruitment system and its internal policy for grooming
talents so as to ensure transparency and to maintain fairness
and equality.
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The Group implements scientific remuneration management
and various other incentives, and regularly reviews its
remuneration packages and promotion opportunities for
different positions to guarantee their market competitiveness.
To attract talents, the Group also offers various welfare
incentives to its employees, including pension plans, MPF
plans, medical insurance schemes, and housing and meal
allowances.

Further, the Group grants share options to the general
management staff and associates of the Company in
recognition of their contributions to the Group, and as an
incentive encouraging initiative and good performance in the
workplace.

As of 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of 1,846
employees (2017: 1,888) in Mainland China, Hong Kong,
Macau, Taiwan and Malaysia shown as follows:
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No. of staff
EIgH
2017 2018
20174 20184
Hong Kong and Macau 75 B 193 202
Taiwan/Malaysia - - Liikr] 210 251
Accessories business, etc. REEXSE 1,485 1,393
Total PO 1,888 1,846
No. of staff
EIHH
2017 2018
20174 20184
Aged 18-25 18-255% 192 173
Aged 26-55 26-555% 1,657 1,621
Aged 56 or above 5688 A £ 39 52
Total #st 1,888 1,846
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No. of staff
EIZH
2017 2018
20174 20184
Male S 928 892
Female 18 960 954
Total At 1,888 1,846
No. of staff
BTHH
2017 2018
20174 20184
Full-time iy 1,867 1,827
Part-time Fe B 21 19
Total et 1,888 1,846

lts employees are among Hengdeli’s most valuable assets.
The Group places particular emphasis on employees’ sense
of belonging to the Company, and is committed to providing
them with a pleasant and harmonious working environment.
During the year under review, the Group relocated parts
of its offices to create a better working environment for
employees, in order to facilitate communication between
employees and improve their work efficiency.

In addition, the Group actively launches and implements
work that is favourable for building a harmonious relationship
between the enterprise and the labour as well as facilitating
the enterprise’s sound development, so as to care for
employees and strengthen their solidarity and their sense of
belonging to the Group.

During the year under review, the labour unions at different
levels organised various activities, such as holding monthly
employee birthday parties and holiday dinner parties,
and arranging employees’ participation in social sports
events. These activities enhanced employees’ physical and
psychological well-being and strengthened their sense of
belonging and overall team spirit.
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Health and Safety

The Group is deeply committed to its employees’ well-being
and organises regular health check-ups for them, as well as
providing various medical insurance schemes.

The Group maintains very high manufacturing safety
standards. To provide its employees with a safe and
comfortable working environment, the Group ensures it is in
strict compliance with all international labour standards and
the relevant laws of Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau,
Taiwan and Malaysia. It also implements internal guidelines
and policies on occupational safety for different working
conditions and positions to ensure the health and safety of
its employees. The Group purchases labour insurance for
its employees, equips each workplace with first aid kit with
simple first aid supplies, provides employees with training
courses and drills on manufacturing safety, fire and disaster
awareness at the Group’s industrial segment subsidiaries,
equips employees in the position facing occupational
hazards with protective gears in line with national and
industry standards, and checks whether they wear the gears
from time to time. The Group arranges regular occupational
disease checkups and maintains health surveillance
archives for its employees. The Group’s industrial segment
also conducts regular assessments of occupational hazards
in the workplace, and, based on the assessment reports
by third parties, improves the environment of workplace
through the transformation of system engineering facilities.
Guangzhou Artdeco Decorating and Packaging Co. Ltd.
even installed dust collection alarm system during the year
to provide a safer working environment for employees.
During the year under review, the Group had a very low
rate of work-related injuries and there were no cases of
work-related deaths.

Development and Training

Employee development drives the progress of a company.
While developing its business and safeguarding the basic
rights of its employees, the Group also provides a platform
for employees to develop their careers, which includes
offering a comprehensive learning and training system that
helps them develop quickly and strengthens their sense of
belonging. The Group formulates suitable training courses
according to the needs of its different departments and
businesses. It also implements an internal recruitment
system, in which employees can choose their career path
based on their interests and strengths.
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Every year, the Group offers comprehensive induction
training covering an overview of the Group’s business,
information about business partners, product knowledge,
corporate culture and core values and business-related
policies and laws to new recruits as well as pre-service
safety training for new recruits of factories to help them
integrate into the Hengdeli family.

The Group provides its frontline staff with both regular
(once a month) and one-off training programmes and is
committed to developing professional sales teams so as to
adapt to the increasingly specialised timepiece market and
the volatile environment. The training covers knowledge of
watches and watch brands, basic watch repair, customer
service skills, complaint handling skills, retail management,
retail sector analysis, retail-related laws and regulations,
oral Mandarin and English training and so forth. The Group
also arranged and invited employees to participate in
training and workshops organized by different companies
and institutions. The training covers a wide range of
topics, including reshaping the retail customer experience,
consultancy sales skills, e-retail and network security.
Training and other campaigns of various kinds held in each
branch and subsidiary of the Group during the year under
review enhanced communication, mutual trust and solidarity
and collaboration amongst employees holding different roles
in different regions. A new phase of strategic performance
management training was carried out during the year, in
which its participants were divided by their departments
into several groups. Participants combined the knowledge
they learned with their practical work, and made their own
strategic map from four dimensions including finance,
customer, internal processes and learning and growth.

The Group also provides its directors and senior managerial
staff with regular training, so as to maintain continuing
professional development and enhance their knowledge
and skills. The training includes regular updates on rules
for listed companies, and information about relevant laws
and regulations, corporate governance, network risk
and international accounting standards as well as risk
management accountability for directors.
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During the year under review, the average number of training
hours per person provided by the Group was as follows:

B - AL a R GHl

CEFEEAR  SEFHEIFHENT

Average number of hours

per person
AT

2017 2018

Type LWl 20174 2018%

Middle to senior management REEEEAE 17.5 13.6

Frontline staff —ET 10.6 15.9

Other employees HEmBE 6.1 14.2

Training by ranking REESERZE D
Number in each type Number of trainees Percentage of trainees
BERIAZ HhZAAH ZHABEDL

2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018
Type 55 201746 20184 20176 20184 20175 20186
Middle to senior management HEEEEAS 175 51 110 25 63% 49%
Frontline staff —fFET 1,644 1,391 953 783 58% 56%
Other employees Higa 69 404 16 310 23% 77%
Total @t 1,888 1,846 1,079 1,118 57% 61%
Labour Standards T HEE|

The Group has employees in Mainland China, Hong
Kong, Macau, Taiwan and Malaysia. The Group is in strict
compliance with international labour standards and all
relevant local labour and employment laws and regulations.
All of its employees and job applicants enjoy equal
opportunities and fair treatment.

The Group adopts a comprehensive work assessment
management system, and revises its recruitment system
and internal training policies on a regular basis to ensure
transparency and to maintain fairness and impartiality.

During the year under review, the Group was not involved
in any issues relating to child labour or forced labour. The
Group will continue to comply with the strict recruitment and
internal management system to prevent child labour and
forced labour.
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Operation Practices

As a prestigious retailer of internationally renowned watch
brands and manufacturers of watch accessories, the Group,
as always, cooperates closely with manufacturers and
suppliers to deliver safe, quality products to customers,
and is dedicated to maintaining a high level of industrial
production transparency and product responsibility.
Throughout its operations, the Group ensures that it
maintains a good social reputation by complying with
all national and regional anti-corruption and anti-bribery
policies.

Supply Chain Management

The Group implements an efficient supply chain
management system that optimises links between
manufacturers, suppliers and retail outlets, optimising the
allocation of social resources. Meanwhile, the Group realises
an effective link between production and sales as well
as a reasonable flow of logistics, information and capital
through an efficient information network, and delivers quality
products and considerate services to consumers in a timely
manner at reasonable prices.

The Group has maintained sound business relationships with
many world-renowned watch brand suppliers and engaged
in the distribution of over 50 internationally renowned brands
from four major brand suppliers including SWATCH Group,
LVMH Group, RICHEMONT Group and KERING Group and
other independent watchmakers, the places of origin of
which are mainly Switzerland.

The Group’s industrial segment subsidiaries have each
formulated an appropriate supplier code for raw materials.
Each factory has a detailed supplier survey, assessment
sheet, as well as a standardised supplier management
process and procurement control procedure. When selecting
a supplier for raw materials, an assessment on products
of suppliers will be carried out by the examination and
approval department of each factory according to various
criteria including relevant national certifications (such as
the ISO quality management system) for the Group’s final
approval. The Group also regularly evaluates each supplier’s
products in areas such as quality, pricing and environmental
protection. Those suppliers which do not meet the Group’s
standards will be disqualified.

Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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During the year under review, the Group was not aware of
any major non-compliance incidents or potential significant
adverse effects of any major suppliers in the aspects of
environmental protection, business ethics, employment and
labour practices.

Product Responsibility

The Group believes that providing quality products
and excellent after-sales service is a crucial part of its
successful corporate presence. The Group is engaged in the
distribution of more than 50 internationally renowned watch
brands. When it comes to selecting brands for distribution,
the Group prioritises the brand’s quality and after-sales
service, apart from its market demand. The Group has
maintained sound business relationships with suppliers of
some of the world’s truly premier brands, mainly including
the Swatch Group, the LVMH Group, the Richemont Group
and the Kering Group, etc. These brands implement strict
policies regarding production and sustainable development
and enjoy an extremely high international reputation, which
provides the Group with reliable, stable and quality product
sources and in turn helps guarantee the Group’s own
reputation.

The Group’s subsidiaries engaged in watch accessories
manufacturing carry out strict quality management in line
with national quality standards. The watch boxes and
other packaging products manufactured by factories of
Guangzhou Artdeco Decorating and Packaging Co. Ltd.
have all achieved national FSC and 1SO9001:2008 or
ISO9001:2015 certifications, and have also complied with
EU Regulation (EC) No. 1907/2006 (REACH).
year under review, none of the products sold or delivered

During the

by the Group was recalled on safety and health grounds.
However, customers may submit complaints, and the Group
will conduct an independent investigation and deal with it in
accordance with the internal guidelines.
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The Group attaches great importance to respecting
and safeguarding the rights of consumers. It is in strict
compliance with the regulations and laws relating to sale
of products to safeguard the interests of consumers.
The Group also fully complies with the provisions of the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance in collecting consumer
information and privacy protection. When collecting
customer information, the Group will provide a “Personal
Data Collection Statement” and explain to customers the
purpose of personal data collection. Hengdeli will not use
the personal data without the voluntary and express consent

of the relevant parties.

The Group has established and protected its intellectual
properties, including its trademarks and domain names.

Trademarks “Hengdeli” and “Elegant” have been applied
for registration or registered in Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan,
Malaysia, Thailand and other overseas jurisdictions in
respect of a number of categories. In addition, the Group’s
domain names are subject to continuous monitoring and

renewal upon expiry.

During the year under review, the Group was not aware of
any violations of the regulations governing the provision
and use of the Group’s products and services and had
significant influence on the Group, including product and
service information and labels, marketing communications
(advertising, marketing and sponsorship) and intellectual
property, etc.

“Cutting-edge technology, efficient management, and
considerate services” are the solemn commitments made
by the Group to consumers, providing customers with
assurance and confidence. Coupled with the continuing
training provided by brand suppliers to the Group’s technical
personnel, the human resources policy of recruiting talents
worldwide has ensured the Group to have its own elite
technicians and stay at the cutting edge of maintenance
expertise internationally. The Group has established a watch
repair service centre, service hotline and customer service
mailbox to provide customers with timely and comprehensive
watch repair and maintenance services, in order to strive for
excellence. The Group serves consumers with superior skills
and great enthusiasm.

Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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1. The Group organized outreach activities for employees
in November 2018.

2. The Shanghai subsidiary of the Group’s industrial
segment organized a badminton tournament for
employees.

3. The Group organized monthly birthday parties for
employees. Hengdeli grows together with our employees.

4. The Group organized Christmas parties and lucky
lotteries for employees to enjoy the festival.

5. In May 2018, the Guangzhou subsidiary of the Group’s
industrial segment organized an incentive tour to Xunliao
Bay for outstanding staff members.

6. Young Innovators Bazaar 2018 of “Project WeCan”, an
event the Group has sponsored for years.

7. Hengdeli granted “Project WeCan” scholarship to two
students, both of whom successfully admitted to the
University of Hong Kong in 2018, from the Po Leung Kuk
C W Chu College, which the Group has sponsored for
years.

8-9.Medal-winning teams in the category of team fancy
rope-skipping at the “2018 Elegant Cup Inter-School
Rope Skipping” sponsored by the Group, and live
performances from the Hong Kong Delegation Rope
Skipping team.

10. Hengdeli arranged student internship programs at the
branches of the Group in the “Career Exploration Day”

event.
Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Anti-Corruption

The Hengdeli Group is dedicated to establishing itself as a
trustworthy, law-abiding enterprise. The Group advocates
a work ethic that insists on compliance with law, integrity,
honesty and professional dedication, and bans any form
of acceptance of advantages or acts of bribery. Explicit
rules concerning employees’ professional integrity are
communicated through the employees’ guidebook, training
courses as well as guidelines, for example, on conflict of
interest, while the efficiency of the Group’s entire internal
management system is reviewed regularly. Channels
are also available for employees to report on internal
misconduct. The daily operations of the Group strictly
comply with established procedures; the internal audit
department audits each subsidiary regularly and reports
to the audit committee while implementing appropriate
measures to ensure all regulations are complied with.
Further, the Group also commissions third-party auditors to
carry out independent audits. All these measures effectively
promoted the implementation and the improvement of the
Group’s regulatory system. During the year under review,
there were no legal cases brought against the Group or
any of its employees for their corruption or associated
irregularities.

Investment in Community

As a corporate citizen in international watch retailing,
Hengdeli operates diligently and is actively involved
in community and public welfare activities, serving the
community, undertaking corporate social responsibilities
proactively and contributing to society through a variety of
welfare platforms with its own strength.

Since 2011, the Group’s subsidiary Elegant has been
taking part in “Project WeCan” initiated by The Wharf.
As of 2018, Elegant has been actively taking part in the
project in the form of donation and volunteer services
for seven consecutive years. The project is an on-going
school supporting initiative which demonstrates the spirit of
“business-in-community” and, through various activities and
academic and cultural exchanges, broadens the horizons of
students, enhances their self-confidence, and prepares them
with a solid foundation for entering the society in the future.
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During the year, Elegant again participated in the trade
fair of “Young Innovators Bazaar”, an annual large-scale
joint-school event hosted by “Project WeCan”. This year,
“Young Innovators Bazaar” was held in Plaza Hollywood,
Diamond Hill, Hong Kong from 19 to 21 January 2018, with
the theme being “Environmental Protection and Creativity”.
The students from 42 colleges conducted marketing
activities by operating fair stalls for three consecutive days
to get the experience of starting their own retail businesses
from scratch. During the event, Elegant sponsored Po Leung
Kuk C W Chu College with all efforts as usual. It organised
a corporate volunteer team with extensive experience to
help the students plan for the stall marketing, including how
to prepare business plans, conduct market analysis and
predict cost and profit, etc.

With the assistance and support in all aspects from
Elegant for many years, two students from the Po Leung
Kuk C W Chu College were successfully admitted to the
University of Hong Kong in 2018 and received “Project
WeCan” scholarship. During the year under review, Elegant
participated in the third phase of “Project WeCan” to support
schools. In addition to the many years of funding for Po
Leung Kuk C W Chu College, more resources were allocated
to support Caritas Ma On Shan Secondary School and a
team of volunteer staff was set up for assistance.

In order to promote mental and physical health development
of young people and stimulate the interest of young
people for sports, the Group has co-hosted the “Elegant
Cup Tournament” in Hong Kong for seven consecutive
years since 2012. By organizing different types of sports
competitions, the Group encouraged young people to raise
their awareness of physical and mental health development,
and at the same time created a platform for students from
different regions and schools to communicate and learn
from each other. During the year under review, the Group
held the “2018 Elegant Cup Inter-School Rope Skipping
Tournament” in December. The tournament was divided
into 14 groups of 5 categories in speed rope skipping and
fancy rope skipping. A total of 30 schools in Hong Kong
participated in the competition. The expenses of the whole
event were borne by Hengdeli Group. Hong Kong Rope
Skipping Federation and China assisted in organizing the
schedule for the competition and arranging volunteers.

Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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During the year, the Group also sponsored the 2018
Christmas Charity Fundraising Event co-hosted by the Hong
Kong Blood Cancer Fund and the Harbour City to participate
in the special lectures on “Teachers’ Development Days”
under “Project WeCan”and the interactive workshop of
“Career Exploration Day”.

OUTLOOK

Come rain or shine, we have been moving ahead through
ups and downs over the past years. In the future, we will
continue to uphold the principle of being responsible for our
customers, employees, shareholders and the society, and
will seek and capture opportunities to strive for a harmonious
development between the Company and the society, the
Company and the environment, as well as the Company and
all related parties to make our due contributions.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
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Year ended 31 December

BEtT-A=+T—-HLFE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
RESULTS ES —2-N\F ZT+F ZTF ZT-HF —TNWF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETRT ARBTT ARETT ARETT
Note (ii) Note (i) Note (i) Note (i)
FEE Cii) BsE (i) BEE (i) MIEE (i)
Revenue WA 2,687,248 2,439,022 12,334,151 13,302,724 14,764,370
Profit/(loss) before A& A
taxation (&18) 103,681 (23,858)  (50,496) 347,452 807,277
Income tax g H: (24,432)  (21,790) (225,042) (157.288)  (223.850)
Profit/(loss) for FEmA
the year (E18) 79,249 (165,080) (275,538) 190,164 583,427
Attributable to: FEMG -
Equity shareholders ZN/NGTf ST
of the Company BFAEA 68,746 (236,382)  (321,378) 144,868 504,220
Non-controlling eI i
interests 10,503 71,302 45,840 45,296 79,207
Profit/(loss) for FEmA
the year (E518) 79,249 (165,080) (275,538) 190,164 583,427
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
ASSETS AND 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
LIABILITIES EEHEEE —E-NF ZT—+F ZE—RF —T-—HF ZT-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETET AREBTT ARETT ARETT
Total assets BEEE 4,920,029 4,803,473 12,583,118 12,198,738 12,844,123
Total liabilities BEB%E 472,340 369,775 6,216,669 5,658,381 6,215,495
Net assets BEFEE 4447689 4,433,698 6,366,449 6,540,357 6,628,628
Total equity attributable  ZRRQ FAK
to equity shareholders =Ha AR
of the Company M AR RE 4,369,451 4,376,504 5,746,297 5,930,787 5,983,004
Non-controlling e i
interests 78,238 57,194 620,152 609,570 645,624
Total equity AR 4,447689 4,433,698 6,366,449 6,540,357 6,628,628
Note: FIEE
0 The above figures include continuing operations and (i) LA EEF BIER AL E DA R AR I E A TS o

discontinued operations.

(i) The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9  (ii)
at 1 January 2018. Under the transition method chosen,
comparative information is not restated, hence the
Summary has not been prepared on a consistent basis.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Hengdeli Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 90 to 225, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2018, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2018 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements
in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and

REETER
MREFTZRERERMANEXZHE - R5Y
APEEMBBRRNBIARSERZNETHE &
LERRERMEXBERSAMBHRR NGO A
EARETREN MERMIEHELERIE
HEBNHER -

in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

5 B

Valuation of inventories 175

22 20
AR Z ﬁe

Jér & Bl IS8R R AT 16 R HT At 1(1) ) B 5B 5

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on note 1(l).

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEIR

How the matter was addressed in our audit
KA BT NAEIEZEE

Consumer demand for high end watches and tourist
preferences for certain destinations in Hong Kong
and Taiwan have been affected by various factors
including foreign exchange rates, government
policy toward conspicuous luxury spending and
economic conditions in general.

BRRBENRRTFHREEFTRRERTHE TIKER DN
WEREF X ZERZZE - BRER - BFHZREE

ZmBEBR R BB EARR

The Group primarily sells watches through its retail
network in Hong Kong and Taiwan. The changing
tastes and patterns of consumption of target
customers require the Group to periodically review
its inventory portfolio and selectively sell or dispose
of watches that are less popular in some markets
at a markdown from the original price. Accordingly,
the actual future selling prices of some items of
inventory may fall below their purchase costs.
ERETEFEREANBERAENTER/RBEETFK -
EREPHmRIEE AN BEFESEFTEHRAE
FEHEEMERBEMARREBENEBLEXNREER
ST ECIRERENF& - Bt - REFEBEER

BERRREBAIRE R EERNBERA o

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of
inventories included the following:

BZAREFERENETEFEREATRERF

o evaluating the Group’s policy for making
provisions for inventories with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

S2ERTEFTEANRERERBAFEHELR
R BUERAETTRHE

° assessing whether items in the inventory
ageing report were classified within the
appropriate ageing bracket by comparing
the details of a sample of items in the report
with the underlying goods received notes;
FRNRERBERIER KRN AN EKE BT
1 FHERERNIER BER D BN EREN El
[ fE

o assessing whether the inventory provisions
at the end of the reporting period were
determined in a manner consistent with
the Group’s inventory provision policy by
recalculating the inventory provisions based
on percentages and other parameters in the
Group’s inventory provision policy;

BERBERETERBRRTNAE DL REM
2% EFEFERE  FERSHRNEFE
BRERTRBREESEFERBRR —BWHTR
B
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Valuation of inventories (continued) F&L{E (&)

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on note 1(1).

FRERE SRR 16 R AT 1()8) 251 BOE -

The Key Audit Matter
BERETER

How the matter was addressed in our audit
KN EST N MEEZEE

The senior sales managers review the full inventory
list regularly to identify watches which may need to
be discounted in order to increase their chances
of being sold. Data used in this review process
includes: 1) the sales volume history; 2) the ageing
of inventory; 3) physical condition of the inventories
reported from the shops; and 4) recommended
selling prices set by brand owners. Finance staff
use this list to calculate an inventory provision
based on the expected discounts necessary to sell
the watches.

PARHE IR RENBRNFERE - UHBIH TSR
SEHFTHAEME L ER SN F & - RZEHBIEF
ERAMNBERERE  1)EERE  2)TFEMNER : 3)ME/E
ERNFEEEMNN : R4)mEBAENEAEE - U
BHMETEAWBERBHEFRBAMTITNAER
B

We identified the valuation of inventories as a
key audit matter because the selection process
for identifying watches which may need to be
discounted and the estimation of the necessary
discounts to sell the watches involve the exercise
of significant judgement which can be inherently
uncertain.

MR EGERR AREEETFER - RESBR A
B FERAOEBE REFTHEFHRABIHS R
EMEXFIE - MEPAIEFERA TN REEME -

° assessing the historical accuracy of
management’s estimation of inventory
provisions by comparing inventories for
which provision was made in prior years and
their historical actual losses and subsequent
selling prices;

BRLEREFRFERBIATERBRNL

HERERE  HEEEEGATFERENELER
t
° comparing, on a sample basis, the selling

prices achieved for inventories sold after
year-end with their carrying values as at the
year end date; and

UIBRARREE  hBRFEZBREEFREZEER
HEEFHBZEREE &

° enquiring of the senior members of the sales
team during final audit about any expected
changes in plans for markdowns or disposals
of selected inventories, comparing their
representations with actual sales transactions
subsequent to the year end date.
REEEZBIETAHEBRKNSAKE TR
BEFZEENDEFETOEMBEES &
HEREFER 2 RNBERIEHEX SIELLE -
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Potential impairment of goodwill and other property, plant and equipment

BEREMYE - BERRENEERE

Refer to notes 11 and 13 and to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on

notes 1(e), 1(h) and 1(k).

R AR AN AT 1R 13RATF1(e) » 1(h) R 1(k)EIE B E °

The Key Audit Matter
BERESEIE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

IR E IR 2B TH

The Group has significant balances of goodwill and
other property, plant and equipment amounting
to RMB233,594,000 and RMB443,660,000,
respectively as at 31 December 2018.

RZE-NF+_RA=+—H EEEEAEEHE
REMYME BEEKRENERERS I RARE
233,594,0007T & A E#443,660,0007T °

Management performs impairment testing of
goodwill and other property, plant and equipment
when indicators of potential impairment are
identified. In addition, goodwill impairment
assessment is performed by management annually
whether or not there is any indication of impairment.
BERAILBEREDNSRE  EREHHELREMYE -
PBs B s ETTRE RIS o AN - Tam2 B B ERE
PR ERESFETHERERN G -

In performing impairment assessments, management
compared carrying value of each of the separately
identifiable cash generating units (“CGUs”) with their
respective value in use based on discounted cash
flow forecasts to determine if any impairment loss
should be recognised.

ETRE LR - BERERBMRRSREBTAS AL
REAHNRSELEN ((ReELEM]) NEAE
HEXANEREE UETESRBEREIMRER

18 e

QOur audit procedures to assess potential
impairment of goodwill and other property, plant
and equipment included the following:

BT EEERE MY E  BERREEERENE
RFEEATRER

° assessing the management’s identification
of CGUs, the allocation of assets to each
CGU and the methodology adopted by
management in its impairment assessments
with reference to the requirements of
prevailing accounting standards;
AEEREEHReEFEUNEA  ATReE
HEUNREEREBEL2ERITEAEENR
EITREREPTERAMN X

° evaluating the assumptions adopted in the
preparation of discounted cash flow forecasts
for the purpose of the impairment assessment
of goodwill and other property, plant and
equipment, including projected future growth
rates for income and expenses, with reference
to our understanding of the business,
historical trends and available industry
information and available market data;
K2ZRMEEY - BELBE RAIBITEERIA
N AMSEENTE AR RESRE
TERIFTERAMRE - AHEEREMYE  BE

RBETRER L - BEEFRRBA R H
BRE ;

° engaging our internal valuation specialists to
assist us in assessing whether the discount
rates applied in the cash flow forecasts
prepared for the purpose of assessing
potential impairment of goodwill and other
property, plant and equipment were within
the range adopted by other companies
operating in the same industry;
EEASBGEERBPRAFEAFEBERLE
3 - BERRENEEREMRRNIRSIR
EFERAMRANE XZ DR MR E QB
FRREER
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Potential impairment of goodwill and other property, plant and equipment (continued)

BEREMYE BERRBHETRE (&)

Refer to notes 11 and 13 and to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on

notes 1(e), 1(h) and 1(k).

BRI A IR AN 11 R 13RATF1(e) » 1(h) R 1(k)EIEEEE °

The Key Audit Matter
BEREEIE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

HPIHE IR 2B TH

The preparation of discounted cash flow forecasts
for the purpose of assessing potential impairment
involves estimating future cash flows, growth
rates and discount rates which can be inherently
uncertain.
RFHEEEREMRENMRRREBTRAS REETAR
KESRE  BRIXRUAR  ZFERFEEHS THE
TENE o

We identified the assessment of potential
impairment of goodwill and other property, plant
and equipment as a key audit matter because
the impairment assessments performed by
management involves certain critical judgements
in respect of the assumptions made which are
inherently uncertain and could be subject to
management bias.

BAEFAEEELREMYE  BELRRBSELRE
BEFRERETEE  ERAREERBETIRERN G
B NGETEZAE - MAE S RORREFERRT
BEMERAEIXEREERATE -

o comparing the actual results for the current
year with management’s forecast for the
previous year in order to assess the reliability
of historical accuracy of management’s
forecasting process; and
HRFAERXEEERESE F—FEHNRA -
NFHEE IR ETRRARIENEL ERML 2 AEE
&

o performing sensitivity analyses on the

discount rates applied and other key
assumptions adopted by management
to assess the impact of changes on the
conclusion reached in management’s
impairment assessments and considering
whether there were any indicators of
management bias in the key assumptions
adopted.
HEBEMERNIERE MRANEMEEREKR
ETHREDN - s AEEHE R ERER G
EREROTE  WREEMRANTIZREKE
BEEEMNERERRENIR o
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Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included
in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

@ Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

- obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.
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- evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

- conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

- evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

- obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Sylvene Fong.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

20 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

fR i HAE AR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 iZ = ZE— \FE+_A=+—BILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAA R 25)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
(Note)
(Htaz)
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE AREET T ARETTT
Continuing operations: FEARE T
Revenue A 3 2,687,248 2,439,022
Cost of sales HE RN (2,225,702) (2,052,571)
Gross profit EF 461,546 386,451
Other revenue H bl e 4 41,411 24,802
Other net (loss)/income Hith (F518), 7 WAEZE 4 (4,454) 14,649
Distribution costs 2 EERCAR (251,977) (251,871)
Administrative expenses THER (140,414) (137,958)
Profit from operations KRR 106,112 36,073
Finance costs B RS AR AR 5(a) (2,431) (59,931)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRELADER (EE) 5} 103,681 (23,858)
Income tax Fr {5 6 (24,432) (21,790)
Profit/(loss) for the year from REFERSEEL
continuing operations FE=F(EE) 79,249 (45,648)
Discontinued operations: IR
Loss for the year from REKIEEEER
discontinued operations FEE18 27 = (119,432)
Profit/(loss) for the year FERA(EE) 79,249 (165,080)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

AR AR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 iZ —T— \E+=-A=+—HBILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAA R 251)

2018 2017
—E-NF —F—tF
(Note)
(Hi7#)
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BtaE ARBT T ARBTTT
Attributable to: 1L
Equity shareholders of the EN/NCIESRES DN
Company
— continuing operations — FHEEET 68,746 (52,804)
— discontinued operations I = (183,578)
68,746 (236,382)
Non-controlling interests VAR
— continuing operations — RBECEER 10,503 7,156
— discontinued operations — R TS = 64,146
10,503 71,302
Profit/(loss) for the year FEER (FR) 79,249 (165,080)
Basic and diluted earnings/ EREARBERR
(losses) per share (E18) 10
— continuing operations — B ER RMBO0.015 RMB(0.011)
— discontinued operations — R PR T = RMB(0.039)
RMBO0.015 RMB(0.050)

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 7 - AEEER -_Z— ) \GE—A—BBEAERS

at 1 January 2018. Under the transition methods chosen, B ISR EERF 155 R EF B K HE L
comparative information is not restated. See note 1(c). FONR - REFTEIEMNBE L LLERER

WEEY - FLRMEA(C) °

The notes on pages 100 to 225 form part of these financial 10052258 7 W BILE MGz — 215 -

statements. Details of dividends payable to equity ERNAATKRNGDIZTEARMLEE N ZKES
shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the — 1BE&E I FE25(b) °

year are set out in note 25(b).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

i 1E o S A A i W A\ 3R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 iZ = ZE— \FE+_A=+—BILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAARBZ23I)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
(Note (i)
(B2 ()
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
W&z ARET T ARBT T
Profit/(loss) for the year FERF(B8) 79,249 (165,080)
Other comprehensive income FEHEMPEBA
for the year (after tax and (BEREH?E
reclassification adjustments) FEE) 9(a)
ltems that may be reclassified Belk T REEF DR
subsequently to profit or loss: Bz 2IEE
Available-for-sale securities: ARHERS
net movement in the fair value DA EREEETFHR
reserve (recycling) (Note (ii)) GEIN-E))
(B =EG)) - 220,626
Exchange differences on MEIGINGTB A RIE 7
translation of overseas BEMEECER
subsidiaries’ financial statements =5 190,697 (161,136)
Release of exchange reserve L EH B A RN
upon disposal of subsidiaries I - 52,192
190,697 111,682
Items that will not be reclassified B reEFmoEE
subsequently to profit or loss: BmIEE
Equity investments at fair value BREMEEEKA
through other comprehensive BAREHEZ
income — net movement in BRAIRE — DR
fair value reserves (non-recycling) REEEFER
(TAEAER) (233,654) =
Exchange differences on MERBEMEE
translation of equity WABRAR(EE
investments at fair value ZRABERMES
through other comprehensive pdi
income (11,070) =
Exchange differences on BMERARTHHRE
translation of the Company’s FEA 2 TEH Z58
financial statements (2,707) (42,332)
(247,431) (42,332)
Total comprehensive income FEE2HBALE
for the year 22,515 (95,730)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A TH 2 S At 2 1 WL A FR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 iZ —T— \E+=-A=+—HBILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAA R 251)

2018 2017
—E-N\F TR
(Note (i)
(et (i)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Attributable to: FEfE
Equity shareholders ARRRGFTFEA
of the Company
- continuing operations - RBELEER 10,689 (34,256)
— discontinued operations — R PR - (131,386)
10,689 (165,642)
Non-controlling interests iz =
- continuing operations - RBELEER 11,826 5,766
— discontinued operations — R HRE K = 64,146
11,826 69,912
Total comprehensive income FE2HBALE
for the year 22,515 (95,730)
Notes: /Ifjif

(i) The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 (i) AEBER-_TE—\F—A—BaXEARA

at 1 January 2018. Under the transition methods chosen, B I EERIFE155 R BB M B REED
comparative information is not restated. See note 1(c). EOSE o RIBFMRBHBIETE  LBER

WEET - 2 RHE1(C) °

(i)  This amount arose under the accounting policies (i) HEBRE-FT—N\F-A—BMERZE

applicable prior to 1 January 2018. As part of the HABRREL -EA-ZE—N\EFE—HA—AB2zH
opening balance adjustments as at 1 January 2018, the iEHRAR 2 — 8 - WREEHREEND
balance of this reserve has been reclassified to fair value BELRERE (TAIBARR) RETER
reserve (non-recycling) and will not be reclassified to EARKRBEEN DR EEa - F2RME
profit or loss in any future periods. See note 1(c)(i). 1(c)(i) °

The notes on pages 100 to 225 form part of these financial % 100£2258 2 I 3B It Z B iS5 3R 3k — 251D ©

statements.
TRMBERARAT =% )P e



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

i W B IR DL

As at 31 December 2018 R=Z— \F+_-_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAA R 25)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
(Note)
(H15E)
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 ARET T ARET T
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment properties BREME 11 141,419 145,100
Other property, plant and equipment — Ef¥% - FRE K& E 11 443,660 387,268
585,079 532,368
Intangible assets B EE 12 1,956 1,347
Goodwill FEES 13 233,594 232,307
Other investments HAnig & 15 168,696 398,724
Prepayment and deposits BNFIERES 17 19,376 25,416
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 24(b)(i) 7,144 4,710
1,015,845 1,194,872
Current assets REEE
Inventories 7E 16 1,403,251 1,381,603
Trade and other receivables EWE ZEFR K
Hfth R IR 17 311,719 594,106
Deposits with banks RITIEK 18 638,211 668,720
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 19 1,551,003 964,172
3,904,184 3,608,601
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables BB SRR K
H fth FE T 5RIR 20 309,666 258,764
Bank loans SRITER 21 60,429 24,838
Current taxation RERFERTIA 24(a) 17,314 553
387,409 284,155
Netourentassets .~~~ TRERERE 000 3516775 3,324,446
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABDER 4,532,620 4,519,318
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A S IR LR

As at 31 December 2018 R=Z— N\&F+=-HA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAA R 251)

2018 2017
—E—N\&E —T—+F
(Note)
(Htez)
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR¥T T ARBTIT
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank loans RITER 21 83,323 84,282
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBERE 24(b)(ii) 1,608 1,338
84,931 85,620
NET ASSETS EEFE 4,447,689 4,433,698
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EERRREE
Share capital B 25(c) 22,337 22,429
Reserves e 4,347114 4,354,075
Total equity attributable to equity RD BB I5E AR
shareholders of the Company P A%E 4,369,451 4,376,504
Non-controlling interests FERER 78,238 57,194
4,447689 4,433,698

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9  ffit - AEBER _Z—N\F—A—BEXERS

at 1 January 2018. Under the transition methods chosen, IR RIS 155% R BB I Bk & %A
comparative information is not restated. See note 1(c). 5957 - BIBATREZENBEFE  LEER

WEET - 2 RHE(C) °

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors R-ZE—NAF=ZA_tHEEZTSHELKE

on 20 March 2019. FIED o
Zhang Yuping Huang Yonghua R EKE
Executive Director Executive Director HITEE HITEE

The notes on pages 100 to 225 form part of these financial % 100£2258 2 I X8 It Z B iS5 iR 3k — 21D ©

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2018 iZ = ZE— \FE+_A=+—BILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAA R 25)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ARARGEAAER

Capital PRC  Fairvalue Fair value
Share Share redemption  Capital Exchange  statutory  reserve reserve (non- Retained
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve (recycling) recycling) profits Total
A AnfE
1 i
T mE (WEA  (FTEA

BE BOER RERE AARE  ENRBE  ATEE  BR)  BE) REE ot
Note  RMBOOD RMBOOD RMBOOO RMBOOD RMBO000 RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBI00D  RMBIOOD  RMBIOOD
fd ARETT ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTL ARETR ARETR

Non-
controlling Total
interests equity

FERES RS
RMBO0O  RMBO0
ARETR ARBTR

Balance at 1 January 2017 ~ R=Z—+t&
-A-RAEH 22,841 2,685,142 257 (36,046) (196,404) 550,630 129,923 - 2589954 5,746,297

Changes in equity for 2017: ~ W=Z-t&
BEEE:

(Loss)profit for the year £ (B8) /&7 - - - - - (236,382) (236,382)

620,152 6,366,449

71302 (165,080)

Other comprehensive income £t 2 ERA 9 - - - - (202,078) - 22062 - - 18548 (1390) 17,158
Release of exchange reserve B E4 | HB4
upon disposal of E3.0-3)0d
discontinued operations EifE 27 = = = - 52192 = = = - 52192 - 52192
Total comprehensive income 2 FH A& = = = - (149,886) - 2206% - (236382 (165642) 69912 (95730)
Dividends approved in HEBEFRES
respect of the previous year 25(b) - - - - - - - - (1,170,866) (1,170,866) - (1,170,866)
Dividends to holders of AR ES
non-controlling interests BEAZRE = = = - - = = = = - (38270) (38,270)
Transfer between reserves R ZHEH - - - - - 6,086 - - (6086) = = -
Shares repurchased BERERG (#12)  (57970) 412 - - - - - - (57.970) - (57.970)
Capital injection from FARERTE
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - 14,265 14,265
Shares repurchased in Sk REHE
respect of share award EREEZRA
scheme 230b) - . S (40%0) - - : - S (40%0) S (40%0)
Shares granted under RERN 23
share award scheme RiRH 23(b) B - - 4,508 - - - - - 4508 - 4508
Acquisition of additional WE-EHELR
equity interests in a LEINRE
subsidiary - . S (40 - - . : S (40%) (28552  (32,580)
Disposal of equity interests ~ HE—BHBAT)
in & subsidiary i - - SR - (53.451) - - 653 28255 (580313) (552,058)
R-B-tF
Balance at tZA=1-A
31 December 2017 (Note) &8 (W) 22,429 2,627,172 669 (1,444) (346,290) 20,265 350,549 - 1,703,154 4,376,504 57,194 4433698
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9  #iZ - AKEER —T—-N\F—HA—-—BEXERE
at 1 January 2018. Under the transition methods chosen, B TSRS 2E R S 15557 K BB IS S 2R
comparative information is not restated. See note 1(c). EOW o IRBAMBENRENE  EREH

WEEG - FLRMRA(C) °

The notes on pages 100 to 225 form part of these financial £ 100£2258 2 I X8 It Z B i iRk 3k — 201D ©

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2018 iZ —T— \&E+=-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LAA REE251)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

FRRRGEE AR
Capital PRC  Fairvalue  Fair value Non-
Share Share  redemption Capital  Exchange statutory reserve reserve (non-  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  (recycling)  recycling) profits Total interests equity
ME
ME 1
fife  (TTEA
BE  RAGE RAEEEE EARE  EXGE TEiERE (TEARR) B  REER & FBERER  EREE
Note  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
Wit ARBTn ARETR ARETZ ARMTr ARETR ARETn ARETR ARETn ARMTR ARETR ARETn ARET:R
Balance at 31 December 2017 R=Z—tF+Zf
=t-Beks 22429 2627172 669 (1,444)  (346,290) 20,265 350,549 - 1,703,154 4,376,504 57194 4,433,698
Impact on inital application BREREASHR
of HKFRS 9 LRz e - - - - - - (30549) %0549 (824 (2924) @ (29)
Adjusted balance at RB-NE
1 January 2018 -R-A2
Egusy 249 2607172 660 (1444 (346290) 2065 - 360549 1700230 4373580 5718 4430772
Changes in equity for 2018 RoE-N\FEE
29
Profit for the year EEEA = = = = - - - - 68,746 68,746 10503 79,249
Other comprehensive income EH2ERA 9 - - - - 175,597 - - (283,654) - (58,057) 1,323 (56,734)
Total comprehensive income 2 EUWALE = = - - 175597 - - (283,654) 68,746 10,689 11,826 22515
Dividends to holders of RfFERER
non-controlling interests EEAZRE - - - = = = = = - - (13) (13)
Transfer between reserves GEzREy - - - - - 5,751 - - (5,751) - - -
Shares repurchased BEERSH 2(c) 92) (6763 92 - - - - - - (6,763) - (6,763)
Capital injection from ERERTE
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - 9,233 9233
Shares repurchased in RGeS HE
respect of share award EEBZRA
scheme 23(b) - - - (8,377) - - - - - (8,377) - (8,377)
Shares granted under RERD 33l
share award scheme Rk 23(b) - - - 322 - - - - - 32 - 322
Amounts transferred from fair ~ BRL EEE (77
value reserve (non-recycling)  EAER) EEE
to retained profits RERHz 28 - - - - - - - (57,659) 57659 - - -
Balance at RZE-NE+2R
31 December 2018 =t-Az&8 22,337 2,620,409 761 (9,499)  (170,693) 26,016 - 59,236 1,820,884 4,369,451 78238 4447689

The notes on pages 100 to 225 form part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Aa Bl Em R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 iZ = ZE— \FE+_A=+—BILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAARBZ23I)

2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —T—tF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HteE AREET T ARET T
Operating activities KRR
Cash generated from operations OB RTEIE S 19(b) 269,248 1,025,819
Tax paid EAHIE (9,701) (238,356)
Net cash generated from operating K& EBFEBHRE T
activities 259,547 787,463
Investing activities BRETE
Payment for the purchase of BAYE BEM
property, plant and equipment BN (65,322) (60,451)
Proceeds from sale of property, HEME - KFE - &E
plant, equipment and intangible REREEFSRIA
assets 2,143 5,668
Payment for the purchase of BASFEEMNK
intangible assets (415) (913)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits BITEFRL (38 )
with banks 61,708 (668,720)
Payment for advances to third SNE=FEBR
parties (76,158) (213,990)
Proceeds from repayment of BEE =BG
advances to third parties A 292,785 -
Payment for purchase of other BAEMIBERNK
investments (58,979) —
Proceeds from sale of other HEHMIREME
investments K8 66,423 -
Interest received B E 32,238 22,733
Payment for additional equity L — [ B A R ZE S
interest in a subsidiary A& 2 1~k = (32,580)
Proceeds from disposal of equity & —RIH B A = fgiE
interest in a subsidiary Fri5 308 = 11465242
Dividends received from unlisted B2 U3k F I &R E
investments - 25,554
Net cash proceeds from disposal & B A TIRERS
of equity interests in subsidiaries IR 4 HIE %5 27 = 2,352,831
Net cash generated RETHBHEESFHE
from investing activities 254,423 1,576,374
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
HEBamEg

For the year ended 31 December 2018 iZ —T— \E+=-A=+—HBILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAA R 251)

2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —T—tF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
et AREET T ARET T
Financing activities REEE
Proceeds from new bank loans iR 1T E RS I 107,370 870,000
Repayment of bank loans BiBR1TE R (75,206) (2,161,216)
Payment for interest on senior BEEEFR B =
notes = (72,718)
Redemption and repurchase of 8 [0 & B B8 Ao =i
senior notes - (1,468,527)
Payment for purchase of shares BRI G EEET2IEE
under share award scheme R0 7 ek 23(b) (8,377) (4,050)
Other borrowing costs paid 2T E {8 SRk A (2,070) (53,501)
Shares repurchased 2R D (6,763) (57,970)
Capital injection from FEIERRERS T E
non-controlling interests 9,233 14,265
Dividends paid to equity B %
shareholders HAEAZEE - (1,170,866)
Dividends paid to holders of 215 e AR R
non-controlling interests EHEAZRKRE (13) (23,700)
Net cash generated from/ REEB TGS
(used in) financing activities (Fr¥E) WL BEE 24,174 (4,128,283)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash HERBESZEYE
and cash equivalents GRi4) B2E 538,144 (1,764,446)
Cash and cash equivalents REYZRER
at the beginning of the year NEZEEY 964,172 2,791,572
Effect of foreign exchange rate INEEFE R E) S &
changes 48,687 (62,954)
Cash and cash equivalents RERZIRER
at the end of the year HEEEY 19(a) 1,551,003 964,172

The notes on pages 100 to 225 form part of these financial % 100£2258 2 I X B It Z B i 3R 3k — 1D ©

statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

¥ 20
B 265 ok B
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S H158A4) - EEBUARKEZ7)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong, and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“the Exchange”). Significant accounting policies
adopted by Hengdeli Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the Group”) are
disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

@ Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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(a) BHIEHH
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ZAER|
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 205 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets are stated at their fair value as
explained in the accounting policies set out below:

- equity investments (see note 1(f))

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell (see note 1(x)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 2.

1 BEESHBE &)

(b) HIBHMRAOEREE
MEMBEBRABIAEREREL KA
HETXAESFTBRREAZAE AR EIRZ
BERIN

= IEAIGE (B RWE())

FIEMEZERDEE ML EERAKEESR

NABEREEKRAME ZBHREESIR (F2

BHEE1(x)) °

EREFRERUETETEVMBRE LR 2B
PR B A KB fhET R RER - T A B HIET
B RBREFERRZIERAREERAER
WABRST HZ K2R - Bt REBERR
REBEKRLRESBERHBEL TRABRE
BrHEMAZ EREEMERIRT R
HEEERBEZRAEZER - Fit - BR
RERABEEEZEMHEBMEA -

TEEE TE MG RARRKRR - EFT
ZEEFEFHEREAY  BITENE HRER
MERT RIS R B A FOR KR - BRI 8RA
HA R R SR A R o

BN E S M WS R P (F S B
BHRREEAZEZHE - ARE2MHEE A
AR HIRA L2

FRAERA RAT ZF— )\E4HK @



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 25 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S H158A4) - EEBUARKEZ7)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group. Of these, the
following developments are relevant to the Group’s financial
statements:

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

(i) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

(i)  HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and
advance consideration

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 33).

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39, Financial instruments:
recognition and measurement. It sets out the requirements
for recognising and measuring financial assets, financial
liabilities and some contracts to buy or sell non-financial
items.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively to items that
existed at 1 January 2018 in accordance with the transition
requirements. The Group has recognised the cumulative
effect of initial application as an adjustment to the opening
equity at 1 January 2018. Therefore, comparative information
continues to be reported under HKAS 39.

@ Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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(c) EBERZZE
BREGFERAEERMZEANEEMBRS
BRI REBEBMBREENZIER] - BRI E
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(i) BEMBEHREENESE =HTA

(i) ABEMBHRELENEISR  KEEFE
#9.2 A

iy BE (BBRYBEREREZES) 2ESF
2058 MBS B RFETCIE

AR B BN E RN A G ET B W RERZ
T EAkRE (F2 R KE33) -

(i) EBUBHRELAESE  £HTA
ARV BRELNLIFRMAE LG ERIF39
W 2MTA BRERITE - BETHINERR
ATEEREE  cRAGBRETARBERWE
EHFERMARAONRTE °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 205 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EBESTBER @)
(Continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued) (c) BFBERZ2® (&)
(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued) (i) EBVEMEERESN  £HTH ()

The following table summarises the impact of transition to TFT&RBEHR -ZE—-—NF—-H -—BHEBHBRE
HKFRS 9 on retained profits and reserves and the related  ZER| 55957 ¥ (R B8 ' ) I {18 A0 380 52 2 DA K 4H

tax impact at 1 January 2018.

ARG E -

RMB’000
ARET T
Retained profits REE & F
Recognition of additional expected credit KA B SRMEERR
losses on financial assets measured BHNEAEEEIE
at amortised cost (2,924)
Related tax TERETRIE -
Net decrease in retained profits at RZTE—N\F—A—HBZREB AR FR
1 January 2018 (2,924)
Fair value reserve (recycling) ARERE (TEABR)
Transferred to fair value reserve (non-recycling) HEEFHEERABEME2ER AL AALE
relating to equity securities now measured AREZBRAFESB#E
at FVOCI A EREE (TR AEBZ) (350,549)
Fair value reserve (non-recycling) NRERE (FTATEAER)
Transferred from fair value reserve (recycling)  EEEGHEEFABEME2ERALAAE
relating to equity securities now measured at FrECRABLREBZ AR ERKE
FVOCI and increase in fair value reserve (A AER) MR ZZE—/\F—AF—H
(non-recycling) at 1 January 2018 ZAnEEE (TR ABRE) 15 350,549
Non-controlling interests R AER
Recognition of additional expected credit AEEXN AT E2 SR EERRREINEE
losses on financial assets measured at cEEEBERN _ZE—-N\E—HA—H2Z
amortised cost and net decrease in IR 2R 5 R
non-controlling interests at 1 January 2018 (2)

FRAERA RAT ZF— )\E4HK @



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 25 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S H158A4) - EEBUARKEZ7)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to
previous accounting policies and the transition approach are
set out below:

a. Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three principal
classification categories: measured at amortised cost, at
fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and
at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL). These supersede
HKAS 39’s categories of held-to-maturity investments, loans
and receivables, available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets measured at FVPL. The classification of
financial assets under HKFRS 9 is based on the business
model under which the financial asset is managed and
its contractual cash flow characteristics. Under HKFRS
9, derivatives embedded in contracts where the host is
a financial asset in the scope of the standard are not
separated from the host. Instead, the hybrid instrument as a
whole is assessed for classification.

The following table shows the original measurement
categories for each class of the Group’s financial assets
under HKAS 39 and reconciles the carrying amounts of
those financial assets determined in accordance with HKAS
39 to those determined in accordance with HKFRS 9.

@ Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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BRERERANEFENEREESHEA &
AUBRELMNEISRBE TNEREEDIREE
BeREENEBEAREANREREFTR
DR - RBBAVWBRELREIR - SN
TETA (HEBAZENRBERNZEREE)
TEITBHIFARE - BR - EETAESER
EITD R -

TRIFAGELEBEREERBR LG E
AIEISRBECRBFENE  RZFEERE
ERBEEB S EAFEIVREE 2 REERR
BEEVHERELAFRET ZREE Y
B o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 205 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

1 EESEE®)

(c) EFfEE22®H &)
(i) BEBRBMELEDESS  £HTE (&)

a. Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities — a. CREERSMABGBE LD (B)
(Continued)
HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
carrying carrying
amount at 31 amount at 1
December January
2017  Reclassification  Remeasurement 2018
RIE—+5 RZE-N\&
+-A=1+-H -fA-H
REEESH RIEBBHHK
ERIZ30% HEERER
BT REE N8 Bifite  BEZERAE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AREFT ARBF
Financial assets carried at amortised cost NBERASE 2 HEE
Trade and other receivables EWE FER T R 2 i e IR 594,106 = (2,926) 591,180
Financial assets measured at FVOCI BAREMZARARANEHE
(non-recycling) (FABAEE) L ERERE
Equity securities (note) RAZES (i) - 398,724 - 398,724
Financial assets classified as available- REBAEIEAEINSEA
for-sale under HKAS 39 (note) UHEECSRERE (M) 398,724 (398,724) = =
Note: Under HKAS 39, equity securities not held for trading FiiE - RIEEB S HERIE395  WIFHIEES

were classified as available-for-sale financial assets.
These equity securities are classified as at FVPL under
HKFRS 9, unless they are eligible for and designated
at FVOCI by the Group. At 1 January 2018, the Group
designated these equity securities at FVOCI, as the
investment is held for strategic purposes (see note 15).

ZEABHZIDBER/AIHLESREE -
REBEEBMBRELEANFONHR - BRIFAER
FAAEEEESBBEMEABAZR
REFE BRZERAESFEDER/E
BERBAREBEAE R _ZE—-N\F—H
—B ARBEBZERAZHFEE/EE
Htp2EBAR R AEFE  ARFEEZ
RERETEBEEE M (F2 R KE15) °

For an explanation of how the Group classifies and measures
financial assets and recognises related gains and losses
under HKFRS 9, see respective accounting policy notes in
notes 1(f), (k)(i), (n) and (q).

The measurement categories for all financial liabilities remain
the same. The carrying amounts for all financial liabilities
at 1 January 2018 have not been impacted by the initial
application of HKFRS 9.

The Group did not designate or de-designate any financial
asset or financial liability at FVPL at 1 January 2018.

BRAEBMARIEE ST HHRE LR FEIEE D
HERTESMEEREREBKEREENE
2 FoR2 R K30 (n)k)WmE
BRI EE o

FMETBMABEZFERNERSTE - FRESH
BER T N\F-A-BzZEREEYRES
RERBBVBRELRNEIRMIBFE -

RZZF-—NF—A—B AKELEETF IR
HEEEMNREBESERARENEZEREE
HERAIE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 25 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S H158A4) - EEBUARKEZ7)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)
b. Credit losses

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39
with the “expected credit loss” (ECL) model. The ECL model
requires an ongoing measurement of credit risk associated
with a financial asset and therefore recognises ECLs earlier
than under the “incurred loss” accounting model in HKAS
39.

The Group applies the new ECL model to financial assets
measured at amortised cost, including cash and cash
equivalents, deposits with banks and trade and other
receivables.

For further details on the Group’s accounting policy for
accounting for credit losses, see note 1(k)(i).

The following table reconciles the closing loss allowance
determined in accordance with HKAS 39 as at 31 December
2017 with the opening loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

Transition

Changes in accounting policies resulting from the adoption
of HKFRS 9 have been applied retrospectively, except as

described below:

Information relating to comparative periods has not
been restated. Differences in the carrying amounts of
financial assets resulting from the adoption of HKFRS
9 are recognised in retained earnings and reserves
as at 1 January 2018. Accordingly, the information
presented for 2017 continues to be reported under
HKAS 39 and thus may not be comparable with the
current period.

The following assessments have been made on the
basis of the facts and circumstances that existed at 1
January 2018 (the date of initial application of HKFRS
9 by the Group):

- the determination of the business model within
which a financial asset is held; and

- the designation of certain investments in equity
instruments not held for trading to be classified
as at FVOCI (non-recycling).

If, at the date of initial application, the assessment
of whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition would have
involved undue cost or effort, a lifetime ECL has been
recognised for that financial instrument.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i o P i

F BEUAAREZ5)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& % &#5RA4N

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue and some costs from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 replaces HKAS 18, Revenue, which
covered revenue arising from sale of goods and rendering
of services, and HKAS 11,
specified the accounting for construction contracts.

Construction contracts, which

HKFRS 15 also introduces additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to enable
users of the financial statements to understand the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
arising from contracts with customers.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have any material
impact on the financial position and the financial results of
the Group, except for the nature and effect of the changes
on previous accounting policies as set out below:

a. Timing of revenue recognition

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the customer
obtains control of the promised good or service in the
contract. This may be at a single point in time or over time.
HKFRS 15 identifies the following three situations in which
control of the promised good or service is regarded as
being transferred over time:

A. when the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance, as the entity performs;

B. when the entity’s performance creates or enhances
an asset (for example work in progress) that
the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

C. when the entity’s performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the entity and
the entity has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 205 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

a. Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

Some of the Group’s contract with customers are provision
of shop design and decoration service, where the Group
provides the service in accordance with the customers’
specification and the works are directly performed at
customers’ premises. These contracts therefore satisfy the
criteria for categories B and C for recognising revenue over
time during the decoration process, whereas previously the
Group did not recognise the revenue until the completion of
service. Accordingly, revenue and the associated costs for
these contracts are recognised earlier under HKFRS 15 than
under HKAS 18.

This change in accounting policy had no material impact
on the opening balances as at 1 January 2018. However, in
future periods it may have material impact, depending on
the progress and timing of completion of shop design and
decoration projects.

b. Presentation of contract assets and liabilities

Under HKFRS 15, a receivable is recognised only if the
Group has an unconditional right to consideration. If the
Group recognises the related revenue (see note 1(u))
before being unconditionally entitled to the consideration
for the promised goods and services in the contract, then
the entitlement to consideration is classified as a contract
asset. Similarly, a contract liability, rather than a payable,
is recognised when a customer pays non-refundable
consideration, or is contractually required to pay non-
refundable consideration and the amount is already due,
before the Group recognises the related revenue. For a
single contract with the customer, either a net contract asset
or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple contracts,
contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts
are not presented on a net basis (see note 1(m)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i o P i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S H158A4) - EEBUARKEZ7)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(ii) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

b. Presentation of contract assets and liabilities (Continued)

As a result of the changes in presentation, the Group has
made the following classification at 1 January 2018 and 31
December 2018:

(i) “Advance receipts from customers” in respect of
advance payments from customers amounting
to RMB15,582,000 as at 1 January 2018 and
RMB12,268,000 as at 31 December 2018 are now
presented as “Contract liabilities” included in “Trade
and other payables” (see note 20).

(iii)  HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and
advance consideration

This Interpretation provides guidance on determining “the
date of the transaction” for the purpose of determining the
exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income (or part of it) arising from a
transaction in which an entity receives or pays advance
consideration in a foreign currency.

The Interpretation clarifies that “the date of the transaction”
is the date on initial recognition of the non-monetary asset
or liability arising from the payment or receipt of advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts
in advance of recognising the related item, the date of
the transaction for each payment or receipt should be
determined in this way. The adoption of HK(IFRIC) 22 does
not have any material impact on the financial position and
the financial result of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 205 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and
the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders
of non-controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with notes 1(o) or 1(p) depending on the nature
of the liability.
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S 5 i o P i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S H158A4) - EEBUARKEZ7)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss
is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset (see note 1(f)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(k)(ii)), unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale) (see note 1(x)).

(e) Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 1(k)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any

attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)  Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s policies for investments in debt and equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries, are as
follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/
sell the investment. The investments are initially stated at
fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs, except
for those investments measured at fair value through profit
or loss (FVPL) for which transaction costs are recognised
directly in profit or loss. For an explanation of how the Group
determines fair value of financial instruments, see note
29(f). These investments are subsequently accounted for as
follows, depending on their classification.

a. Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group are classified into
one of the following measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest
income from the investment is calculated using the
effective interest method (see note 1(u)(v)).

- fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI) - recycling, if the contractual cash flows of
the investment comprise solely payments of principal
and interest and the investment is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by
both the collection of contractual cash flows and
sale. Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition
in profit or loss of expected credit losses, interest
income (calculated using the effective interest
method) and foreign exchange gains and losses.
When the investment is derecognised, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income is
recycled from equity to profit or loss.

- fair value at profit or loss (FVPL) if the investment
does not meet the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in the
fair value of the investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.

1 BEESHBE &)

() REBERAEZZHEMRE
AEBERAREBRRAFS ZKRE (KK B
RAZREBRIN) BT

REBEBEAEFIEEDRASEAHR
B/ HEREEAERRILER - REQH
BAREBEMNEREERZRAIEE - ERBIE
DR AAEFEZRERI ZFEREZRS
RABEZNBRE AR - ARANSENFIEE
TRTARAENREE  F2RME29(f) ° %
ERERRETINGAIE  HFETHER
MmiE e

a. R-ZZB-NF-B-HBERZHX
BARERINIRE

REBEFIERAREFE S B RAT 25
2= ¢

= WA ERERB AN RERE (B
REARE LR - B AT
B WEFBRARBEEANRE1E (B
2R MEE1(U)(v)) °

- WHREZAORSREERBEASEM
BAF - ARETDRUABRRKKE S
HREREREERBENEHRAR
A ABEBEMEEEARAARER
B (JEAED)  2AEEINEME
HWRAARER  EBERAEEEE - FE
WA (REBRMEAFE) RINEWK K
BERBRAER - RNRIEERAZRE
B REMEARARNRTZERHE
@ A e

- MIRE TR ERBHKX AL BBEME
HBRAZAABEAE (ABEAER) 2
24 - ARBIBEE AR ERFE - %%
Bz onE(BREMNE) EPHRIEBEER
TR o

FRAERA RAT ZF— )\E4HK @
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S H158A4) - EEBUARKEZ7)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)  Other investments in debt and equity securities
(Continued)
a. Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading purposes
and on initial recognition of the investment the Group makes
an election to designate the investment at FVOCI (non-
recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income. Such elections
are made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may
only be made if the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer’'s perspective. Where such an election is
made, the amount accumulated in other comprehensive
income remains in the fair value reserve (non-recycling)
until the investment is disposed of. At the time of disposal,
the amount accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-
recycling) is transferred to retained profits. It is not recycled
through profit or loss. Dividends from an investment in equity
securities, irrespective of whether classified as at FVPL or
FVOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as other income in
accordance with the policy set out in note 1(u)(iv).

b. Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

Investments in securities held for trading were classified
as financial assets measured at FVPL. Any attributable
transaction costs were recognised in profit or loss as
incurred. At the end of each reporting period the fair value
was remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)  Other investments in debt and equity securities
(Continued)
b. Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Dated debt securities that the Group had the positive ability
and intention to hold to maturity were classified as held-to-
maturity securities. Held-to-maturity securities were stated
at amortised cost (for impairment see note 1(k)(i) — policy
applicable prior to 1 January 2018).

Investments which did not fall into any of the above
categories were classified as available-for-sale financial
assets. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value was remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value reserve
(recycling). Dividend income from equity investments and
interest income from debt securities calculated using the
effective interest method were recognised in profit or loss
in accordance with the policies set out in notes 1(u)(iv) and
1(u)(v), respectively. Foreign exchange gains and losses
arising from debt securities were also recognised in profit or
loss. When the investments were derecognised or impaired
(see note 1(k)(i) — policy applicable prior to 1 January
2018), the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity was
reclassified to profit or loss.

(9) Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(j)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use
and property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property.

1 EESEEE &)
) REBEBRAZBZF2HMEE (&)
b. R-B—N\&E—B—-AMERZBE (&)

AEBARNREAKBEZHNZBHELE
% BEARAZRIBES FHEEINES
LA SERC AN BR (B RIRERE 2 RE1(K)(i) —
R-ZE—N\F—A—BAERZERK)

AN EFRENZRE Y EATHES
CREE NEREPHELRE - HEHAT
EARE MAEEZEMKSHEEIRE
thE2EBARNERL DRI RAEARBREEZ
XA (ATEAIBR) - UBBFIREFE 2R
BRAREZRBWARKREEBESZF B
W A& 1 B EE 1 (U)(iv) B 1 (u) (V) T B 9 Bl
BEANER  BEHEHFEEZINERZE REE
MRIBRER - MZESRERIEBRIELER
B (BE2AMFIKG0) - R=E—\F—HF—H
AE A 2 BR) - AR ER 2 Rt et sk &

BEFOEERS -

(9) BREW=
BAINEANERSAE IR HEF (B
SEME1() - LEARBRESKAR, XE
REXRBERBN  BI/RENE - LEFE
ERERE R ARERKM G 2 L1 K[ IEH
ERFABE/RKRENEREZME -

FRAERA RAT ZF— )\E4HK @



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 25 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S H158A4) - EEBUARKEZ7)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9) Investment properties (Continued)

Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(k)(ii)).
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of investment
property less its estimated residual value using the straight
line method over its estimated useful life. Rental income from
investment properties is accounted for as described in note

1(u)(iii).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis.

(h)  Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note

1(k)(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs (see note 1(w)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit
or loss on the date of retirement or disposal. Any related
revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation
reserve to retained profits and is not reclassified to profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 205 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)  Other property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

- Freehold land is not depreciated.

- Buildings situated on freehold land are depreciated
over their estimated useful life, being no more than 50
years after the date of completion.

- Leasehold land classified as held under finance
leases is depreciated over the unexpired term of
lease.

= Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and
their estimated useful lives, being no more than 50
years after the date of completion.

- Leasehold improvements 1 -5 years
- Motor vehicles 5-10 years
- Office equipment and other fixed assets 3 — 10 years
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and each

part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an
asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 25 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S H158A4) - EEBUARKEZ7)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure
on development activities is capitalised if the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible and the
Group has sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes the costs
of materials, direct labour, and an appropriate proportion of
overheads and borrowing costs, where applicable (see note
1(w)). Capitalised development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see note
1(k)(ii)). Other development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see
note 1(k)(ii)).
and brands is recognised as an expense in the period in

Expenditure on internally generated goodwill
which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible
assets with finite useful lives are amortised from the date
they are available for use and their estimated useful lives
are as follows:

- Trademarks with finite useful lives 5-10 years

= Software licences 5-10 years
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 205 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives
are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful
life of an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually
to determine whether events and circumstances continue to
support the indefinite useful life assessment for that asset.
If they do not, the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from
the date of change and in accordance with the policy for
amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives as set out
above.

The fair value of patents and trademarks acquired in a
business combination is based on the discounted estimated
royalty payments that have been avoided as a result of the
patent or trademark being owned.

{)) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for
a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 25 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S H158A4) - EEBUARKEZ7)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

) Leased assets (Continued)
(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases, with the following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held under
a finance lease; and

- land held for own use under an operating lease, the
fair value of which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon at
the inception of the lease, is accounted for as being
held under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that
the lease was first entered into by the Group, or taken
over from the previous lessee.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 205 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Leased assets (Continued)
(ii) Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance
leases, the amounts representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments, of such assets are recognised as property, plant
and equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, are recorded as obligations under finance
leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the
cost or valuation of the assets over the term of the relevant
lease or, where it is likely the Group will obtain ownership
of the asset, the life of the asset, as set out in note 1(h).
Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policy as set out in note 1(k)(ii). Finance
charges implicit in the lease payments are charged to
profit or loss over the period of the leases so as to produce
an approximately constant periodic rate of charge on the
remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting
period. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

(iiiy  Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged
to profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term except where the property is classified as an
investment property (see note 1(Q)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 25 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S H158A4) - EEBUARKEZ7)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)  Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables

a. Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
losses (ECLs) on the following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents and trade and
other receivables); and

- contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15 (see note 1

(m)).

Financial assets measured at fair value, including units in
bond funds, equity securities measured at FVPL, equity
securities designated at FVOCI (non-recycling) and
derivative financial assets, are not subject to the ECL
assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 205 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (Continued)

a. Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the
following discount rates where the effect of discounting is
material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other receivables
and contract assets: effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition or an approximation thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current effective interest
rate;

- lease receivables: discount rate used in the

measurement of the lease receivable.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable
and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort. This includes information about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 25 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S H158A4) - EEBUARKEZ7)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (Continued)

a. Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)
ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables, lease receivables and
contract assets are always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises a
loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 205 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (Continued)

a. Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)
Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring on the
financial instrument assessed at the reporting date with
that assessed at the date of initial recognition. In making
this reassessment, the Group considers that a default event
occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full,
Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
or (ii) the financial asset is 180 days past due. The Group

without recourse by the

considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

= failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

= an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating
(if available);
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 25 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S H158A4) - EEBUARKEZ7)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (Continued)

a. Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)
Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’'s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective basis.
When the assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk
ratings.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 205 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (Continued)

a. Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)
Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment
to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account, except for investments in debt securities that
are measured at FVOCI (recycling), for which the loss
allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the fair value reserve (recycling).

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note 1(u)
(v) is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a
financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-
impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 25 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S H158A4) - EEBUARKEZ7)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (Continued)

a. Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income (Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
the following observable events:

significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security
because of financial difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset, lease
receivable or contract asset is written off (either partially
or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect
of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources
of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously

written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 205 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (Continued)

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

Prior to 1 January 2018, an “incurred loss” model was

used to measure impairment losses on financial assets not

classified as at FVPL (e.g. trade and other receivables,

available-for-sale investments and held-to-maturity debt

securities). Under the

‘incurred loss” model, an impairment

loss was recognised only when there was objective evidence

of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment included:

significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
an investment in an equity instrument below its cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i o P i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S H158A4) - EEBUARKEZ7)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (Continued)

b. Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018 (Continued)

If any such evidence existed, an impairment loss was
determined and recognised as follows:

— For trade and other receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost, impairment loss
was measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate, where the effect of
discounting was material. This assessment was made
collectively where these financial assets shared
similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and had not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which
were assessed for impairment collectively were based
on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreased and the decrease could
be linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss
was reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of an
impairment loss was only recognised to the extent
that it did not result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 205 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (Continued)

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018 (Continued)

When the recovery of a trade debtor or other financial
assets carried at amortised cost was considered
doubtful but not remote, associated impairment losses
were recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group was satisfied that recovery was remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable was written off
against the gross carrying amount of those assets
directly. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account were reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes in
the allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly were
recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale investments, the cumulative loss
that had been recognised in the fair value reserve
(recycling) was reclassified to profit or loss. The
amount of the cumulative loss that was recognised
in profit or loss was the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that asset previously recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in
respect of available-for-sale equity securities were
not reversed through profit or loss. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value of such assets was
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 25 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S H158A4) - EEBUARKEZ7)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (Continued)

b. Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in
respect of available-for-sale debt securities were
reversed if the subsequent increase in fair value
could be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised. Reversals
of impairment losses in such circumstances were
recognised in profit or loss.

(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case
of goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased:

- investment property;

- other property, plant and equipment (other than
properties carried at revalued amounts);

- intangible assets;
- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 205 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(iif) Impairment of other non-current assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, intangible assets that
are not yet available for use and intangible assets that have
indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated
annually whether or not there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), or value in use (if determinable).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i o P i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S H158A4) - EEBUARKEZ7)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(iif) Impairment of other non-current assets (Continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss in
respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’'s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

(iiiy  Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the
first six months of the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of
the financial year (see notes 1(k)(i) and 1(k)(ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect
of goodwill carried at cost are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which the
interim period relates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 205 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Inventories and other contract costs
(i) Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the ordinary
course of business, in the process of production for such
sale or in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed
in the production process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value as follows:

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal
oCCurs.

The fair value of inventories acquired in a business
combination is determined based on their estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of sale, and a reasonable profit margin based on the
effort required to complete and sell the inventories.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i o P i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S H158A4) - EEBUARKEZ7)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Inventories and other contract costs (Continued)
(ii) Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the incremental costs of
obtaining a contract with a customer or the costs to fulfil
a contract with a customer which are not capitalised as
inventory (see note 1(I)(i)), property, plant and equipment
(see note 1(h)) or intangible assets (see note 1(i)).

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs
that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer
that it would not have incurred if the contract had not been
obtained e.g. an incremental sales commission. Incremental
costs of obtaining a contract are capitalised when incurred
if the costs relate to revenue which will be recognised in a
future reporting period and the costs are expected to be
recovered. Other costs of obtaining a contract are expensed
when incurred.

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the costs relate
directly to an existing contract or to a specifically identifiable
anticipated contract; generate or enhance resources that will
be used to provide goods or services in the future; and are
expected to be recovered. Costs that relate directly to an
existing contract or to a specifically identifiable anticipated
contract may include direct labour, direct materials,
allocations of costs, costs that are explicitly chargeable to
the customer and other costs that are incurred only because
the Group entered into the contract (for example, payments
to sub-contractors). Other costs of fulfilling a contract,
which are not capitalised as inventory, property, plant and
equipment or intangible assets, are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 205 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Inventories and other contract costs (Continued)

(iif) Other contract costs (Continued)

Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Impairment losses are recognised to the extent that the
carrying amount of the contract cost asset exceeds the
net of (i) remaining amount of consideration that the Group
expects to receive in exchange for the goods or services to
which the asset relates, less (ii) any costs that relate directly
to providing those goods or services that have not yet been
recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is charged to
profit or loss when the revenue to which the asset relates is
recognised. The accounting policy for revenue recognition is
set out in note 1(u).

(m) Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue (see note 1(u)) before being unconditionally entitled
to the consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for expected credit
losses (ECL) in accordance with the policy set out in note
1(k)(i) and are reclassified to receivables when the right to

the consideration has become unconditional (see note 1(n)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue (see note 1(u)). A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable would
also be recognised (see note 1(n)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest accrued
under the effective interest method (see note 1(u)(v)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 25 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S H158A4) - EEBUARKEZ7)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is due.
If revenue has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset (see note 1(m)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note

1(K)(0).

(0) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note 1(w)).

(p) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

() Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for expected credit
losses (ECL) in accordance with the policy set out in note

1(K)(P).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 205 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(ry  Employee benefits
(i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to

defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

(i) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the binomial lattice model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled
to the options, the total estimated fair value of the options
is spread over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to the profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of
options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised
in the capital reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).

(iiiy ~ Share award scheme

The fair value of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of shares is recognised as staff costs
in profit or loss with a corresponding increase in capital
reserve, which is measured based on the grant date share
price of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 25 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S H158A4) - EEBUARKEZ7)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r) Employee benefits (Continued)
(iv)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits
and when it recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

(s) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 205 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the
deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account
if they relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or
periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 25 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S H158A4) - EEBUARKEZ7)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Income tax (Continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(g),
the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets at
their carrying value at the reporting date unless the property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets
and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution

of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 205 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

= in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 25 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S H158A4) - EEBUARKEZ7)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)y Provisions and contingent liabilities
(i) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(i) Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the Group has a contract
under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received from the contract. Provisions for
onerous contracts are measured at the present value of the
lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and
the net cost of continuing with the contract.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 205 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)y Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)
(iii)  Contingent liabilities assumed in business combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
which are present obligations at the date of acquisition
are initially recognised at fair value, provided the fair value
can be reliably measured. After their initial recognition at
fair value, such contingent liabilities are recognised at the
higher of the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation where appropriate, and the amount that would
be determined in accordance with note 1(t)(i). Contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination that cannot
be reliably fair valued or were not present obligations at the
date of acquisition are disclosed in accordance with note

1(0)(0).

(u) Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods, the provision of services or the use
by others of the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has
the right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and

is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Sale of watches, jewellery and related accessories

Revenue is recognised when goods are handed over to
individual customers at retail outlets or delivered at the
warehouse or corporate customers’ premises which is taken
to be the point in time when the customer has obtained the
contract over the goods. Revenue excludes value-added tax
or other sales taxes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i o P i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S H158A4) - EEBUARKEZ7)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Revenue and other income (Continued)
(ii) Provision of shop design and decoration service

Revenue is recognised progressively over time using
cost-to-cost method, i.e, based on the proportion of actual
costs incurred relative to the estimated total costs. The
contract asset (either partially or in full) is reclassified to
receivables when the entitlement to payment for that amount
has become unconditional.

(iii)  Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

(iv)  Dividends
- Dividend income from unlisted investments is

recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

= Dividend listed
recognised when the share price of the investment

income from investments is

goes ex-dividend.

(v) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling) that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset. For credit-impaired financial
assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset (see note 1(k)(i)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 205 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Revenue and other income (Continued)
(vi)  Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of
financial position initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that compensate
the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as income
in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in
which the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of
the asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.

(v) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the
company initially recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Renminbi
(“RMB”) at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including goodwill
arising on consolidation of foreign operations acquired
on or after 1 January 2005, are translated into RMB at the
closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the exchange reserve. Goodwill arising on
consolidation of a foreign operation acquired before 1
January 2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate that
applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or
loss on disposal is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i o P i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S H158A4) - EEBUARKEZ7)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

(x) Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which
represents a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is part of a single coordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale, if earlier. It also occurs if the
operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented on the face of the statement of profit or
loss, which comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on
the disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s)
constituting the discontinued operation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 205 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Related parties

A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

The entity and the Group are members of the same
Group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a Group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(i)
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(iv)

(vi)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 25 A B i

F BEUAAREZ5)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& % &#5RA4N

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(y) Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
(viii) The entity, or any member of a company of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

(z) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.

@ Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 205 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES

Notes 13, 16, 17, 23 and 29 contain information about the
assumptions and their risk factors relating to impairment
of goodwill, net realisable value of inventories, impairment
of trade and other receivables, fair value of share options
granted and fair value of financial instruments. Other key
source of estimation uncertainty is as follows:

Income tax

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
regarding the future tax treatment of certain transactions.
The management evaluates tax implications of transactions
and tax provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment
of these transactions is reconsidered periodically to take
into account changes in tax legislation. Deferred tax assets
are recognised for deductible temporary differences. As
those deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which they can be utilised, management’s
judgement is required to assess the probability of future
taxable profits. Management’s assessment is reviewed and
additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred
tax asset to be recovered.

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a) Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are retail of watches
and jewellery with comprehensive related customer services
and maintenance, manufacturing of watch accessories, and
provision of shop design and decoration service.

Turnover represents the sales value of goods sold to
customers, net of value added tax and deduction of any
sales discounts and returns.

The Group’s customer base is diversified and includes no
customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the
Group’s revenue.

2  SErHE KA

M3E13 - 16~ 17 ~ 23 R29OF A ERE - 17
BRI FE - BIRE SRR E MR GRE
BE BEEREZARBEAREMIAZA
AREBRAZBREEERBEZ - LT AHME
BEF AR E R ¢

Frig
BEEMSRBREIMHETRGZBERRBE
BEHE - EREEERRERFIGRIOMBRELR
WRIBRBEE  ZEXFIRBREEZBH
BAREMEEBHRERNENRE - IMRAE
REERIAD/ELCHBEE - ARZFELN
REER A BZ A g A R T s A Al (8
BVIER T AT RERR - R BB IR fE A H B AT 4
HRERBUS ORI - EBEFNAEED
EH - MiHARERF G A MERTERRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 25 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S H158A4) - EEBUARKEZ7)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 HEBERIBHRE &)
(Continued)
(@) Revenue (Continued) (a) SHEE (&)

Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities are NS EEZ 57 2 HFHIB A E3(b) #FE -
disclosed in note 3(b).

(i) Disaggregation of revenue (i) ON i)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by ZEXZERIBHRED 2 EFE QR AHAD
major products or service lines is as follows: LU
2018 2017
—E-NF —E—tF
(Note)
(Htez)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T
Revenue from contracts with customers FEEFAHNZWA (BB
within the scope of HKFRS 15 B3R5 RSB 155R EE )
Disaggregated by major products or BEEERSRGEAD
service lines
- Revenue from sales of watches and —REBEFHRKEZ
jewellery WA 2,093,852 1,943,307
- Revenue from manufacturing of —RENEFHREEEMZ
watches accessories WA 382,958 360,102
— Revenue from provision of shop design — K ERHE/EHERT R
and decoration service E SRS 2 WA 197,816 135,613
- Revenue from other business —REEMER 2 BA 12,622 =
2,687,248 2,439,022
Revenue from other sources H A 3R W &
Gross rentals from investment properties RKEREWE 2 HEEUWA 2,852 1220
2,690,100 2,440,242

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 using the /i - AEBEHB 22 E LB NERE B

cumulative effect method. Under this method, the RS ERE155 - BEFEM F A &
comparative information is not restated and was BRIV ESEY - BERBEEGFELE
prepared in accordance with HKAS 18 and HKAS 11 (see 18R RBEGALREIREH (FR2R
note 1(c)(ii)). Bt (c)(ii)) °

Revenue from provision of shop design and decoration IR /E 85T REE RS 2 U A FE RS B 2 ERE
service is recognised progressively over time. T ©

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by 1ZM[E W5 E D 2B FE & LW A 4 5 72 M 5
geographic markets is disclosed in note 3(b)(i). 3(b)(i)# 5& -

@ Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 205 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(a) Revenue (Continued)

(i) Revenue expected to be recognised in the future
arising from contracts with customers in existence at
the reporting date

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
121 of HKFRS 15 to its sales contracts for shop design and
decoration service as the remaining performance obligations
of the contracts had an original expected duration of one
year or less.

(iiiy  Total future minimum lease payments receivable by
the Group

Total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases in place at the reporting date will be

receivable by the Group in future periods as follows:

3 SSHEERIHEmE &)

(a) SHEHE (@)
(i) EEXAEBEAMNAFEEFMAIISHN
WA - FREIE R R RHER

AEEC SRR RRERBHHES LR
REBUBRELERFE1SHKE121ROAIITEE
7% AAMANZH TRAOEENREDRR
BHIRA—FRERE -

(i) AEBEEWHERREESHLE

RikEBH - AEER B RHBRE A A HEH
REeHEREMBRREHESBBNT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREET T ARETTT

Within 1 year —FRN 3,177 3,172
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERAFA 12,566 12,782
After 5 years Fak:=try 27,367 40,419
43,110 56,373

(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by a mixture of both business lines (products and
services) and geography (mainly in Hong Kong and Taiwan/
Malaysia).

In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purpose of resource allocation and
performance assessment, given the importance of retail
division to the Group, the Group’s retail business is
separated into two reportable segments on a geographical
and products and services basis, as the divisional managers
for each of these regions report directly to the senior
executive team. All segments primarily derive their retail
revenue through their own retail network. No operating
segments have been aggregated to form reportable
segments.

(b) ZEBIRE

AEEBBEER (EmMARG) M (£
BEURBEEREE HRED) KL Z2DE
BT o

REMASERSETREEABRERD K
RRBABZABREEN Bz - ER
AEEZTENHMZIERN  AEEZZEXRK
BBIARERRRE D RMEZHRSE - R
ArnzEtRzsErBEEHERARETR
BXER - IEDHMOEREREAGZTE
MEMELEZTERA - AEBYESHEE
DHEB - AR 2| EL ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 25 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& % &#5RA4N

F BEUAAREZ5)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i) Segment results and assets

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the profit or loss and assets
attributable to each reportable segment on the following
basis:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments.
However, other than reporting inter-segment sales,
assistance provided by one segment to another, including

sharing of assets, is not measured.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “gross
profit”.

Segment assets represent inventories only, without
eliminating the unrealised inter-segment profits.

@ Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 205 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i) Segment results and assets (Continued)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017 is set out below.

Continuing operations

3 SHEHEKIBHRE &)

(i) DEHEBREE (££)

Bz 22— N\EK-_ZF—+&F+-_HA=+—H
EFERERPERDBRBTHRAEER
BEITHEBAEBREBEZAEEERSHFER
]HNWR

Dk

BELEER
Retail All others Sub-total Discontinued operations Total
e ig=p=u ) it KRIEEEEHK Mzt
Hong Kong Taiwan/Malaysia
) A%/ BRED
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
(Note) (Note) (Note) (Note) (Note) (Note)
“F-N\F ZF L5 SEN\F 2T 4F SENE Z3+F SR-\F ZF LR SR-NF CT4F SE-NE Z3 R
(Hiit) (Hiit) (Hiit) (Hiit) (Hiit) (Hiit)
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETn ARBTR ARETT ARETR ARETR AREBTR ARETT AR¥TR ARETT ARETRE ARTR
Revenue from external ~ RESNFEEZMA

customers 1,898,353 1,777,065 195499 166,242 593396 495715 2,687,248 2,439,022 - 5115880 2,687,248 7,554,902
Inter-segment revenue S ERHA 13 338 = - 103,458 79,988 103,471 80,326 - 2198270 103,471 2,278,596

Reportable segment ZFEFPRA
revenue 1,898,366 1,777,403 195499 166,242 696,854 575,703 2,790,719 2,519,348 - 7,314,150 2,790,719 9,833,498

Reportable segment  EHRHFEF
gross profit 300,444 258,641 47,298 50,708 113,804 77,102 461,546 386,451 - 1594426 461,546 1,980,877

Reportable segment  2HHWAE
assets 1,072,647 1,077,986 193,898 180,662 136,752 122,962 1,403,297 1,381,610 = - 1,403297 1,381,610
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 using the Mit @ AEBEEHBRATE LA RERETEY

cumulative effect method. Under this method, the
comparative information is not restated and was
prepared in accordance with HKAS 18 and HKAS 11 (see
note 1(c)(ii)).

Results and assets of the segment below the quantitative
thresholds (“All others”) are mainly attributable to watch
accessories manufacturing business and shop design and
decoration business.

TEIREHERF 155 - BRIBW A LERE
B ESS - BEREEB SR F 185
REBGTEAEREE ( MR
1(c)(ii)) e

2= L2
AR 2

BREE(REERZDBERENEE ([FE
Hip]) EBREFHREEERBERH RIEH
Rt REAE TS -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 25 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S H158A4) - EEBUARKEZ7)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

3

(b)

(ii) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit (i)

or loss and assets

Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total
BELSEEY RIEREER gt
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
ZZ-\F ZT-+F ZEBE-\f CZZT—+f ZE-\F C—T+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AR®Tr AR%Tr ARETR ARETR
Revenue KA
Revenue for reportable segments ~ 2HAHUA 2,093,865 1,943,645 - 7257797 2,093,865 9,201,442
Revenue for other segments HenpalA 696,854 575,703 - 56,353 696,854 632,056
Elimination of inter-segment revenue #5549 I A (108,471) (80,326) - (2198270)  (103471) (2,278,596
Consolidated revenue Y ON 2,687,248 2,439,022 - 5115880 2,687,248 7,554,902
Profit A
Gross profit for reportable segments 2/ HEH 347,742 309,349 - 1,555,285 347,742 1,864,634
Gross profit for other segments Eth D HER 113,804 77,102 - 39,141 113,804 116,243
461546 386,451 - 1594426 461546 1980877
Other revenue Hithz 41,411 24,802 - 64,069 41,411 88,871
Other net (loss)/income Eft (B8)/ WAFE (4,454) 14,649 - 6,794 (4,454) 21,443
Distribution costs DA (251,977)  (251,871) - (1,168,902)  (251,977) (1,420,773
Administrative expenses THER (140,414)  (137,958) = (99,185)  (140,414) (237,143
Other operating expenses HEER% - = - (3,260) - (3,260
Finance costs BISRR (2,431) (59,931) - (37,435) (2,431) (97,366
Share of profits of joint ventures RN el - - - 835 - 835
Consolidated profit/(loss) RARBAER / (B8)
before taxation 103,681 (23,858) - 357,342 103,681 333,484

@ Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 205 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

3 HEREEISBERE @)

(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DEI|E (&)
(ii) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit jj) ZROTUMA - BEREECYER (£)
or loss and assets (Continued)
2018 2017
—E-NF —tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
Assets EE
Assets for reportable segments EXRHHEE (FE
(inventories) 1,266,545 1,258,648
Assets for other segments (inventories)  Hih DI EE (78 136,752 122,962
Elimination of unrealised inter-segment ?fﬁfﬁﬂi@é g2l bl
profit (46) (7)
1,403,251 1,381,603
Trade, other receivables, FEWE SRR - HAvpEUL
prepayment and deposits I BERBERES 331,095 619,522
Cash and cash equivalents B KIBEEEEY 1,551,003 964,172
Deposits with banks RITIFHK 638,211 668,720
Investment properties B 141,419 145,100
Other property, plant and equipment HibmE - R &EE 443,660 387,268
Intangible assets | EE 1,956 1,347
Goodwill G 233,594 232,307
Other investments Hmig& 168,696 398,724
Deferred tax assets BLEFTREE 7,144 4,710
Consolidated total assets AR EE 4,920,029 4,803,473

(iii)  Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical locations of (i) the Group’s revenue from
external customers and (ii) the Group’s investment
properties, other property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets, goodwill, prepayment and deposits and other
The

geographical locations of customers are based on the

investments (“specified non-current assets”).

locations at which the services were provided or the goods
delivered. The geographical locations of the specified non-
current assets are based on the physical locations of the
assets, in the case of property, plant and equipment, the
locations of operations to which they are allocated, in the
case of intangible assets and goodwill, and the locations
of operations, in the case of prepayment and deposits and

other investments.

(i) HEEHR
TRENBANAESERBINBES ZWA R
(IVAEENKREDME - EMYE  BERRK
H BEEE B2 BIREBERZRENUAE
Hthix & ((BEFRBDEE] IEEHE
ko B P AT M R IR IR AR 7% 3 & T B B
oo mWE - BEAREMNS EEERD
BENMEHMEREEERMEMEES 3
ﬁﬂéﬁ?&?ﬁ@ﬁ’ﬁg CRESEEHEEH 2 E
BN REBEREZEAREMBREMS @ &
g%@ﬁﬂ{i@%ﬂiéun o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

F 25 3 2 P

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S H158A4) - EEBUARKEZ7)

3  REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 HEERTHHE #)
(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DEHE (&)

(i)  Geographic information (Continued) (i) HEER (&)

The Group’'s businesses are mainly managed in three AREBITEE=Z(FAFELEME  BIPRENA
principal economic environments, Mainland China, Hong i - BERA&E EHRIGIEITER -
Kong and Taiwan/Malaysia.

2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
Revenue from external customers REIIHESE ZWA
Continuing operations: HECERE
Hong Kong BB 1,912,296 1,784,580
Taiwan/Malaysia A/ BRAED 195,499 166,242
Mainland China REI A 579,453 488,200
2,687,248 2,439,022
Discontinued operations: RIEEERTE
Mainland China P A - 4,587,574
Hong Kong B - 528,306
= 5,115,880
Total HET 2,687,248 7,554,902
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARET T
Specified non-current assets EEFRBERE
Hong Kong E5 441,291 666,437
Mainland China R B (A 439,718 396,911
Taiwan/Malaysia &/ Bkhan 127,692 126,814
Total Bzt 1,008,701 1,190,162

@ Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 205 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)

4 OTHER REVENUE AND NET (LOSS)/

4 HttilzEk (B8) WA FHE

INCOME
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARBTT
(@)  Other revenue (a) Htzs
Continuing operations: HEREER
Interest income FEWA 32,238 14,623
Government grants IR I 76 B 242 1,305
Rental income from operating leases, KEHEZHS WA -
other than those relating to MIGEMERBERIN
investment properties 71 618
Rental income from investment properties R EHREME 2 AL WA 2,852 1,220
Others Hh 5,008 7,036
41,411 24,802

In 2018, the Group successfully applied for funding support
set up by the Guangdong Government. The purpose of the
fund is to encourage automation and innovation by granting
financial assistance to commercial entities whose industries
meet certain criteria.

REF—N\F AEERNEFTHERER
FRIMEBIAR - 2EEHBNIMITEN
ERERENBEEBRHYBIENAZEA
B MalF -

(b)  Other net (loss)/income (b)  Hfb (F518), WAFEE
Continuing operations: FEREET
Impairment of goodwill (note 13) RERE (Hi7E13) - (23,059)
Impairment of intangible assets (note 12) M\ EERME (H:212) - (12,978)
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain SNEH % (EEB),/ WS S8 (4,508) 1,809
Net loss on redemption and JED & BRI EIEA

repurchase of senior notes BB 55 = (31,292)
Net gain on disposal of other property, HEEMYE - BE K&

plant and equipment R T 54 935
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary e — R B AR 2 WEs - 79,234

(4,454) 14,649

FRAERA RAT ZF— )\E4HK @



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 25 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S H158A4) - EEBUARKEZ7)

5 PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 5

Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging:

BRBLADR R (B5])

BRERDREA S (E18) LHRIATIEB &EH -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTIT
(a)  Finance costs (@)  BIEERAR
Continuing operations: BHELSEFER
Interest on bank loans RITERFE 2,070 18,747
Interest on senior notes BAZRENE = 35,706
Bank charges RITEA 361 5,478
2,431 59,931
(b)  Staff costs (b) BIEK
Continuing operations: FEAEHETR
Salaries, wages and other benefits e  TERHEMFIZE 118,580 115,144
Contributions to defined contribution FERBIGRIRETEIHK
retirement plans 12,521 13,671
131,101 128,815
(c)  Other items (c) HhEH
Continuing operations: FREEEER
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 12) 2 & E#ksY (Hf:E12) 579 512
Depreciation of investment properties KEMENEMYE
and other property, plant and WE MR ETE
equipment (note 11) (Biat11) 32,948 27,439
Impairment losses of WIEEE
— trade receivables — EIE SR 2,710 =
— other receivables — HAbFEW IR 696 &
Operating lease charges in respect MEKEHEER
of properties
— minimum lease payments — &IEAERIE 134,613 140,628
- contingent rents —AHEE 1,923 2,536
Auditors’ remuneration Z A B & 1,625 1,573
Cost of inventories* FER A 2,225,702 2,052,571
# Cost of inventories in continuing operations includes * RECEEBTFERAD I BEEE TK

RMB88,642,000 (2017: RMB81,472,000) relating to staff
costs, depreciation and amortisation expenses and
operating lease charges respectively, which amounts are
also included in the respective total amounts disclosed
separately above or in note 5(b) for each type of
expenses.

@ Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 205 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)
6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 HFEBRARZHAEH
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit (a) #HREEHKAZBIIES :
or loss represents:

Continuing operations: SESEET
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax REABIIE — FBRER
Provision for the year INF E R 15,961 2,975
Under/(over)-provision in respect BAFEEBETR
of prior years (BE#EE) 102 (2,804)
16,063 171
Current tax — Overseas AREABIE — wIh
Provision for PRC Corporate Income RFEER BT EMESREE
Tax for the year 10,052 21,735
Provision for Taiwan Income Tax REEQEMEREE
for the year 49 16
Withholding tax TEHIAR 123 56,205
10,224 77,956
Deferred tax IR I8
Origination and reversal of temporary TR =R v E A K0
differences (1,855) (56,337)
Total st 24,432 21,790

FRAERA RAT ZF— )\E4HK @



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 25 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S H158A4) - EEBUARKEZ7)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 SEBRRZFEH &)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

(b) HEMXEZERBRTE 2GR
wmA S (E1R) Bk

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit/(loss) at applicable tax rates:

2018 2017
—E-N\F =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETTT
Profit/(loss) before taxation BB A= T (EE) 103,681 (23,858)
Notional tax on profit/(loss) before BEALER S (BE) 2
taxation, calculated at the rates HEMIE - BEBRE
applicable to profits in the EE 2w ERAREATE
jurisdictions concerned 19,387 8,581
Tax effect of non-taxable income BAGRWA 2 RIEZE (2,296) (4,014)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A HMBERT 2 RIEFE 2,198 1,583
Under/(over) -provision in respect BEFEREETRE
of prior years (BEEE) 102 (2,804)
Effect of tax losses not recognised WARERZBIARBEFE 5,041 18,444
Actual tax expense ERBIERY 24,432 21,790

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands,
the Company is exempt from income tax in the Cayman
Islands. In addition, subsidiaries located in jurisdictions other
than Hong Kong, Mainland China, Taiwan and Malaysia are not
subject to any income tax in these jurisdictions.

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5%
(2017: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year,
taking into account a reduction granted by the Hong Kong SAR
Government of 75% of the tax payable for the year assessment
2017/18 subject to a maximum reduction of HKD30,000 for
each business (2017: a maximum reduction of HKD20,000 was
granted for the year of assessment 2016/17 and was taken into
account in calculating the provision for 2017).

The applicable income tax rate of the Group’s Mainland China
subsidiaries is 25% (2017: 25%) for the year.

The provision for Taiwan Income Tax is calculated at 20%
(2017: 17%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year.

The provision for Malaysia Income Tax is calculated at 24% of
the estimated assessable profits for the year.

@ Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 205 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)

7 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 7 EEE

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) RIEBERRKHIE3ISI(N)KLA AR (FEESE
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the FIz& k) HHIE2PFBE 2 EEMS T ¢
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Salaries,
allowances,
share award
scheme Contributions
Directors’ and other to retirement
fee benefits* benefit plans Total
e 2%,
e RAREH
EE20kn REfF S RS #it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT ARETT ARET T
(note 22)
(hizz)
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-E-N\ETZA=T-HLEE
Executive Directors YES
Mr. Zhang Yuping FaTLs 203 3,605 15 3,823
Mr. Huang Yonghua EXERE 152 2,469 - 2,621
Mr. Lee Shu Chung Stan FhBEE 152 1,736 15 1,903
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Shi Zhongyang LHBEE 85 - - 85
Ms. Chen Jun (resigned on 9 April 2018) REfL (R=F-N\EMANBEHR) 23 - - 23
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Cai Jianmin BRRALE 85 - 85
Mr. Wong Kam Fai, William ERELE 85 - 85
M. Liu Xueling Ly 85 - 85
Total it 870 7810 8,710

SEAREEBATRA T % R @



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 25 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S H158A4) - EEBUARKEZ7)

7 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

7 EEME @

Salaries,
allowances,
share award
scheme Contributions
Directors’ and other to retirement
fee benefits* benefit plans Total
562
bUECHE RARRH
LEL EY ity HER5S st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NS ARETT ARETT ARBTT
(note 22)
(i)
Year ended 31 December 2017 HE-E-tEt-R=1-HLEE
Executive Directors HiiEs
Mr. Zhang Yuping FHTLE 208 2,025 16 2,249
Mr. Huang Yonghua EXERL 156 2912 - 3,068
Mr. Lee Shu Chung Stan ShRLE 156 2,308 16 2,480
Non-executive Directors FiTES
Mr. Shi Zhongyang iyt 87 - - 87
Ms. Chen Jun (resigned on 9 Apri 2018) RERT (R=E-N\EBANBRHE) 87 = = 87
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFiTES
Mr. Cai Jianmin BEREA 87 - - 87
Mr. Wong Kam Fai, William BRBELL 87 - _ 87
Mr. Liu Xueling HNEERL 87 - - 87
Total it 955 7,245 K7 8,232
i As disclosed in note 23(b), during the year ended 31  +# Kt E23(b)FT T BE T —N\F+=

December 2018, the Company granted certain shares
to its directors under the share award scheme and
the corresponding expenses of RMB171,000 (2017:
RMB1,110,000) were included in the salaries, allowances
share award scheme and other benefits.

Save as disclosed above, no directors’ remuneration
has been paid or is payable by the Group during the
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017. There was no
arrangement under which a director waived or agreed
to waive any remuneration during the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017.

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017,
there were no amounts paid or payable by the Group to the
directors or any of the five highest paid individuals set out
in note 8 below as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

@ Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 205 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)

8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three
(2017: three) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed
in note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the
other two (2017: two) individuals are as follows:

8 BeEHAL
REBRBHFALTESF =R (-2

—tF:

2)REF HFMWRWMETHRE - EHEME
Tt FMAB) ALZEFMEET

2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR¥ETTT
Salaries and other emoluments e kHEAME 3,941 4,636
Contributions to retirement RIRAE N ET B LR
benefit plans 34 35
Discretionary bonuses BIFTEAL = 3
3,975 4,671
The emoluments of the two (2017: two) individuals, other BmAEESEEYME (T —+F : WE) AL
than directors, with the highest emoluments are within the (ZZR®4N) 2SN E N5 &EE
following bands:
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD”) B ([Bxl) AE N
1,500,001 - 2,000,000 1,500,000 - 2,000,000 1 -
2,000,001 - 2,500,000 2,000,001 - 2,500,000 = 1
2,500,001 - 3,000,000 2,500,001 - 3,000,000 1 -
3,000,001 - 3,500,000 3,000,001 - 3,500,000 = 1

FRAERA RAT ZF— )\E4HK



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 25 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S H158A4) - EEBUARKEZ7)

9 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 9 HtEEWKA

(a) Tax effect relating to other comprehensive (a) HEHEMEEWANHRESE
income

No tax effect is credited to other comprehensive income for HE_-_Z—NEF_-_Z—+FE+-_HA=+—H

the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017. IEEFE - $E5E,4ﬁ5fﬁlﬁ%ﬁu‘|‘)\ﬁﬁﬂ£ﬁﬂﬁl)\

(b) Components of other comprehensive income, (b) HttZ2EWAARID (BIFEEH

including reclassification adjustments D)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—LF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTIT
Equity investments at FVOCI: BEHEMEEBARALE
ATEZIRARE
Changes in fair value recognised FAERZ AAEES
during the year (note 15) (H1zE15) (2383,654) -
Net movement in the fair value reserve REMEEBAERZER
(non-recycling) during the year recognised A EREEEE)FEE
in other comprehensive income (T8 A fB%) (233,654) =
Available-for-sale securities: AEEERES ¢
Changes in fair value recognised FRNERZ AN EE
during the year — 220,626
Net movement in the fair value reserve REMZEBAERZFER
(recycling) during the year recognised ArEREZEFE
in other comprehensive income (A8 AfE2s) = 220,626
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 205 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)

10
(@)

The calculation of basic earnings/(losses) per share is
based on the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company of RMB68,746,000 (2017: loss of RMB236,382,000)

EARNINGS/(LOSSES) PER SHARE

Basic earnings/(losses) per share

10 ERER (FHE)

(a) BREAXEBRAN (EHE)
FREARNAR (EE) HREARQ RN E
B A SRR A R#68,746,000T (ZZE—+
F I8 AR#236,382,0007T) MFEAND T

and the weighted average of 4,665,883,432 ordinary shares 4 9% £14,665,883,432% & i@ i% (_?—
(2017: 4,730,187,957 ordinary shares) in issue during the % : 4,730,187, 957 L @R) 51 & - st E W
year, calculated as follows: T
(i) Weighted average number of ordinary shares (i) EiERINEEH R E
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—HA—RzE® BR% 4,684,526,959 4,779,810,959
Effect of shares repurchased R iEE 2z &
(note 25(c)(ii)) (B7aE25(c)(ii) (12,311,210) (46,764,986)

Effect of shares under share award

Birze g

scheme

RBR D BT EIREE

(6,332,317) (2,858,016)

Weighted average number of ordinary

RT-A=t—HE&&

[

shares at 31 December hniEF g IR EL 4,665,883,432  4,730,187,957
(i)  Consolidated profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary equity (i) ADXBEBRRREMGEEEER (&
shareholders of the Company 8)
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —t%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTIT
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity 2NN LGRS Y= PN
shareholders of the Company wmA (&)
— continuing operations — BELSEER 68,746 (562,804)
— discontinued operations — IR T = (183,578)
68,746 (236,382)

FRAERA RAT ZF— )\E4HK @
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S 25 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S H158A4) - EEBUARKEZ7)

10 EARNINGS/(LOSSES) PER SHARE (Continved) 10 SRER (E#8) (&)
(a) Basic earnings/(losses) per share (Continued) (a) BREXERN (&EE) &)

(i)  Earnings/(losses) per share (i) BRE2BR (HE)
2018 2017
—B-N\F —FtF

Basic earnings/(losses) per share BRERAEF (EHE)

— continuing operations — RBEEEES RMB0.015 RMB(0.011)
ARH0.015t AR¥(0.011)7T
— discontinued operations — R EET RMB(0.039)
- AKR%(0.039)7T
RMBO0.015 RMB(0.050)

AR#0.015t AR (0.050)7T

(b) Diluted earnings/(losses) per share (b) EBREEERF (FE)

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares during the #HZE-—ZT—N\FER-_ZF—+tF+_-_A=+—H
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, and therefore, & E @ WEEFFEELRAR REREBEER
diluted earnings/(losses) per share are the same as basic #| (E18) BEREARETF] /(EE) HHE -
earnings/(losses) per share.

@ Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 205 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)
11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER 11 REYHXE - Hitt¥=% - BER
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Bia]
Office
equipment
landand  Leasehold Motor and other ~ Construction Investment
buildings  improvements vehicles  fixed assets  in progress Sub-fotal properties Total
BLERER
THREF HERE e HitEEEE HEIR NGt RENE )
RMB'000 RMB'OOO RMB‘OOO RM’B'OOO RM’B‘OOO RM’B'OOO HMB‘OOO RMB'000
ARETT  AREBTT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Cost: B
Balance at 1 January 2017 RIF-tE-A-BER 1,116,389 488,105 59,694 181,662 427,435 2,273,285 50,961 2,324,246
Exchange adjustments EH A% (8,489) (2,296) (2,688) (8,707) - (22,180) - (22,180)
Additions BE 1,928 16,052 2,125 36,866 24,006 81,577 - 81,577
Transfer from construction in progress BERIEEA 214,536 6,166 = 3511 (431,460  (147.247) 147,247 =
Transfer to intangible assets (note 12) BE\EWEE (li#12) = = = = (4.201) (4.201) - (4.201)
Transfer to investment properties EARENE (25,248) = = = = (25,248) 25,248 =
Disposals ﬁ (7.919) (14,148) (2,398) (36,312) - (60,777) - (60,777)
Disposal of a subsidiary e EHELT (70,993) = = = = (70993) - (70993)
Disposals of discontinued operations EE%MQ%%‘% (970192)  (429,581) (1,106) (67.932) (1221)  (1,480032) (76.209)  (1,556,241)
Balance at 31 December 2017 RZB—tE+ZA=1-A
i 310,012 64,298 42,227 119,088 8,559 544,184 147247 691,431
Balance at 1 January 2018 -\E-f-HzER 310,012 64,298 42,221 119,088 8,559 544,184 147247 691,431
Exchange adjustments [RJ AR 5,553 1,650 2,21 1,040 - 10,514 - 10,514
Additions BE 1,251 14,490 1,965 14,788 51,577 84,071 - 84,071
Transfer from construction in progress HERIEEA 8570 2547 - 2182 (13,299) - - -
Transfer to intangible assets (note 12) 8 \BVEE (i#12) - = = = (112) (772) = (172)
Disposals i (1,978) (5,318) (1,772) (20,239) - (29,307) - (29,307)
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZF-N\E+ZA=1-H
LR 323,408 77667 44,691 116,859 46,065 608,690 147247 755,937
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance at 1 January 2017 (190,417) (371,867) (34,261) (115,541) - (712,086) (13,650) (725,736)
Exchange adjustments 2,116 4207 6,631 2,790 - 15,744 - 15,744
Charge for the year (21,168) (29.977) (6,138) (7,655) - (64,938) (9,167) (74,105)
Written back on disposals ﬁﬁ R 6,843 13518 2,240 33,306 - 55,907 - 55,907
Written back on disposal of a subsidiary HE-TFHBATEE 3350 = = = = 3,350 - 3,350
Written back on disposals of discontinued tH’%%%”“%%f%@
operations 164,928 342,421 10,502 21,250 - 545,107 20,670 565,777
Balance at 31 December 2017 aé‘fﬁ‘f R=1-A
z (4348) (4169  (10%)  (59850) - (156916) RuUY (159,06
Balance at 1 January 2018 (4348 (4169 (1026)  (59850) - (15691 QM7 (159089
Exchange adjustments (2743) (1,026) (801) (1,495) = (6,065) = (6,065)
Charge for the year 62683 (8125 (@24) (1619 - @) (B8N (320
Written back on disposals 1978 5273 1,39 18,572 = 27218 = 27218
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZE2-N\E+ZA=1-A
53 (41,396) (45,570) (23,673) (54,391) = (165,030) (5,828) (170,858)
Net book value: BE:
At 31 December 2018 ~“E-\E+-f=1-H 282,012 32,097 21,018 62,468 46,065 443 660 141,419 585,079
At 31 December 2017 RZF-t£+-A=1-H 275,664 22,606 21,201 59,238 8,559 387,268 145,100 532,368
(i) The land owned by the Group is located in Taiwan, (i) NEBHEEY THARAE  BEER

which has an indefinite useful life and therefore is
not depreciated. The carrying amount of the land
as at 31 December 2018 is RMB87,484,000 (2017:
RMB85,503,000).

EFERAFH BT ERNE RN_F—
NE+_A=+—8 ZtzEEE
B AR #87,484,0007T (Z & — £ ¢
AR #85503,0007T) °
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S H158A4) - EEBUARKEZ7)

11  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(i) The buildings owned by the Group are located in
Mainland China, Hong Kong and Taiwan.

(iii)  As at 31 December 2018, land and buildings
in Mainland China with carrying amount of
RMB41,123,000 (2017: nil) and Taiwan with carrying
amounts of RMB118,251,000 (2017: RMB116,200,000)
were pledged to banks as security for certain loan
facilities (see note 21).

(iv)  Investment properties

11 REVE - HYE- - BER
BaRE D)

(i AEEEEZEFURTEAM - FE

RAME -

(il HNZTE—N\FE+-_A=+—8 " U
Bl A Hb AR E B A A R %41,123,0007T
ZE—+tF 8 RNRAEREEBER
AR#118,251,0007 (ZZF—+F : A
R #116,200,00070) 2 :# RIEFEE
RETERZERMERTRT (F2R
BizE21) °

(iv) H&EBEWE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBFIT

Net book value of investment properties 1 && Y% 7 BREFE 141,419 145,100
Fair value of investment properties KEMEZARE 182,340 186,889

As at 31 December 2018, the investment properties located
in Shanghai, Mainland China, were rented out under terms
of operating leases or held for capital appreciation. As at 31
December 2018, the fair value of the investment properties
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
is estimated at approximately RMB182,340,000 on an open
market, existing use basis, by reference to recent sales
price of comparable properties using market data which
are publicly available and made adjustments to reflect the
differences in the characteristics between the investment
properties and the comparable properties. The valuations
were carried out by an independent firm of surveyors.
The Group has adopted the cost model under HKAS 40,
Investment property, to account for its investment properties,
and accordingly, the carrying amounts of the investment
properties were no adjusted to the revalued amount at the
end of the reporting period.

@ Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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(iv)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 205 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

The fair values of the Group’s properties measured at

the end of the reporting period on a recurring basis were

categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as

defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into

which a fair value measurement is classified is determined

with reference to the observability and significance of the

inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the

measurement date.

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

The fair value measurement of the investment properties is

categorised into Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

11 REVE - HYE- - BER
BaRE D)

(iv) ®EWE (&)

RRERRIEZEBTHEREENEI135R - 20
EifE  FTRAEARBESHEBHN=-ASHE
BUARBFERAEENYERIAE - AR

SFEMBRRN2REMERTRERAZBA
BEZUBEREEREZHMETE - BHEFA
AEMAT :

- F-REE: 2ARERRAEF-—HBA
HEFE IAEAERARRRERMS
PHEREEXBEREHBRE -

- FE_MMHE: PAERAE_REB AR
BEfE ARBENEE—R2AERE
ABE RTERBAEATABEREA
RHE - NABRBAERSEEREM
BEIE 2 mATRR -

- F=MMHE: 2AERAERTAEER
WARBGE °

REMENRIABFEERABSERBFTD
BRE=FK-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 25 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S H158A4) - EEBUARKEZ7)

11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER

11 REYXE H¥E - BER

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ®fE 2
(Continued)
(v)  Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (v) FE=ZWAREFEER
Valuation techniques Unobservable input Range
(=L FBEHAER gE
Investment properties Market comparison Discount on quality 2% to 15%
Commercial - Mainland China approach of the buildings (2017: 0% to 29%)
REMR 5L BA BFERIE 2%%E15%
Ax - PEAL (Z2—+tF:
0%%£29%)

The fair values of the Group’s properties located in the
Mainland China are determined using market comparison
approach by reference to recent sales price of comparable
properties on a price per square foot basis, adjusted for a
discount specific to the quality of the Group’s properties
compared to the recent sales. Higher premium for
higher quality properties will result in a higher fair value
measurement.

@ Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 205 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)

12 EFREE

Trademarks Trademarks
with indefinite with finite Software Favourable

useful lives useful lives licences lease terms Total

ERTER REERA gt

EBVEE EHZHE (e FEViEY fct

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETFT ARETT ARETFT ARETT ARETT
Cost: A
Balance at 1 January 2017 RIE—+F-R-B2EH 13,418 8,744 44,745 59,908 126,815
Exchange adjusiments EHAR (440) - (122) - (562)
Additions HE - - 913 - 913
Transfer from construction in progress ~ BERIREA (4#11)

(note 11) - - 4,201 - 4201
Disposals of discontinued operations ~ HER HELEK - (8,744) (46,689) (59,908) (115,341)
Impairment loss (note 4(b) REBE (b)) (12978) - - - (12978)
Blence at§1 Decemoer 2017 R=FEFY-A=f-HzER - - i S,
Balance at 1 January 2018 RS- \E-F-Rz&8 - - 3,048 - 3,048
Exchange adjusments ExAE - - 2 - 2
Additions ®E = = 415 - 415
Transfer from construction in progress ~ HERIREA (#1211

(note 11) - - 2 - m
Blence at$1 December 2018 W=%-NFY-A=f-HzEH . - — -
Accumulated amortisation: 25t
Balance at 1 January 2017 R-E—+F-A-Azes - (8,151) (31,454) (13,452) (53,057)
Exchange adjusiments EiAE - - 69 - 69
Charge for the year EElE - (572) (4,429) (1,381) (6,382)
Written back on disposals of discontinued HE&|HEE£EEMD

operations = 8,723 3413 14,833 57669
Blence at 31 Decemoer 2017 R=FEFY-A=f-HzER - - (1701 R (1701
Balance at 1 January 2018 RS- \E-F-Rz&8 - - (1,701) - (1,701)
Exchange adjusiments EpE = = (20) - (20)
Charge for the year FERE - - (579) - (579)
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZZ-\ETZA=T-RzE8 - - (2,300) - (2,300)
Net book value: SHFE:

At 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+-A=1-H - - 1,956 - 1,056
At 31 December 2017 R=E—+E+-A=+-H - - 1,347 - 1,347
The amortisation charges for the year are included in FE#EERTAGESEBRERITERER] T -

“Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss.
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13 GOODWILL 13 B8
RMB’000
ARET T
Cost: B
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—+tF—H—H 549,545
Disposals of discontinued operations HE R PR (294,584)
At 31 December 2017  R=F—AEt-A=t-H s LD
At 1 January 2018 RZE—N\F—H—H 254,961
Exchange adjustments ME 5, B 1,287
At 31 December 2018 R=ZF—\Ft=-A=t—H 23l
Accumulated impairment losses: ZHREEE -
At 1 January 2017 R-ZE—+&—H—H (93,718)
Exchange adjustments PE 5 405
Impairment loss (note 4(b)) EEE (KiE4(b)) (23,059)
Disposals of discontinued operations HER RS ER 93,718
At 31 December 2017, 1 January 2018 and RZE—+F+=—A=+—8"
31 December 2018 —E-N\F-HA-BK
—E-N\F+=—A=+—H (22,654)
Carrying amount: BRMEE ¢
At 31 December 2018 R-_E—NF+_-_A=+—H 233,594
At 31 December 2017 R-ZZE—+F+-HA=+—H 232,307

@ Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 205 A B i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)

13 GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing
goodwil

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
identified according to places of operations and reportable
segments as follows:

13 BE (&)
CSEBECHESEEENZRERIR

BEIETAEERETINEEMWHMNERD
ERFrHERE 2 IR B E A BT

2018 2017

—ET-N\F —F—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBFIT

Retail - Hong Kong TE -F/HE 168,063 171,163
All others Fr E A 65,531 61,144
233,594 232,307

The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units are
determined based on value-in-use calculations. The key
assumptions for the value-in-use calculations are the discount
rate and revenue/gross profit growth rate. The Group prepares
cash flow forecasts derived from the two year financial
budgets and extrapolates cash flows for the following three to
five years based on estimated annual average growth rates in
sales ranging from 3% to 8% (2017: 3% to 13%), growth rates
in gross profit ratio ranging from 0% to 2% (2017: 0% to 3%),
and a discount rate ranging from 14% to 14.5% (2017: 14% to
15%). The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific
risks relating to the relevant segments. The growth rates are
determined by management based on the performance of the
relevant cash-generating units and their estimated future
development.

REeELBN A KRDSBNIRERAEENE
BT FREEMTEZEZBRRAMBAXRRIK
W/ EFERE - REBIREN FI3%E8%Z
BHEFEFHHEERRER (ZT—tF : 3%=
13%) * M F0%ZE2% 2 EFERERER (ZF—
+F 0%E3%) BN F14%E14.5%2 Bh 3R
R(ZE—+F : 14%215%) REIZMF I K
EEsReREAREHEE=-"ZAF 2R
TR o FTABEIRE BT ATREIR & - I /2 il £ 45 8
DEEBCEERR ZEEERXTDAEEE
BRIEHBERESEESEN 2 KRB REFTARRER
METE °
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14 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES 14 RBARZER
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries TXREHIIEHAEEEE  EEHXBBEEEKR

which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities FZMBARZFIE - RIESHIRH - I
of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless RRHERIEAERR -

otherwise stated.

Proportion of ownership interest

FERRD
Place of Group’s Particulars of
incorporation effective  Held by the Held by issued and
Name of company and business interest ~ Company subsidiaries paid up capital ~ Principal activity
5Bz BRRE HRELR BETRAE
NEAEH AR ERLH ERER BB E B IEXE
Elegant Jewellery Holding Limited Hong Kong 100% - 100% 5,000,000 shares of  Retail of watches and
HKD1 each jewellery
—EREEEERAT BB 100% - 100% 5000000 FERIAETE
GREEIET KRR
BEEERRAERAR Taiwan 80% - 80% 155,820,000 shares of ~ Retail of watches
NTD1 each
=) 80% - 80% 165,820,000 FHTE
BREER BT 2R
Alpha Key Investments Limited BVI 100% 100% = 1 share of USD1  Investment holding
BRRABRAF RERAEE 100% 100% - WIETZRY  REBR
Hengdeli Giant Dragon Limited BVI 100% 100% - 1 share of USD1  Investment holding
FRMERBRAH RERAES 100% 100% - WIETzRY  REBRK
Xinyu Hengdeli Investments Limited ~ BVI 100% 100% = 1 share of USD1  Investment holding
HTFEHREERAT RERAEE 100% 100% - RixTZRn  REER

The directors are of the view that the Group has no HBEZZ—N\FE-_ZT—+tF+-A=+—H
individually material non-controlling interest for the years LFE EZRAXEEWEFEFHSEEAR
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017. B FEIE AR RS ©
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15 OTHER INVESTMENTS

15

HigirE

31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
—E-N\F —E-N\EF S
t=A=t+—H —A—H +=ZA=+—H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
Wi ARETT ARET T ARETF T
Equity securities designated at EEABBHMEEAWRAR
FVOCI (non-recycling) ARETE (FAEAER)
ZBREES (i), (ii)
- Listed securities - EmEH (iii), (iv) 168,696 398,724 -
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ AftHESLREE
- Listed securities - EmEH (if) - - 398,724
168,696 398,724 398,724
Notes: Biat -
(i) Financial assets at fair value through other (i BREMEERAZAABHENEREE

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

comprehensive income (FVOCI) comprise equity
securities which the Group intends to hold for strategic
purposes, and which the Group has irrevocably elected
at initial recognition to recognise in this category. No
dividends were received on these investments during the
year (2017: nil).

Available-for-sale financial assets were reclassified to
equity securities designated at FVOCI (non-recycling)
upon the initial application of HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018
(see note 1(c)(i)).

During the year, as a result of a takeover offer for cash,
the Group disposed of partial shares in We Solutions
Limited (formerly known as O Luxe Holdings Limited),
a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands,
with a cash consideration of RMB66,423,000. Upon
disposal, the corresponding amount of RMB57,659,000
accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) has
been transferred to retained profits.

As at 31 December 2018, the fair value of the remaining
shares was RMB109,997,000.

During the year, the Group acquired shares in Prinx
Chengshan (Cayman) Holding Limited, a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands.

As at 31 December 2018, the fair value of these shares
was RMB58,457,000.

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

BIEAREE RSB OB AES K
= B 2 HA 1) 45 W TR B 3 4 TN A SRS L 3R e R
ZoEER  FAREARSHERIUR S
(ZF—+F |-

R-ZZE-N\F-—A-—HBEREREENBR
SEAFR R IHHLESHEESH D
BEiEERBBEMEEKRARAAER
E (THBARD) EAES (F2RKE
1(e)(@)) °

REER AEERRSKBEZHMUIRE
RBARKE6,423,000t HE HELBRA
Al (AR EERERAT) - —HRFA
SHEFMKRIZ ATNRBLBG - REE
% RAAERE (FTHEABR) REFTZ
HEES 5 A R¥57,659,0007T 2 8 AR B %
F| o

R-ZE—NFE+-_A=+—8 #TERNHH
AR EHBARE109,997,0007T °

REFEAN - NEBUWE T HAEKIL (L) 1%
BERAR (—ERAEFESEMKLZA
A]) MRR (D °

R-ZE—N\FE+-_A=+—8  ZERNHHN
N BB ARS8 457,0007T °
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16 INVENTORIES

(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise:

16 =EE&
(a) RESHBERRIRZEESE

2018 2017

—ZE-N\F —T—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBTFTT

Raw materials R 18,403 15,604
Work in progress & m 33,755 30,565
Finished goods 2K 1,351,093 1,335,434
1,403,251 1,381,603

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories

(b) WERAAMXIALFABRZFEHA

recognised as an expense and included in palin/ Ll N
profit or loss is as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
Continuing operations: FEAEHER .
Carrying amount of inventories sold EHFEREE 2,187,104 2,045,647
Inventory provision FEREHE 38,598 6,924
2,225,702 2,052,571

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and distribution costs. These estimates
are based on 1) the sales volume history; 2) the ageing of
inventory; 3) physical condition of inventories reported from
the shops; and 4) recommended selling prices set by brand
owners. Management reassesses the estimations at the end
of each reporting period.

@ Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17 EREZRAREMEWRFIE
31 December 1 January 31 December

2018 2018 2017

—E-N\F —T-N\F —E—

+=B=+-8 —A—8 +z=A=+-8

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETT ARBET T ARBT T

Current assets RENEE
Trade receivables, FEURE ZERFURE 18
net of loss allowance (note) BiE (K2 194,872 178,199 179,781
Other receivables, E b pE U FR IR E 18
net of loss allowance (note) B (H1E) 52,126 264,024 265,368
Financial assets measured LABESHPK ARG E 2
at amortised cost TREE 246,998 442 223 445,149
Prepayment and deposits AN FRIE KRS 64,721 148,957 148,957
311,719 591,180 594,106
Non-current assets FIRBEE
Prepayment and deposits AR RIE Rige 19,376 25,416 25,416
331,095 616,596 619,522
Note: Hiat -

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9, an opening adjustment as at 1 REMNEBHEHRELERFZHRE R — \F—

January 2018 was made to recognise additional ECLs on trade A—B{ELHBOFHLUNRREBREKE SRR L E

and other receivables (see note 1(c)(i)). fib B W KIB M RSN TR EAE BB 18 (B2 R W aE1(c)
(i) °

All of the trade and other receivables in current assets are GEHAEANFMERERKE SER R EMENKZIE
expected to be recovered within one year. BHIEHR —FAUE -
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17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17 ERWEZRAREMERIE
(Continued) (%)
Ageing analysis BRER D AT

The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of loss BWESERZK (BEMBREERE) NilEHAREZ

allowance) at the end of the reporting period, based on the BEAHG 2REATAT ¢
invoice date, is as follows:

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T

Within 3 months =@ARN 153,118 156,651
Over 3 months but less than 12 months BB =fAFEL A+ @A 41,634 20,369
Over 12 months BEt+—@A 120 2,761
194,872 179,781

Trade receivables are due within 30 to 180 days from the EWEZRFHFHRERHEFT0E180H 2IH] -
date of billing. Further details regarding the Group’s credit BREASBEEEBRNE — FFBIANHEE

policy are set out in note 29(a). 29(a) °
18 DEPOSITS WITH BANKS 18 |ITEX
2018 2017
—2-N\F e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Deposits with original maturities REBAR BB =(EAH
over three months TR 638,211 668,720
19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19 BEREASEEY
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (@) RekReFEWERE
2018 2017
—=-N\F —T—t+%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T INERE ST
Cash at banks and on hand RITRFEES 1,551,003 964,172
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19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

19 RERBSEEY #)

(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before taxation to (b) BRBAIER,(EE) REEFE
cash generated from operations: BREMNEHEK :
2018 2017
—E-)\F T —tF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Hat ARET T ARBTT
Profit/(loss) before taxation BELRTER (E1E)
— Continuing operations — BB EET 103,681 (23,858)
— Discontinued operations — R PR = 357,342
Adjustments for: FEIEE -
Depreciation of investment WEMEREME -
properties and other property, BEMEETE
plant and equipment 5(c) 32,948 74,105
Amortisation of intangible assets A B 5(c) 579 6,382
Finance costs BA TSR AR 5(a) 2,070 97,366
Interest income FEWA 4(a) (32,238) (22,733)
Net loss on redemption and L EIpSE AR P SE S
repurchase of senior notes EBFRE 4(b) - 31,292
Share award scheme A% 22 Eh T 2 23(b) 322 4,508
Share of profit of joint ventures FE(EE &R A5 F - (835)
Impairment of intangible assets EREERE 4(b) - 12,978
Impairment of goodwill [EESERE 13 - 23,059
Net gain on disposal of other HEHMME - BER
property, plant and equipment B ey Tl 4(b) (54) (798)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary  H&—RIMBARZ Wz = (79,234)
Operating profit before changes in &EE &S BAT KL %R
working capital 107,308 479,574
Decrease in inventories FERD 36,152 396,346
Decrease/(increase) in trade and  EWE F R R E b e
other receivables RIER L (3G m) 84,690 (115,103)
Increase in trade and other FEHE 5 BR R Ho A FE
payables TRIEIE AN 41,098 265,002
Cash generated from operating RETERMEBRE
activities 269,248 1,025,819
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19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(Continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities:

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities

from financing activities. Liabilities arising from financing

activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future

cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated

cash flow statement as cash flows from financing activities.

19 BRERBSEEY »)

(c) BETBELZEEHRK:

TRAAEERERDELZBBEZIFIE -
MERDELAZABNRASRELARKESR
MERAEBZGAHEERERIBEARMEE
PREREZAE -

Bank loans
and other
borrowings Senior notes Total
RITERK
HMEE BEEE s
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®T T ARET T
(note 21)
(Hiz#21)
At 1 January 2018 R=ZE—NF—HA—H 109,120 - 109,120
Changes from financing cash flows: mEReREE
Proceeds from new bank loans IR ITERERIE 107,370 - 107,370
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (75,206) = (75,206)
Interest paid ETHE (2,070) - (2,070)
30,094 - 30,094
Exchange adjustments [E 5 e 2,468 - 2,468
Other change: Hih & H) :
Interest charged SHER B 2,070 - 2,070
2,070 - 2,070
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F
+=—RA=+—H 143,752 - 143,752
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19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19 RERREEEY 2)
(Continued)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (¢) ®ETBELEZEEHER: (@)
financing activities: (Continued)
Bank loans
and other
borrowings  Senior notes Total
RITER K
Hinfg & BEERE HE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT ARETTT
(note 21)
(Kizt21)
At 1 January 2017 R—ZE—+tF—H—H 2,885,336 1,499,199 4,384,535
Changes from financing cash flows: MERSREE
Proceeds from new bank loans I IRITE RS 0A 870,000 - 870,000
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (2,161,216) - (2,161,216)
Redemption of senior notes BEELERE - (1,468,527)  (1,468,527)
Interest paid BARF A (53,501) (72,718) (126,219)
(1,344,717)  (1,541,245)  (2,885,962)
Exchange adjustments FE o, % = (24,952) (24,952)
Other changes: Hihg g :
Interest charged FHEFE 53,501 35,706 89,207
Loss on redemption of senior notes BOELEEEIE - 31,292 31,292
Disposal of discontinued operations  HEK &2 R (1,485,000) - (1,485,000)
(1,431,499) 66,998  (1,364,501)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F
+=ZA=+—H 109,120 - 109,120

S
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20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20 ENESERIRRHEMESRE
31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
—E-N\E i Sit:2 —EtF
+ZA=+—-H —A—H +=ZB=+—-H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
/03 ARETTR ARETT ARETT
Trade payables BB SER 195,137 162,035 162,035
Contract liabilities AMAE (i), (ii) 12,268 15,582 =
Other payables and accrued expenses HMENTBERELER 102,261 81,147 81,147
Advance receipts from customers BFEET (i), (ii) = - 15,582
309,666 258,764 258,764

Notes: Hiat

(i) The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 (i)
at 1 January 2018. Under the transition methods chosen,
comparative information is not restated.

(i) Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, advance payments from (i)
customers are included in contract liabilities (see note

1(e)(iD)).

AEBER-_Z—\F-—A-—BERERE
BB ELERNE1SHE R E BT G IS LR
FOW - RIBMEENBENE  LREHR

WEESI -

REMT M B REEAEISHR - KB
BEPWMBEMFREAFAGHAE (FR2RME

1(e)ii)) ©

Ageing analysis BRER O AT

The ageing analysis of trade payables at the end of the ¥R
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: [ al

EHR BBRZHHARNESIRRZE
MranT

2018 2017

—E2E-N\F —T—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETTT

Within 1 month —@A N 178,784 IIBEESHE
Over 1 month but less than 3 months BE—EAELR=EAH 15,803 8,095
Over 3 months but less than 12 months @ =fAAELA+—_@A 139 20,075
Over 12 months Bl t+ @A 411 287
195,137 162,035
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TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of

contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

1)

The Group occasionally receives a part of the
consideration as deposits from customers when they
purchase goods from the retail stores. The respective
revenue is expected to be recognised when the
goods are collected by customers from stores. The
amount of the deposit is negotiated on a case by
case basis with customers.

20

P B 5 BRI H fth B S :H
(#)

BAAHNABSRNEIENRERENTEE -

SEERLBFATRRBIKBERE
FREEMEBERMNES - RETHE
FE R UL A S FE B P 1 78 5 SR BN 7 m By FE
R EENEEBRBEALBERARTP
e o

2) When the Group receives a deposit before the shop  2) BN E B SE R AT RS RIS R 18 Al
design and decoration service commences this WEIRIER - IR REAGOABRES
will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of a EHBEE BEEXHEBEEANWABETE
contract, until the revenue recognised on the project SHELE - TEHNLEBRIEARER
exceeds the amount of the deposit. The amount of the EHEERR o
deposit is negotiated on a case by case basis with
customers.

Movements in contract liabilities EHNEEERD

2018
—B-N\F
RMB’000
ARET T
Balance at 1 January R—BA—Bz#&s 15,582
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of FRERWATER T AFY 2
recognising revenue during the year that BREERD
was included in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year (18,114)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of FRWESEE TSR E B EEIN
receiving sales deposits during the year 9,800
Balance at 31 December +-A=+—HB2#&% 12,268

No sales deposits received are expected to be recognised

as income after more than one year.

MECKHEET YRR BE - FRERR
WA e
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21 BANK LOANS

As at 31 December 2018, the bank loans were repayable as

follows:

21 $RITER

RZZE-—N\F+_A=+—H EEERTE

E/ QN

2018 2017

—E2E-N\F —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T

Within 1 year or on demand —FE ARSI ER 60,429 24,838
After 1 year but within 2 years —FEBBRREN 4,629 3,755
After 2 years but within 5 years MEZRBRAFA 13,887 11,678
After 5 years hFE 64,807 68,849
83,323 84,282

143,752 109,120
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21  BANK LOANS (Continued) 21 |RITER @)
As at 31 December 2018, the bank loans were secured as R-ZE—NF+_A=+—8  RITEHNIK
follows: HEBAT
2018 2017
—ZT-N\F —E—t%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFIT
Bank loans within one year or —FERNHIEERIEIEN
on demand IRITER
— Secured — B 37,315 3,687
— Unsecured — I 23,114 21,151
777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 60,429 24,838
Bank loans after one year —FREENRITER
— Secured — A 83,323 84,282
83,323 84,282
143,752 109,120

The secured bank loans are all drawn down under certain WA EE#EERAEAS LA ARK159,374,000
bank facilities secured by mortgages over certain land and 70 (ZZE—+ 4 : AK%116,200,0007T) # &
buildings of the Group with an aggregate carrying value of T Tt REFHIRBEERRHE TRITEER
RMB159,374,000 (2017: RMB116,200,000). THARKFRITERE 2R -

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the banking facilites RZE—NFR_FT—+F+-_A=+—8H"
were not subject to the fulfilment of the covenants based on HRITEEBEAXRABIKESRIEKEE 2B

the lending arrangements with financial institutions. Further SREHIEHBNRHEEET -  BEAAEERHE
details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set &R E K — F BN TT29(b)

out in note 29(b).
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22 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

As stipulated by the labour regulations of the PRC, the Group
participates in various defined contribution retirement plans
organised by municipal and provincial governments for its
employees. The Group is required to make contributions to
the retirement plans at rates ranging from 13% to 20% of the
eligible employees’ salaries for the year ended 31 December
2018 (2017: from 11% to 21%).

Pursuant to the labour regulations of Malaysia, Taiwan and
Macau, the Group joined defined contribution retirement
plans for its employees. The Group is required to make
contributions to the retirement plans at the applicable rates
ranging from 1% to 13% based on the eligible employees’

salaries (2017: from 1% to 6%).

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement scheme administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject
to a cap of monthly relevant income of HKD30,000 (2017:
HKD30,000). Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

The Group has no other obligation for the payment of its
employees’ retirement and other post-retirement benefits

other than the contributions described above.
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23 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

(a) The 2015 share option scheme

On 19 May 2015, a share option scheme was established
which will be used to grant option to selected participants
including but not limited to directors and employees of the
Group in order to provide incentives or rewards for their
contributions to the Group. As at 31 December 2018, no
option was granted under the 2015 share option scheme.

(b) Share award scheme

Pursuant to a share award scheme approved by the
Board in 2015,
shares and grant such shares to certain employees or

the Company may purchase its own

consultants of the Group. During the year ended 31
December 2018, the Company purchased 30,000,000
shares of cash consideration of HKD9,947,000 (equivalent
to RMB8,377,000), and granted 1,064,000 shares (2017:
5,684,000 shares) at nil consideration to the Group’s
employees, of which 564,000 shares (2017: 1,400,000
shares) were granted to the Company’s directors (see note
7).

The consideration paid for the purchase of the Company’s
shares is reflected as a decrease in the capital reserve
of the Company. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of shares is recognised
as staff costs in profit or loss with a corresponding increase
in capital reserve, which is measured based on the grant
date share price of the Company.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S H158A4) - EEBUARKEZ7)

24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 24 ZEHMBEMRRRZFAER
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement (a) #8& B &SR it & 2 7% HA & 4 B 18

of financial position represents: i
2018 2017
—ZT-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax AEAFIE — FBREH
Provision for the year INF F R 15,961 2,975
Provisional tax paid EHIEREE (2,714) (1,489)
Exchange adjustments & 5 98 (50)
13,345 1,436
Balance of provision relating to WA FE 2 BB
prior years (1,224) (1,215)
12,121 221
Current tax — Overseas AEABLIE — g IH
Provision for PRC Corporate Income Tax ANFEHHDEEFEE
for the year 10,052 108,764
Provision for Taiwan Income Tax REE R EMEREE
for the year 49 16
Withholding tax TEME 123 56,205
Tax paid BEAHIE (5,150) (131,124)
5,074 33,861
Transfer from deferred tax liabilities HRIELEHIBEEBEA
(note 24(b)(ii)) (Kiat24(b)(ii) 119 6,009
5,193 39,870
17,314 40,091
Disposal of discontinued operations HER FEEER - (39,538)
17,314 568
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)
24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 24 HREMBRRRZFABHR 2)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (b) CEEIELHEBEEERERS
(i) Deferred tax assets recognised (i) CERELHBEE

The components of deferred tax assets recognised in REZEZZE-—N\FR_ZE—tFF+_A=+—
the consolidated statement of financial position and the HBIEFERNELE MBI K ANHER 2 BELEH
movements during the years ended 31 December 2018 and BEEZHAKEBD REBFHINWNT ¢

2017 are as follows:

Related
depreciation
in excess of
Inventory ~ Taxlosses ~ Unrealised Accrued  depreciation  Credit loss
provision  not utiised profi expenses  allowances  allowance Others Total
il RBfE
BERR  BEER  ARREN  RAER BENERG GEEERR St 3t
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARRTR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR

Balance at 1 January 2017 REE-tE-A-REH 22583 9,181 10963 8578 893 4,608 - 139,806
Credited/charged) toprofitorloss ~~ 7E8a3t A/ (H1R) 4549 389 (173) (4039) (15) 815 - 5030
Exchange adjustments i3k (774) (522) - - (58) - - (1,354)
Disposals of disconfinued operations ~ HiER HEEEH (25.936) (92565) (10,790) (4540) 48 (5.429) - (1M

Balance at 31 December 2017 i

ZT-Azis a2 2,986 - - 1,302 - - 470
Balance at 1 January 2018 N=5-N\E-A-AzE% 42 2,986 - - 1302 - - 4710
Credited(charged) to profitorloss~~ FEIE&3T A/ (41%) 807 81 - - (195) 312 1,165 2170
Exchange adjusiments EREE 27 154 - - 58 - % 264

Balance at 31 December 2018 R-E-N\E+-A
t-H2EsH 1,256 3201 - - 1,165 312 1,190 144
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S H158A4) - EEBUARKEZ7)

24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised
(Continued)

(i) Deferred tax liabilities recognised

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in

24 HFEMBRRRZHAEH @)

(b) CHEIDVELEHRBEERER (&)

(i) CERELHEERE
REZ-_ZE—N\EX_ZE—+F+_A=+—

the consolidated statement of financial position and the HIEFERAELE M BARREKNER ZELTR
movements during the years ended 31 December 2018 and BAE 2 A R EESHINNT
2017 are as follows:
Expected
profit Fairvalue  Depreciation
distribution  adjustments allowances
bythe inrelationto in excess of
Group's PRC business related
subsidiaries  combinations  depreciation Others Total
BHASE
FERBAT  REBEH MERBRA
PELEN  ARERE BEME it b
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREBfT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2017 RIZ—tE-A-Hzk& 56,086 76,390 1,898 9,104 143,478
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss R GIA)/mk (56,086) (1982) (574) 61 (58,581)
Transfer to current taxation (note 24(a)) EBARBREFHIE (H/i224(a) - = - (6,009) (6,009)
Exchange adjustments R AE - - (105) (105) (105)
Disposals of discontinued operations ~ HE&ER | EL £ = (74,408) = (3,037) (77,445)
Balance at 31 December 2017 RZE—tE+=A=1—H
L - - 1,219 119 1,338
Balance at 1 January 2018 RZE-\E-RA-Bz&& - - 1,219 119 1,338
Charged to profit or loss TRk - - 315 - 315
Transfer to current taxation (note 24(a)) EARLEEFIE (f1:724(a)) - = = (119) (119)
Exchange adjustments R AR - - 74 - 74
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+ZA=+—H
2 fe - - 1,608 - 1,608
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SE4E8ASN + BEEUAAREZS)

24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
1(s), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets
of RMB250,491,000 (2017: RMB245,991,000) in respect
of cumulative tax losses as it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised will
be available in the relevant tax jurisdictions and entities. The
tax losses for subsidiaries in Mainland China and Taiwan
will expire during the periods from 2019 to 2023 and from
2019 to 2028, respectively. The tax losses for subsidiaries
in Hong Kong and Malaysia do not expire under current tax
legislation.

(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

Pursuant to the tax laws in Mainland China, 10% withholding
tax is levied on foreign investors (5% for foreign investors
who are registered in Hong Kong provided they meet certain
criteria) in respect of profit distributions arising from a
foreign investment enterprise’s profit earned after 1 January
2008.

At 31 December 2018, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries amounted to
RMB198,578,000 (2017:RMB178,203,000). Deferred tax
liabilities of RMB9,928,000 (2017: RMB8,910,000) have not
been recognised in respect of the tax that would be payable
on the distribution of these retained profits as the Company
controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries in Mainland
China and it has been determined that it is probable that
these profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(@) Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s individual
components of equity between the beginning and the end of
the year are set out below:

24 HGEMBRRRZHAEH @)

(c) RBRZELEMIBEE

RIEMT SR (s)FTE G RTER - AR A RIS aE
EEREETAAEIREEAAEREERD
RRERT &= F - AN E Bt Rt R IEE
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Wi & B ENHEARMREBEES IR =
E-NFEZT=FRFT-NEFE=-ZFTZ=
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 25 EX-FEERRE @&
(Continued)
(a) Movements in components of equity (Continued) (a) HRERANIMD2EE (&)
The Company Vi N/NE]
Fair Value
Capital reserve
Share Share  redemption Capital (non-  Exchange  Retained
capital  premium reserve  reserve  recycling) reserve losses Total
MERE
(FAZEA
RE  RBEE RABERE ERERE ) EifiE REEB @t
Note ~ RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
i ARETn ARETn  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2017 WoB-tE-A-Au4H 20841 2,685,142 51 (3230) —(20494) (1296,397) 1,188,119
Changes in equity for 2017: RoB-+EERET .
Total comprehensive income EERANALE
for the year - - - - - (42,332) 1,179,153 1,136,821
Special dividend declared HAEEERBARE
in respect of current year 25(b) - - - - - - (1,170,866) (1,170,866)
Shares repurchased EEERN (412)  (67,970) 412 = = = - (67970)
Shares repurchased under share 1R (A 28512l
award scheme EEEZ RN 23(b) = - - (4050) - = - (4050)
Shares granted under share BERGREEHERLRR
award scheme 23(b) - - - 4508 - - - 4,508
Balance at 31 December 2017~ WZZ—-tE+ZF=1-H
k13 2429 2627172 669 (2772) - (262,826) (1,288,110) 1,096,562
Balance at 1 January 2018 HWoB-N\E-B-A2EH 2429 2627172 669 (2772) - (262826) (1,288,110) 1,096,562
Changes in equity for 2018: RoB-\EEREE .
Total comprehensive income EERENALE
for the year - - - - 3%R) @7 40 63
Shares repurchased BBERRD 25(c) (%) (6763 9 = = = - (6763)
Shares repurchased under share  1RAER(A 2REt 2]
award scheme EEEZ RN 23(b) - - - 837 - - - 837
Shares granted under share BERDREEHERLERA
award scheme 23(b) - - - 322 - - - 322
Balance at 31 December 2018~ W=E-NF+=f=f-
24 2337 2620409 1 (10827)  (23%) (265533) (1,276700) 1,088,055
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CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 25 EXR - #EERKRE #)

(Continued)

(b) KE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT

Special dividend declared and paid
of RMB nil per ordinary share (2017:
RMBO0.25 per ordinary share)

Final dividend proposed after the end
of the reporting date of RMB0.012
per ordinary share (2017: RMB nil per
ordinary share)

EERRIMERIREGRE

BRARKST (ZT—+

F: GREBIRARYO0.25

JT) - 1,170,866
A R EEIR R R B Z A%

TERARKO12TT (=ZF

—tF  BREBRAR

) 55,952 1

55,952 1,170,866

The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting  #{4 HA R #7)K 2 R HAPR B 3 # A $R 45 HA R 7
period has not been recognised as a liability at the end of 2Z2A&& -

the reporting period.
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 25 EX-FEERRE @&
(Continued)
(c) Share capital (c) Mm=
()  Authorised and issued share capital (i) EEREBITRA
2018 2017
—E-N\F “T—tF
Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares HKD shares HKD
o £
ROHE BT RHEE BT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of SRMEE.005E T2 T Bk
HKDO0.005 each 10,000,000,000 50,000,000 10,000,000,000 50,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BRIRARE
At 1 January n—HA—H 4,684,526,959 23,422,634 4,779,810,959 23,899,054
Share repurchased EEERA (21,860,000) (109,300)  (95,284,000) (476,420)
At 31 December W+=-—A=+—H 4,662,666,959 23,313,334 4,684,526,959 23,422,634
equivalent equivalent
e né
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARETT
22,337 22,429

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends @i EA A GHNER ARSI E2 RS @ &5
as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per B —RERH AR AFIREAS 5 —2 - ff
share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank HIE@EBEARA T FLEEH Y Z A R Sk
equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets. =

o
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 25 EBEX - RERRE @
(Continued)
(c) Share capital (Continued) (c) BA&#)
(i)  Purchase of own shares (i) HBEAXRLAFRKRS
During the year, the Company repurchased its own ordinary REER @ RARRERMEDEB & L@k
shares on the Stock Exchange as follows: HERLAT :
Number Highest Lowest
of shares price paid price paid Aggregate
repurchased per share per share price paid
BB RS RS
Month/Year £/ A R EE BoE HIEE FriS#(E
HKD HKD HKD’000
BT BT BT
April 2018 —ZE-N\FWmA 1,876,000 0.37 0.36 691
May 2018 —E-N\FAA 8,688,000 0.38 0.36 3,208
June 2018 —ZE-N\FA 2,896,000 0.38 0.375 1,105
July 2018 —ZT—NFtA 8,400,000 0.36 0.35 2,988
7,992
equivalent
Eiin=)
RMB’000
ARETTT
6,763

The total amount paid on the repurchased shares of FELQRM A4S T AREKS6,763,0007T
RMB6,763,000 was paid with cash consideration. TR e RET -
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Share premium and capital redemption reserve

The application of the share premium and the capital
redemption reserve is governed by the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands.

(ii) Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the following:

- The excess of the consideration paid by the Company
over the aggregate of the nominal value of the share
capital of the subsidiaries acquired under the Group’s
reorganisation;

- The difference between the consideration paid by
the Group to non-controlling interest holders and the
carrying amount of the respective non-controlling
interests; and

- The consideration paid for the purchase of the
Company’s shares under the share award scheme.

(iiiy  Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign currency
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of the entities within the Group whose functional
currency is other than Renminbi. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(v).

(iv)  Fair value reserve (recycling)

The fair value reserve (recycling) comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of debt securities measured
at FVOCI under HKFRS 9 held at the end of the reporting
period (see note 1(f)). Prior to 1 January 2018, this reserve
included the cumulative net change in the fair value of
available-for-sale financial assets held at the end of the
reporting period in accordance with HKAS 39. This amount
has been reclassified to fair value reserve (non-recycling)
upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018 (see
note 1(c)(i)).
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(v) Fair value reserve (non-recycling)

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity investments
designated at FVOCI under HKFRS 9 that are held at the
end of the reporting period (see note 1(f)).

(vi)  PRC statutory reserve

Transfers from retained profits to PRC statutory reserves
were made in accordance with the relevant PRC rules and
regulations and the articles of association of the Company’s
subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC and were approved by
the respective boards of directors.

PRC statutory reserves include general reserve, enterprise
expansion fund, and statutory surplus reserve.

According to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, the
PRC subsidiaries of the Group, which are wholly foreign-
owned enterprises in the PRC, are required to transfer
10% of their profit after taxation, as determined under PRC
Accounting Regulations, to the general reserve fund until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of their registered capital. The
transfer to this reserve must be made before distribution of
a dividend to shareholders. Moreover, they are required to
transfer a certain percentage of their profit after taxation, as
determined under PRC GAAP, to the enterprise expansion
fund.

The general reserve fund can only be used to make good
previous years’ losses upon approval by the relevant
authority. The enterprise expansion fund can only be used
to increase the entity’s capital or to expand its production
operations upon approval by the relevant authority.

Statutory surplus reserve can be used to reduce previous
years’ losses, if any, and may be converted into paid-up
capital, provided that the balance of the reserve after such
conversion is not less than 25% of the registered capital of
the subsidiaries.

25 EBEXR - @HERRE 2

(d) RENMEERBEN (@)

(v) AAEEHE CRTHARS)

DA EEE CRTHARS) QERREBxHE
B2 REEAYBESEAEOR ETBBR
2ERARA A B ENRARE 2 AL ER
SR (FERMEID) -

(viy HBUERERE

ARRFMRBH BB R SOERARARBR
PEEMAZOMBARMNEZAA - KRE
ENEREPEEERHE  BREESWBAR
EFEEQME-

TEZERERE —RER  CEXBREER
EERBATE -

RIBHBEFRBEEEER  AEBNFREE A
A(BPEMIIEEECE) BBESRER
B @t iR E BT 2 10%5 14 )i A 88 B = — AL
HES EEFRERESERAEEIMERZ
50% o EEE L FEHEVARDIERRKRE T RER
T N BEBERBEPELRETR
AlBEEZETAESHLBMEBENECEREESD -

—REGESIAVESINERIEE RIER
RERBBTFEER CEBRRESRAAHE
FHERIEERMERSBIFENERZER
SIRBMEZEERT -

EERBLBARERBEEFEER (1WE)
KAl @SS BN - EBRRE 2 REEHRT
BORKB AR EMEAR 225% -

FRAERA RAT ZF— )\E4HK @



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i o P i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S H158A4) - EEBUARKEZ7)

25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(vii)  Distributability of reserves

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium of the Company may be applied for payment of
distributions or dividends to shareholders provided that
immediately following the date on which the distribution or
dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company is able to pay
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

The aggregate amount of distributable reserves of the
Company as at 31 December 2018 was RMB1,341,317,000
(2017: RMB1,339,062,000).

(e) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns to
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to the finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded
by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on a basis of a net
debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is
defined as total debt (which includes total interest-bearing
borrowings) less cash and cash equivalents and deposits
with banks. Capital comprises all components of equity.
The net debt-to-capital ratio as at 31 December 2018 is
(46)% (2017: (34)%). During 2018, the Group’s strategy was
unchanged from 2017.

Neither the company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject
to externally imposed capital requirements.
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26 COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments

Capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December 2018
not provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

26 FRIE
(@) EXREE

RZBE-N\F+A=+—BRRBETELE
R BRERNTRB B2 EAAFEFIIT

2018 2017

—ZT-N\F —F—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBFIT

Contracted for EHED) 18,040 =
Authorised but not contracted for EEREERFTH = 228
18,040 228

(b) Operating lease commitments

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
payable as follows:

(b) EEHEEHAE

ATE—N\F+_A=+—8 " AEETAH
HEEHE RN AERERSA|IFI 0T

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —E—+tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETTT

Within 1 year —F R 101,652 123,549
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERAEFA 93,935 80,875
After 5 years AFi& 1,476 -
197,063 204,424
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26 COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments (Continued)

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties
and the leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 5
years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms are
renegotiated. In addition to the minimum rental payments
disclosed above, the Group has a commitment to pay
rent based on a proportion of turnover for certain leased
properties. Contingent rentals are not included in the above
commitments as it is not possible to estimate the amounts
which may be payable.

27 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 30 December 2016, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to disposal of its entire equity interest
in Shanghai Xinyu Fine Watch Service Co., Ltd. and its
and 75.54% of Harvest Max
Holdings Limited (collectively, the “Disposal Group”). The

subsidiaries (“Xinyu Group”),

disposal was completed on 28 June 2017, on which date
control of the Disposal Group passed to the acquirer.

The consolidated profit for the period from the discontinued
operations is set out below.

26 ARIE (@)

(b) REHBERE &)
AEBREFYL T EZBA - ZEME 05
MEHMR—MA—SRE HEBHMEER
BAREEERN B EXAREZSERS
s AEBERSEEL XN ETA
BEYE IS - HRKREEHERIABE Y
S8 - ALRERS LR A RELRE -

27 HRIEREHETL
R_ZE—RNF+_A=+8 " XEETVES
e UDRIHEER ESHFEEREER
AR REMBAR ([FHFEE]) UREHEE
BRERAGB (HBEIHEERE]) 22HEaR
75.54%m c ZHERE—tFAZTN
BEX  RALHEEEZEHEEEREA -

KA EER  BRRAEMNESIT -

2018 2017
—ZT-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
Profit of the discontinued operations BB TS 2 BRI F
for the period - 274,081
Loss on disposal of discontinued HER ML TS 2 BB
operations - (393,513)
- (119,432)
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27 RIHEEER #)

(a) Results of discontinued operations (a) HRIEREEK o EE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBTIT
Revenue PN = 5,115,880
Cost of sales SHE AR = (3,521,454)
Other revenue H AW s - 64,069
Other net income HAUAFER = 6,794
Distribution costs ol =] DN = (1,168,902)
Administrative expenses THER - (99,185)
Other operating expenses Hhgea = (3,260)
Finance costs BT R AR = (37,435)
Share of profits of joint ventures EEEERERT = 835
Income tax Frign = (83,261)
Profit from discontinued operations for BRI E AR TS B AR A
the period - 274,081
Attributable to: G
— Equity shareholders of the Company VNG SLESE=DN = 209,935
- Non-controlling interests — FEIE IR = 64,146
- 274,081
(b) Cash flows used in discontinued operations (b) RERLKEXBAFEZRETRE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBTT
Net cash generated from operating BEEE RIS FRE
activities - 942,034
Net cash generated from investing HEEBFBIREFE
activities = 602,360
Net cash used in financing activities BB R BT £ 58 - (2,028,705)
Net cash flow for the period HRNRSREFE = (484,311)
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28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 28 EXBEIRS
TRANSACTIONS

(a) Key management personnel compensation and (a) TEEBEASHMEBEREER G
post-employment benefit plans £l

Remuneration for key management personnel of the AEEFZERBAEHFMEENTARAES

Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s directors &% (RMF7HE) ke Ta=aFHMEES (B

as disclosed in note 7 and certain of the highest paid Miz8# &) 0T :

employees as disclosed in note 8, is as follows:

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —T—+tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTT

Short-term employee benefits EHESRET 11,013 9,956
Post-employment benefits BEEE 2 1R A 60 62
11,073 10,018

o

STAHRAI R (F2RIE

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note #ENAEFEBENT
5(b)). 5(b)) °

\
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28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

28 EXRBEAIRS (&)

(b) Recurring transactions (b) EEMEXRZ
The Group AEE
2018 2017
=F S —T—tf
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBEFTT
Lease expenses to a joint venture SNFEERFIZHEEM - 2,850
Payments made on behalf of RELRNBITR
joint ventures - 506
Payments made by joint ventures BENRNK - 5,431
Shop design and decoration T B R 2 JE AT &
services provided to Xinyu Group HERE 16,962 6,046

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
above transactions with related parties were conducted
in the ordinary course of business, on normal commercial
terms and in accordance with the agreements governing
such transactions.

(c) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of the directors’
remuneration and shop design and decoration services
provided to Xinyu Group constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,
however they are exempt from the disclosure requirements
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

ARREZRB/ALBET RS IERTEER
R - REEGHET BERREREARS
Z AT

(c) BEEEXS>EHRERY

FREEHFMEAMNTREREZEHRT R
RERB2BEST RSB LETRUFE14ASAH
EENFHERERS  HARXSEHRRET
EHRBIEIAAT ZWERE -

FRAERA RAT ZF— )\E4HK @



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i o P i

F BEUAAREZ5)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& % &#5RA4N

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The
Group is also exposed to equity price risk arising from its
equity investments in other entities.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables. The Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from cash and cash equivalents and deposits
with banks is limited because the counterparties are
major banks and financial institutions, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk. Management has a credit
policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored
on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer operates.
Trade receivables are due within 30 to 180 days from the
date of billing. Debtors with balances that are more than
1 month past due are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from customers.
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished
between the Group’s different customer bases.

The following table provides information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as at
31 December 2018:

29 HKEMEERAARE 2

(a) fEERME &)

FEWR B 5 BR X
AEERAER2HENEEERZH (AR
wREEE) FTERKWEZRFNBREE - AAX
SEMNBEEEBERERABTIRES D
BERZREZBIRAE  HURBHREFEZ
EEBREREARETRSPEHEE TR

TRIFBEBAKRER T N\F+-_A=1
—BApEKE SR EENEERRRERE
EBRERM

Expected Gross carrying Loss

loss rate amount allowance

TEERE R = HAEREE EERE

RMB’000 RMB’000

% AREET T AREET T

Current (not past due) BIER (Ri@ER) 0.01% 154,477 15

Less than 3 months past due B =18 A 0.1% — 2% 22,402 445
More than 3 months but less than  #HAFE:E =18 A

12 months past due BLR+—@EA 1% — 20% 19,601 1,261

More than 12 months past due wEEE+ =18 A 25% — 100% 2,684 2,571

199,164 4,292

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past three years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the period
over which the historic data has been collected, current
conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions
over the expected lives of the receivables.

EHBEAEZBE=FNERBRALRTE -
FEFIES SR E- NPT ES il S ¢ 3
OB~ B BT SUIA R AN 52 B 4 R W R IR TR
HIFHZ @ERANBEZBNER
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)
Comparative information under HKAS 39

Prior to 1 January 2018, an impairment loss was recognised
only when there was objective evidence of impairment (see
note 1(k)(i) — policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018).
At 31 December 2017, trade receivables of RMB nil were
determined to be impaired. The aging analysis of trade
debtors that were not considered to be impaired was as
follows:

29 HREREERAAE £

(a) fEERMR (&)
BBETEREIFN LR ER
R-ZE-\F—-A—Hp BREBEEERT
BREZERER (F2EME1K)(1) —=F
—N\E-B—HERZHER) - R_F—tF
TZA=1—8 RUEBEZIEFIARBEEZRD
EERRE HREESRENELEZER
ZERE AT

2017

—E—+F

RMB’000

ARBTTT

Neither past due nor impaired RNEEATRARE 176,941

Less than 3 months past due B DR =16 A 73
More than 3 months but less than mHAEA = A

12 months past due BLR+T=EA 6

More than 12 months past due wHERBE T —EA 2,761

179,781

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related
to a number of independent customers that had a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believed that no impairment allowance was
necessary in respect of these balances as there had been
no significant change in credit quality and the balances
were still considered fully recoverable.
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 29 HBEREERQAE @
FAIR VALUES (Continued)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (@) =EERMR (&)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade FABEEWE ZEFAEBEER 2 EFHN
receivables during the year is as follows: T s
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTTT
Balance at 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+-_A=+—H
under HKAS 39 RIBEB AT ERF 3955
BEE 2 MR - L
Impact on initial application of EpN R
HKFRS 9 (note 1(c)(i)) FEOSR B (Kat1(c)i) 1,582 -
Adjusted balance at 1 January ~~~~~ R—A-Rz@E@EEHR B . n
Impairment losses recognised FRERRBEBE
during the year 2,710 -
Balance at 31 December R+-_RA=+—Bz&% 4,292 —

The following significant changes in the gross carrying MNUTERZEZEFRBEEAB EREHEH -
amounts of trade receivables contributed to the increase in & — /\FHifd v EEEELG N
the loss allowance during 2018:

= increase in days past due more than 3 months but — BEHEB=EAELR+ZEAHRE
less than 12 months resulted in an increase in loss 38 hn 38 B & 18 5 M 38 in A R #61,260,000
allowance of RMB1,260,000; and T K&

= increase in days past due more than 12 months — AHEA T =l ARG ISR EE
resulted in an increase in loss allowance of B INA R#1,007,0007T °

RMB1,007,000.

Other receivables H{th FEULFRIE

Impairment of other receivables are measured as either  E{thfE W FIERE Ty 12M8 A B HIE EEE X
12-month ECL or lifetime expected credit loss, depending on EAFEHEHREEEEI = REERRE
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk & B I ERAREZ EAME - ERF AR
since initial recognition. Impairment losses of RMB 696,000 RE(EEE ARE696,0007T °

have been recognised during the year.
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(b)  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to

meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s

policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements

and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure

that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate

committed lines of funding from banks to meet its liquidity

requirements in the short and longer term.

29 BHKEMEERAARE 2

(b) REBESRRE
mEBERBEAEBREENHETHBEE
fY [ fax KEIE”JEZ%EE ERERPES
EREEEETEE AR EETFHNIR
S REE R RRITE ﬁE'W%E EEHEE  BUE
NEREHNRBERTERK

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BECT-N\FtZA=T-ALEE

Within Within
1yearoron 2 years but
demand  over 1 year
—FHRE MER
RERX BEE-F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AR®TrR

Within Undiscounted
5 years but Over  contractual Carrying
over 2 years 5 years cash flow amount
AENUR REREN

{EEBmE BBRE kit HEE
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR

Trade and other payables excluding  ENE SRR E M
]

contract liabilities B30 (R At
AHER) 297,398 - - - 297,398 297,398
Secured interest-bearing loans BERA8ER 39,661 6,013 17,566 72,587 135,827 120,638
Unsecured interest-bearing loans EEAAEER 23,195 - - - 23,195 23,114
360,254 6,013 17566 72,587 456,420 441,150
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUES (Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)
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29

(b) RBEZRER (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE-S— 5 t-A=T-HILEE

BRREREERARE (&)

Within Within Within Undiscounted
Tyearoron  2yearsbut 5 years but Over  contractual Carrying
demand  over 1year over 2 years 5 years cash flow amount
—FLRg  WEMARE  EENAR RERED
BER BR-F HBmE BBRE Reng REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETr ARETR ARETT ARETR
Trade and other payables excluding  JERE S8R K H
advance receipts from customers  [EHIE (TR
EFBH) 243,182 - - - 243,182 243,182
Secured interest-bearing loans BHAFEER 3,752 3,820 12,700 92,931 113,203 87,969
Unsecured interest-bearing loans BEMHEER 21,39 - - = 21,396 21,151
268,330 3,820 12,700 92,931 377,781 352,302

(c¢) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group’s interest rate

risk arises primarily from interest-bearing loans.

Borrowings issued at variable rates and fixed rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value
interest rate risk respectively. The interest rates and maturity
information of the interest-bearing bank loans disclosed in

note 29(c)(i) and note 21 respectively.

(c) FI=mEba
HxERE— e
i = B T 35 ) 2 i
I &

Bl & S
TR R 1T
29(c) (i) M MizE2 11 55 -

BeRnENERAR

BRTANAAEIRKRS
KB R R o
e T ERBFRER -

AEEZ

LAT““%'JT&IIE%J?F&21 BEESAKED

R B R ER

TERZH R KB ERD BIR M
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest rate risk to
ensure there are no undue exposures to significant interest
rate movements and rates are relatively fixed. The Group
does not account for any fixed rate financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, and the Group does not use
derivative financial instruments to hedge its debt obligations.

(i) Interest rate profile

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Group’s
interest-bearing financial instruments was:

29 HREREERAAE £

(c) F=E@Ek (&)

REB 2R AEEEF KRR D E&
BEANEXEHREHEEMNEZRAR - K&
B\t AERBEEREAREIERZEE
MESHAEE TEUATESHTAHRER
BEE -

(i) MEEHR
AEBRBERBZFEEBIT AR EE R
T -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BERFI= RMB’000 VB RMB’000
% AERETR % ARETIT
Fixed rate instruments EEMEIA
Secured interest-bearing loans BHEMFEER 5.22% 35,000 N/A & -
Unsecured interest-bearing loans EIKFt B E R N/A i A - 1.66% —2.24% 21,151
35,000 21,151
Variable rate instruments AEFIRT
Secured interest-bearing loans Iz Jr% ?k 1.7% 85,638 1.75% —2.11% 87,969
Unsecured interest-bearing loans izt 8 §5¢ 1.89% 23,114 N/A TNE =
108,752 87,969
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2018, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would have decreased/
increased the Group’s profit/(loss) after tax and retained
profits by approximately RMB870,000 (2017: RMB730,000).
Other components of consolidated equity would not be
affected in response to a general increase/decrease in
interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the annualised
impact on the Group’s interest expense that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied to
floating rate instruments which expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk at that date. The analysis does not take
into account exposure to fair value interest rate risk arising
from fixed rate instruments as the Group does not hold any
fixed rate instruments which are measured at fair value in
the financial statements. The analysis is performed on the
same basis as 2017.

(d) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risks primarily through
sales, purchases and borrowings that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations
to which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this
risk are primarily RMB and HKD. In respect of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, the
Group’s policy is to ensure that its net exposure is kept to
an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies
at spot rates when necessary to address short-term
imbalances.

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. All
foreign exchange transactions involving RMB must take
place through the People’s Bank of China or other institutions
authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange. The exchange
rates adopted for the foreign exchange transactions are the
PBOC rates.

29 HXEREERAAE £

(c) FIEEPE (&)
(i) SHREDWF

R-ZZF—N\F+-A=+—8 ' WFR=E+
Ft/ TRE100EESR MAEEM T ERR#
BT G5 A5@0Bi®Es,/(FiE) kMR
BR Rl 84 AR #870,0007T (=
—+F : AR¥730,0007T) ° SRS EM
EREBNETEEMNENBE LA TRMX

|| By 488
B -

A ESRESNER  BRNBEHARLEN
REgH WORZBAHEREASERHERS
MM RE R F S TER - NREBOFEFHX
ARELANFEREE BN AKELEBRFEE
ARMBEREANRAAEFENBENET
B #oMEEAREEMNERTAEENAAR
EMNEREAR - SNE_E—+EHE—EEE
1T

(d) E#Ek
AEBAZNEEEREZRAUBEBEEZ
ENREEB NI M BB ENHE BERE
E-EXEARNERTIZ/ARBIET -
AEENEFEREBIZANGNXEFINEG -
VA2 I SN 2L B R K2 BB R 1 - FEARAS TR
FRERERREKE -

ARBTBEHALBEING - IELRARKE
MIMNER B AL HE ARRITHEMBRE
BEEINEMBBAETT - SLINER ZPIERMA 2 E
EHPBEARRITERE -
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)
(i) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity to which they
relate.

29 BiIEEREERAAEE)

(dy EBE¥EMR %)

(i) AAEZEERR
TRFANAEERRERRKB AEBEERD
BEEELIINEETENERREERAEZ
[E\B& o

As at 31 December 2018
(expressed in RMB)
R=ZB-NFE+=-A=+—H

(AAR®275)
RMB’000 HKD’000
ARET T BT T
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBeEEY 382 1,846
Trade and other payables FETE 5 BR 51 I HAh FE A 50IE (70,981) (221,764)
Trade and other receivables FEULEE 5 BR 2k M L 4th fiE U 008 15,031 -
Overall net exposure BEe Rk F R (55,568) (219,918)
As at 31 December 2017
(expressed in RMB)
RZE—tF+HA=+—H
(MAREZ7)
RMB’000 HKD’000
AREFIT TS IT
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESFEY 41 554
Trade and other payables B E 5 BRI R B MRS SRR (69,561) (182,549)
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 BR 3R % B FE W R IR 10,677 -
Overall net exposure B8 B B8 F 5 (58,843) (181,995)
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in
the Group’s profit/(loss) after tax and retained profits for the
year that would arise if foreign exchange rates to which the
Group has significant exposure at the end of the reporting
period had changed at that date, assuming all other risk
variables remained constant. The sensitivity analysis
includes balances between Group companies where the
balances are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currencies of the lender or the borrower.

29 HXEREERAAE £

(dy EM¥REE #)
(i) SHREDWF
T%%ﬁfrf\i%\i&iﬁﬁﬂi AR EARESEX

REEXNE B AMES (REMEEMER
“I%%%Wﬁ)  BARKEFABKEN
(B8 MRBENMEEZNSES - GURE
IMBERAKERRE &R MREEHRT
NERAKBRAZNEEEE AN EEBEHE -

2018 2017

—B-\F &
Increase/  Effect on profit Increase/ Effect on loss
(decrease) after tax and (decrease) after tax and
in foreign retained in foreign retained
exchange rates profits  exchange rates profits
N = m;‘mn SN FE = P& EE R
#in,/(fd) REBEMZ g,/ Chd) REBMzZZE
RMB 000 RMB’000
ARETF T ARETT
HKD BT 5% (10,996) 5% (9,046)
(5)% 10,996 (5)% 9,046
RMB AR 5% (2,778) 5% (2,939)
(5)% 2,778 (5)% 2,939

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign exchange rate had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to each of the Group entities’ exposure to currency
risk for financial instruments in existence at that date, and
that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant. The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign
exchange rate over the period until the end of next annual
reporting period. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2017. Other components of consolidated equity
would not be affected in response to a general increase/

decrease in exchange rates.

LRAGREINDIRENRREARLIRERE
PMET WERARAEBEZSEEBRERTA

ZEBMTAMAENERRR  ARMAEEM
A#RE (FRRME) #RT2 - AYIZEIE

EREREETALEREMFTARLALA
RELRBIEL 2 ZF—LFZHHI
MWH%%Lﬁoﬁé*EZﬁ@$ﬁ%TA
REE RN, HOTE -
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(e) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from
equity investments held for strategic purposes (see note 15).

The Group’s major equity investments are listed on the
Stock Exchange and are included in the Hang Seng Index.
Listed investments held in the equity securities designated
as FVOCI portfolio have been chosen based on their longer
term growth potential and are monitored regularly for
performance against expectations.

At 31 December 2018, it is estimated that an increase/
decrease of 10% (2017: 10%) in the Hang Seng Index would
have increased/decreased the Group’s fair value reserve by
approximately RMB13,980,000 (2017: RMB47,610,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change on the Group’s fair value reserve that would arise
assuming that the changes in the Hang Seng Index had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to re-measure those financial instruments which
expose the Group to equity price risk at the end of the
reporting period. It is also assumed that the fair values of
the Group’s equity investments would change in accordance
with their historical correlation with the Hang Seng Index that
none of the Group’s equity investments would be considered
impaired as a result of the decrease in the Hang Seng
Index, and that all other variables remain constant. The
analysis is performed on the same basis as 2017.

@ Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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BAEH REETABEBERRAAENEN
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RZZE—N\F+=A=+—8 ' AsHE4EEuL
m o RmA10% (ZF—+H4F : 10%) #5380, 5
DAREE R R BERFENARE13,980,0007T (=
T—+F : AR¥47,610,00070) °
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 29 HBEREERARE @)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(f)  Fair value measurement () 2QREFTE

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (i) RARBEFEZEREERERE

Fair value hierarchy DR EEREE

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’'s TFXRZJIRMEMRRE ST HHRELERE13

~

\N
S

it 2 AAEARBEEREEN=
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three level EERKEEUNARBHEZLAEE R ITAR
fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value 18 ° AREFTEMEHRRIT2REMGBERN
measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement H{EAZHABE Z2ABREEREEEME
is classified is determined with reference to the observability & ' BEASHATHT -

and significance of the inputs used in the valuation

financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting 5% °

A

v

technique as follows:

= Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only  — F—HEE: AREREAE —RBA
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in HEHFE AAEFEERIRERTS
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the FHREESRB B I RCTHERE -

measurement date.

= Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 — E_REE: AAERBE _REAE
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level BitE @ BDREEFTAFE Rz ERE
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs. AHE ' RTE2HBERTAIEHZHEA
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data HE - THEEHAEE AEENEM
are not available. BEIEZBAIER °

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using — E=FRAEE: ARAEBRAERTAERE
significant unobservable inputs. BAEBRE °

FRAERA RAT ZF— )\E4HK @
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 29
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(f) Fair value measurement (Continued) (f)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (i)

(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

BEREEERAAE (&)

DRREE (&)

BAREFEBZERMEERER (&)

RABEFERE (B)

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2018 categorised into

RZE-—NFE+ZHA=+—H

BTSN EzARETFE
Fair value at
31 December
2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
—E-N\F
+=A
ETr=[E2
ARE E—R E-R E=,
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTRT ARETRT AR%®ETR
The Group REE
Other investments (note 15). EAMi%& (Kf:15) :
Equity investments IR & 168,696 168,696 - -
Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2017 categorised into
RZZE—tF+=-A=+—H
BT EZ ARERFE
Fair value at
31 December
2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
—ET—tF
+=A
=+—RHZz
“RfE EF— F_ E=ZR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETRT ARETR
The Group REE
Other investments (note 15): HAKE (Kf7E15) :
Available-for-sale securities  AJftH EH A 398,724 398,724 = L
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(f)  Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

At 31 December 2018, the financial instruments of the Group
carried at fair value were equity securities of RMB168,696,000
(2017: RMB398,724,000) listed on the Stock Exchange (see
note 15). These instruments are measured at fair value on
a recurring basis and their fair value measurements fall into
Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy described above.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there was no
transfer between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfer into or out
of Level 3.

(iif) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at
other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost were not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

(g) Estimation of fair values

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time and
based on relevant market information and information about
the financial instrument. These estimates are subjective in
nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant
judgement and therefore cannot be determined with
precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect
the estimates.

29 HXEREERAAE £

() 2QREFE #E)
iy BAREHBrERMEEREE (H)
NREEREE (B)

R-ZE—NF+-_A=+—08 "EBAXIA
BEAENSHTAEARE I ETHRAFES
A R #168,696,000t (ZE—+tF: AR
398,724,0007T) (52 R MzE15) - ZE T ALK
EUAAREE BEARBEFENEA LM
FITH AR EEREEE—R -

BE_Z2—N\F+_A=+—HIFE -
%&Eﬁi%:é&IEZFﬁﬂzﬁﬂﬂﬂiﬁé ' DT\%E\EE%
=T EE ASED -

(i) WHERAABIRNEHEERARBN

|

DRE
R-B-N\FER-_F—tF+-A=+—8"
ZK‘*@EEXK&E&%EXZM@EE’] AT AR
HEEEAABZRATEENESR -

9) RAREME
AAEERFERBEREAAMSEN LR
TEAZERELG - ZFHFAEEEEH I
*/F&THHEHI%ELA’EEK#U%Z%E 54

W HAEEEEMETE - BRNEBEAARBEY
EnfEfhEt -

—

N
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)
(9) Estimation of fair values (Continued)

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair value for each class of financial instruments:

(i) Cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, and trade and other payables

The carrying values approximate fair value because of the
short maturities of these instruments.

(ii) Interest-bearing bank loans

The carrying amounts of bank loans approximate their fair
value based on the borrowing rates currently available for
bank loans with similar terms and maturity.

30 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9
at 1 January 2018. Under the transition methods chosen,
comparative information is not restated. Further details of the
changes in accounting policies are disclosed in note 1(c).

@ Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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31 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 31 DEEHBHEMRRE
FINANCIAL POSITION
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —T—tF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kia# ARET T ARET T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Other investments Eiig& 58,457 =
Interest in subsidiaries SN NG - 1,673,569 1,718,766
1,732,026 1,718,766
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables FEUWE 5 Bk 51 % B At i U SR IE 8,207 2,763
Cash and cash equivalents HE RIASEEY 980,418 920,851
988,625 923,614
Current liabilities RBERE
Trade and other payables FETE 5 BR 3k M L 4th FE < 0B 1,630,627 1,545,818
Current taxation R B FE S AR 1A 1,969 =
1,632,596 1,545,818
Net current liabilities TREEEFEE (643,971) (622,204)
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,088,055 1,096,562
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRRfHE 25(a)
Share capital RE 2R 22,337 22,429
Reserves fHE 1,065,718 1,074,133
TOTAL EQUITY EmAEE 1,088,055 1,096,562

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

on 20 March 2019.

Zhang Yuping
Executive Director

FIED -
Huang Yonghua R
Executive Director HITEE

o

FRMBERARAT 28— )\EEH

RZE-NFZA_tHEEEZSRHERRE
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HITEE
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32 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE
CONTROLLING PARTY

As at 31 December 2018, the directors consider the
immediate parent and ultimate controlling party of the
Group to be Best Growth International Limited, which is
incorporated in British Virgin Islands. This entity does not
produce financial statements available for public use.

33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2018

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new
standards and interpretations which are not yet effective for
the year ended 31 December 2018 and which have not been
adopted in these financial statements. These include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.

32 EBEERRAEHRH

EEZRR R-_Z-/\FE+-_A=+—H K
SEZERBRRRREREF T RRNRBREX
HEEMARZMEEERBRAR - ZERY
BREMRARALT2B 2 HB®RE

33 EZE-NF+ZRAR=+—
BiEstFEMMERERH
BT~ MIBERIRREAY A&
B/

LV =

BERSMBHRERTNEAY  HESTMAE
ERMBORIERT - FIEER R BRE - WHFEFT
RFIRERBE—_FT-N\F+_A=+—H
EEERRER TARZEMBHRRD R
Ao THRAIEENKEEB R ZEF] RFIEE
Al e

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

REFtHBERARER

HKFRS 16, Leases
BAMBRELRE 16 HE
HK(IFRIC) 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments

1 January 2019
—T-NEFE—H—H
1 January 2019

T8 (BRVBRERERES) REFRR - AEHI THEEIEZEE —T-h&—HA—H

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
BB M E2ER|2015-201 7B 8 2 FERGE
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33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2018 (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards and
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified some aspects
of the HKFRS 16 which may have a significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements. Further details
of the expected impacts are discussed below. While the
assessment has been substantially completed for HKFRS 16,
the actual impact upon the initial adoption of this standard
may differ as the assessment completed to date is based on
the information currently available to the Group, and further
impacts may be identified before the standard is initially
applied in the Group’s interim financial report for the six
months ended 30 June 2019. The Group may also change
its accounting policy elections, including the transition
options, until the standard is initially applied in that financial
report.

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 1(j), currently the Group classifies
leases into finance leases and operating leases and
accounts for the lease arrangements differently, depending

on the classification of the lease. The Group enters into
some leases as the lessor and others as the lessee.

Ei%ﬁﬁfyﬁﬁﬁﬁ@*iﬂﬂ'ﬂ
ﬂgg]' s FIB AR R R ERY AT EE

E£E #)

AREBEEANGEY EREET - HERRRE
REXERPHEAEEENTE - 29 A&
BERAEAMBREENE1KESETIE

ARHGEEVBRRELETATE - BRHTE
ME—THFBR T Xl - BERTBYHR

SEAE1RETIHEBRIENE TK
BRRAZERN 2 ERFEXEEMTR B
RES En%ﬁ%ﬂéﬁ%ﬁ”ﬁ%lﬁﬁu—]ﬁ“
FHETT > MRZERERERARAEEER
%@—ﬂiz\ﬂ:+EIJJ:/\1IEZEPEHE7I7T%#&¢
Al AIREERME—TFE - AKETAES
E& """"" FUEHRRZEE BREENR  BEE
ZEERERRMBERER

BERMBHMELEAE 165 HE
%EZZZNHEE()?)’TT&E@ Kﬁliﬁﬂﬁfﬂ‘i/\iﬁ}%

MEMELRKLEHE  YEHEESBREER
BETRARR - AKREERBHEAR LB HE
g MmEMAIRAEE AR -
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33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way
that lessors account for their rights and obligations under
a lease. However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will
no longer distinguish between finance leases and operating
leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees
will account for all leases in a similar way to current finance
lease accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the
lease the lessee will recognise and measure a lease liability
at the present value of the minimum future lease payments
and will recognise a corresponding “right-of-use” asset.
After initial recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee
will recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding
balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation of
the right-of-use asset, instead of the current policy of
recognising rental expenses incurred under operating leases
on a systematic basis over the lease term. As a practical
expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply this accounting
model to short-term leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12
months or less) and to leases of low-value assets, in which
case the rental expenses would continue to be recognised

on a systematic basis over the lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases for properties, plant and equipment which
are currently classified as operating leases. The application
of the new accounting model is expected to lead to an
increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact on the
timing of the expense recognition in profit or loss over the
period of the lease.
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33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019. As allowed by HKFRS 16, the Group
plans to use the practical expedient to grandfather the
previous assessment of which existing arrangements are,
or contain, leases. The Group will therefore apply the new
definition of a lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that are
entered into on or after the date of initial application. In
addition, the Group plans to elect the practical expedient for
not applying the new accounting model to short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets.

The Group plans to elect to use the modified retrospective
approach for the adoption of HKFRS 16 and will recognise
the cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment
to the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2019 and will
not restate the comparative information. As disclosed in note
26(b), at 31 December 2018 the Group’s future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
amount to RMB197,063,000 for properties, the majority of
which is payable within 5 years after the reporting date.
Upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 16, the opening balances
of lease liabilities and the corresponding right-of-use assets
will be adjusted to RMB187,219,000 and RMB187,903,000
respectively, after taking account the effects of discounting,
as at 1 January 2019.

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities and right-of-use
assets, the Group expects that the transition adjustments
to be made upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 16 will not
be material. However, the expected changes in accounting
policies as described above could have a material impact
on the Group'’s financial statements from 2019 onwards.
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Cricket Square Hutchins Drive
P.O Box 2681 Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 301, 3/F, Lippo Sun Plaza
28 Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Correspondence Address:

Unit 3805-09, Tower 6, The Gateway
Harbour City, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

AUDITORS

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants
8/F, Prince’s Building, 10 Chater Road, Central, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISORS

As to Hong Kong Law

Gallant

5/F, Jardine House

1 Connaught Place, Central, Hong Kong

As to PRC Law

Beijing Kangda Law Firm

2301, CITIC Building

No. 19 Jianguomenwai Street, Chaoyang District, Beijing

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
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CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited

Royal Bank House — 3rd Floor

24 Shedden Road, P.O. Box 1586

Grand Cayman, KY1-1110, Cayman Islands

INVESTORS INQUIRY

Ms. Gao Shi

Unit 3805-09, Tower 6, The Gateway, Harbour City
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2921 9607

Fax: (852) 2375 8010

Email: shi.gao@hengdeligroup.com

MEDIA INQUIRY

Ms. Claudia Wang

Unit 3805-09, Tower 6, The Gateway, Harbour City
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2927 9667

Fax: (852) 2375 8010
Email:claudia.wang@hengdeli.com.hk

Ms. Kelly Fung

Unit 2401, Admiralty Centre, Tower Il

18 Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 3150 6763

Fax: (852) 3150 6728

Email: kelly.fung@pordahavas.com

@ Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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